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Annual Report of the Directors 

Currency - United States Dollars (“Y’) 

General 

Core Laboratones N.V. (“Core Laboratories”. “Company”, “we”. “our” or ”US”) is a Netherlands limited liability company 
publicly traded in the United States on the New York Stock Exchange. We were established in 1936 and are one o f  the world’s 
leading providen o f  propnetary and patented reservoir description, production enhancement and reservoir management services to the 
oi l  and gas industry. These services are directed toward enabling our clients to improve reservoir performance and increase oil and 
gas recovery from their producing fields. We have over 70 offices in more than 50 countries. 

Personnel 

We have appmximately 4.600 employees. We have maintained similar workforce levels from 2005 and expect to generally 
maintain the same workîorce levels in the future, subject to market conditions. 

Resnlts of Operations 

Our business units have been aggregated into three complementary segments: 

Reservoir Descrioiion: Encompasses the characterization of petroleum reservoir rock, fluid and gas 
samples. We provide analytica1 and field services to characterize properties o f  crude oi l  and petroleum 
products to the oil and gas industry. 

Production Enhancemeni: Includes products and services relating to reservoir wel1 completions, 
perforations, stimulations and production. We provide integrated services to evaluate the effectiveness 
o f  wel1 completions and fo develop solutions aimed at increasing the efîectiveness o f  enhanced oi l  
recovery projects. 

Reservoir Manazemen/: Combines and integrates information from reservoir description and production 
enhancement services to increase production and improve recovery o f  oil and gas from our clients’ 
reservoirs. 

General Overview and Future Outlook 

b i  

‘:“ 

We provide services and design and produce products which enable our clients to evaluate reservoir performance and increase oi l  
and gas recovery from new and existing fields. These services and products are generally in higher demand when our clients are 
investing capital in exploration and development efforts to explore new fields or to increase productivity in existing fields. Our 
clients’ investment in capital expenditure programs tends to correlate to oil and natura1 gas commodity prices. During periods of 
higher pnces, our clients generally invest more in capital expenditures and, dunng periods of lower commodity prices, they tend 10 
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‘..I invest less. Accordingly, the level of capital expenditures by our clients impacts the demand for our services and products. 

We continue our efforts to expand our market presence by opening siraiegic facilities and realizing synergies within our business 
lines. AS companies in the o i l  and gas industry consolidate, some o f  our clients have used, and may continue 10 use, their global 
presence and market influence to seek economies o f  scale and pncing concessions. We believe our market presence provides US a 
unique opportunity to service these customen. 

We have established intemal earnings targets that are based on current market conditions. Based on discussions with OUT clients 
and our view of the industiy, we anticipate that in 2007 North American spending by our clients wil1 increase approximately 10%. 

We expect to meet ongoing working capital needs, capital expenditure requirements and funding o îour  share repurchase program 
from a combination o f  cash on hand, cash flow fmm operating activities and available borrowings under our revolving credit facility. 

Net revenues for the years ended 2006 and 2005 were 5575.7 million and $483.5 million, respectively. We offer our services 
worldwide through our global network o f  offices. Services accounted for approximately 75% and 76% of our revenues from 
operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We manufacture products primarily in wo facilities for 
distribution on a global basis. Product sales, generated pnncipally in OUT Production Enhancement segment, accounted for 
approximately 25% and 24% of our revenues fmm operations for the years ended December 3 I. 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
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We recorded operating income o f  $119.6 mill ion and $63.6 mill ion for the years ending 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The market for our products and services is characterized by changing technology and frequent product intmduction. As a result, 
our success i s  dependent upon our ability to develop or acquire new products and services on a cost-effective basis and to intmduce 
them into the marketplace in a tirnely manner. Many of our acquisitions have allowed US to obtain the benefits of the acquired 
company's research and development projects without the significant costs that would have been incurred if we had attempted to 
develop ihe producis and services ourselves. We intend to continue commiîting subctantial financial resources and effort io the 
development and acquisition o f  new products and services. Over the years, we have made a number of technological advances, 
including the development of key technologies utilized in our operations. Substantially al1 of the new technologies have resulted from 
requests and guidance from our clients, particularly major oil companies. While we have acquired many of our new technologies, we 
incur expenses relating to our ongoing research and development program. 

Investments 

Fixed assets are comprised of tangible Rxed asset and intangible fixed assets. During 2006 and 2005 we added $27.0 mil l ion and 
$19.2 mill ion respectively. We expect to add an additional $25.0 million in 2007. 

Segment Revenues 

(USO in thousandsl 

Reservoir Description 
Production Enhancement 
Reservoir Management 

Total Revenues 

For the Vears Ended December 31, 
2006 %Change 200s 

S 315.068 12.1% $ 280.979 
223;056 26.8% 175;894 

37,565 41.3% 26,594 
$ 575,689 19.1% 6 483,467 

Segrnenf Operating Ineome 

For the Years Ended December31, 
W S D  in !housnn& 2006 % Change 200s 

Reservoir Description $ 56,263 50.1 % $ 37,478 
Production Enhancement 57,191 87.1 % 30,560 

Corporaie and other' (2,011) (77.2)% (8,815) 
Operating income $ 119,601 88.1 % $ 63,570 

Reservoir Management 8,158 87.7 Yo 4,347 

i. "Corporou a d  other" reprerenu t h o s  iams ihot are MI direcrly relaled 10 (I parlicutar segment. 

Reservoir Description 

Revenues for our Reservoir Description segment increased by 12.1% i n  2006 compared to 2005. These revenue increases resulted 
fmm continued expansion of oilfield aciiviiies world-wide and North American projects related to unconventional gas reservoirs. As 
in 2005, revenues for 2006 were als0 positively impacted by increased demand for our fluid characterizaiion services in Eumpe and 
the U.S. 

Operating income and operating income margin for the Reservoir Description segment increased due to continued growth of 
higher value-added and consequently higher margin products which resulted in increases in margins throughout the majority of the. 
regions with significant increases in Asia Pacific and the U.S. 

Praduetion Enhancement 

Revenues for our Production Enhancement business segmenl grew 26.8% in 2006 compared 10 2005, primarily due to the 
acceptance o f  recently intmduced products and services coupled with a continued expansion in global drilling activities in 2006. With 
the increase in drilling activities, demand for our wel1 perforating and completion producrs and diagnostic services has also increased. 
facilitated by the coniinued improvements in our technologies such as the Completion ProfilerTM, GTX-SPANTM and HEROTM. 

Operating income for this segment increased to $57.2 rnillion in 2006 from $30.6 mill ion in 2005, an increase o f  87.1%. The 
continued improvement in operating income was due primarily to increased sales of higher-margin services and products including 
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new enhanced recovery technology, such as SpectraScanTM, SpectraStimTM. and Completion ProfilerrM. Also, higher-margin GTX- 
SPANTM casing patches and HEROTM perforating charges and gun systems increased with global demand, while improvements in 
manufacturing efficiencies resulted in higher productivity per employee and lower overall C O S ~ S  per unit. Additionally, the demand for 
our technology in fracture diagnostics continued to increase as drilling activity increased in unconventional gas reservoirs. 

Reservoir Management 

Revenues for our Reservoir Management segment increased by 4 I .3% in 2006 compared to 2005. The increase was due to higher 
revenue for multi-client reservoir studies. especially studies pertaining to unconventional gas reservoirs. and increased international 
demand for our resewoir monitoring systems. Significant studies in 2006 and 2005 were Reservoir Characterization and Production 
Properties of Gas Shales and Geological, Petrophysical, and Geomechanical Properties of Tight Gas Sands. 

Operating income for this segment increased $3.8 million in 2006 over 2005 primarily due to incremental margins earned from thc 
continued expansion o f  the multi-client reservoir study sales in the U.S. and expansion o f  studies being performed both onshore and 
offshore Libya. 

Corporate and Other 

Operating expenses for Corporate and Other are expenses not directly related to a particular segment. In 2006 the overall expense 
not relating to a particular segment was minimal. In 2005, we incurred one-time charges relating to stock bared compensation and an 
impaiment charge on a facility that was being sold. 

L iqu id i ty  and Capital Resources 

We have historically financed our activities through cash on hand, cash flows from operations, bank credit facilities, equity 
financing and the issuance o f  debt. Cash flow from operating activities provides the primary source o f  funds to finance operating 
needs. capital expenditures and our share repurchase program. I f  necessary, we supplement this cash flow with borrowings under 
bank credit facilities to finance some capital expenditures and business acquisitions. 

The followingtable summarizes cash flows from continuing operations for the yean ended December 31,2006 and 2005: 

k+ /VSO in Ihousands) Year Ended December 31, 
2006 2005 i.3 

Investing activities (2 1,706) (15,215) I 

Financing activities (62,485) (60,701) p.J 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 40,480 S (2,287) cg 

<:3 
+..I 

I 
Cash provided byl(used in): 
Operating activities $ 124,671 $ 73,629 C? 

Ca 

The increase i n  cash flow from operating activities in 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily due to an increase in net income and 
current liabilities offset by an increase in accounts receivable. 

Cash flow used in investing activities increased $6.5 mil l ion in 2006 over 2005 due to an increase in capital expenditures for 2006 
and a lower level of proceeds received from disposal of property. Capital expenditures made in 2006 and 2005 were for replacement 
of in-place equipment and for growth thmugh additional equipment and instrumentation in growing markets. 

Cash flow used in financing activities in 2006 was comparable to 2005 but decrensed slightly overall. There were several 
significant financing activities conducted in 2006. In November 2006, we issued $300 mill ion o f  exchangeable notes, and in 
connection with this transaction we purchased a cal1 option hedge on the notes and issued a warrant on our stock. These transactions 
net o f  the debt financing costs generated cash flow of approximately $263 million. The net proceeds received from these transactions 
were primarily used on other financing activities, such as paying of f  the $100 million outstanding balance o f  our existing credit 
facility and common stock repurchases under our share repurchase program. In 2006, we repurchased 3,831,372 of our common 
shares at a cos1 o f  $25 I .I mill ion which was $209.6 mill ion more than 2005. Additionally, cash received from exercised stock options 
and the fax benefit received from stock-based payments was $12.9 million greater in 2006 as compared to 2005. This share 
repurchase program was approved by our shareholders in connection with our initia1 public offering in September 1995 and 
repurchases began on October 10, 2002. Under the program, we were authorized to repurchase up to the lesser o f  10% of our issued 
common shares or freely distributable reserves as defined under Dutch law. This authorization was extended by our shareholders at 
each o f  our annual meetings beginning in April 1996. 

.. . 
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The number oftreasury shares reported in our balance sheet as o f  December 3 I. 2006 include 2,263,493 shares ($I 67.5 million) in 
our capital held by our subsidiaries Core Laboratories LP and Core Laboratones Holding Inc. 

As a result of acquisition o f  shares in our capital by our subsidianes Core Laboratories LP and Core Laboratones Holding Inc in 
2006, these subsidiaries have by operation ofthe laws ofthe Netherlands a contingent liability consisting o fan  obligation to transfer 
the shares currently held by them in our capital 10 our (indirect) managing directors and a corresponding contingent asset consisting o f  
a claim against such managing directon for an amount equal 10 the purchase price paid by Core Laboratories LP  and Core 
Laboratones Holding Inc 1-01 such shares. 

Upon adoption of our annual accounts for the financial year 2006, the shares in our capital currently held by our subsidiaries Core 
Laboratones LP and Core Laboratones Holding Inc shall be transferred to US and the contingent asset and contingent liability referred 
to above in respect of such shares shail be set-off. 

Our ability 10 maintain and increase our operating income and cash flows i s  largely dependent upon continued investing activities. 
We believe our future cash flows from operating activities, supplemented by our borrowing capacity under existing facilities and our 
ability to issue additional equity should be sufficient 10 meet our contractual obligations, capital expenditures, working capital needs 
and to finance future acquisiiions. 

Due to the low inflationary rates in 2006 and 2005, the impact of inflation on our results ofoperations was insignificant. 

Significant Events 

On November 6,  2006 Core Laboratories LP, a wholly owned subsidiary, issued $250 mill ion aggregate principal amount of 
Senior Exchangeable Notes due 201 I ("Notes") to qualified institutional buyers. The Notes bear interest at a rate of0.25% per year 
and are guaranteed by Core Laboratories N.V. These notes are exchangeable into shares o f  Core Laboratories N.V. under certain 
circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 10.5533 per $1,000 pnncipal amount of notes, which i s  equal to a conversion price o f  
approximately $94.76 pershare. Upon exchange, holden wil1 receive cash up to the principal amount, and any excess exchange value 
wil1 be delivered in Core Laboratories N.V. common shares. On November 17. 2006, the initial purchasers exercised their option to 
purchase an additional $50 mill ion ofthe 0.25% senior exchangeable notes due 201 1, increasing the aggregate issuance ofsuch notes 
to $300 million. We sold the Notes to the initial purchasers in reliance on Rule 144A of the Securities Act and subsequently filed a 
registration statement on Form S-3, which became effective irnmediately, pursuant to the Securities Act with respect to resale of the 
notes and shares received in exchange for the notes on December 22, 2006. The Notes bear interest at a rate o f  0.25% per year payable 
semiannually on May 6 and November 6 of each year, beginning on May 6.2007. b+ 

t .3  
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Core Laboratories LP,used proceeds ofthe offering to enter into exchangeable note hedge transadions with a financial institution 
which is an affiliate o f o n e  o f  the initial purchasers. The exchangeable note hedge transactions are designed to cover, subject 10 
customary anti-dilution adjusimenis, the net number ofour common shares that would be deliverable to exchanging note holders in the 
event of an exchange ofthe notes. We paid an aggregate amount o f  appmximately $86.3 mill ion of the pmceeds from the sale of the 
Notes to acquire the cal1 options. 

Core Laboratories N.V. als0 entered into separate warrant transactions at the time o f  the sak o f  the Notes whereby we sold 
warrants which give the holders the nght 10 acquire approximately 3.2 mill ion ofour  common shares at a strike price of $127.56 per 
share. Upon exercise of the warrants, we have the option to deliver cash or out common shares equal to the difference between the 
then market price and strike price. Al1 of the warrants wil1 expire on January25, 2012. We received aggregate proceeds o f  
$56.5 mill ion from the sale o f  the warrants which was wed to repay our outstanding debt. 

The purchased cal1 options and sold warrants are separate contracts entered int0 by US with two financial institutions, and are not 
pan of the tenns of the notes and wil1 not affect the holders' rights under the notes. m e  purchased cali options are expected to offset 
the potential dilution upon exchange of the notes in the event that the market value per share o f  our common shares at the time of 
exercise i s  greater than the strike price of the purchased cal1 options, which corresponds to the initial exchange price of the Notes and 
is simultaneously subject to cenain customary adjusimenis. The warrants wil1 effectively increase the exchange price o f  the notes to 
$127.56 per share ofour  common shares, from our perspective, representing a 75% premium based on the last reponed bid price o f  
$72.89 per share on October 31, 2006. In accordance with International Accounting Standards No. 32 "Financial Instruments: 
Presentation", we recorded the exchangeable note hedge and warrants in the balance sheet as of the transaction date. and wil1 
recognized subsequent changes in fair value. 

We maintain a revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"). In November, 2006, we amended this facility to decrease ihe 
aggregate borrowing commitment from $125.0 million to $100.0 million, and added an opiion to increase the commitment under the 
credit facility to $150.0 million, i fcei iain conditions are met. The Credit Facility bears interest at variable rates from LIBOR plus 
0.5% 10 a maximum o f  LIBOR plus 1.125%. The Credit Facility matures in December 2010 and requires interest payments only until 
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maturity. These interest payments are based on the interest period selected. Our available borrowing capacity under the Credit Facility 
at December 31, 2006 was $93.1 million. Our available capacity is  reduced by outstanding unsecured letters o f  credit and 
performance guarantees and bonds totaling $6.9 million at December 31, 2006 related to certain projects in progress. 

The terms o f the Credit Facility require US to meet certain financial covenants, including, bui nol limited to. ceriain operational and 
minimum equity and cash flow ratios. We believe that we are in compliance with al1 such covenants contained in our credit 
agreement. Al1 of our matenal wholly owned subsidianes are guarantors or co-borrowers under the Credit Facility. 

Business Strategy 

Our business strategy i s  to provide advanced technologies that improve reservoir performance by (i) continuing the development 
o f  proprietary technologies through client-driven research and development, (ii) expanding the services and products offered 
throughout our global network ofoffices and (i i i) acquiring complementaty technologies that add key technologies or market presence 
and enhance existing products and services. 

Corporate Governance 

General 

The Company i s  subject to corporate governance requirements in the Netherlands. The management board of the Company 
supports the principles and best practice provisions of corporate governance set out in the Dutch Corporate Governance Code 
("DCGC") issued in December 2003 and effective as from January I, 2004. Purwant to the DCGC, <he Company has to state in its 
Annual Report whether it complies with the principles and best practice provisions o f  the DCGC and, if i t  does not comply, 10 explain 
the reasons for this non-compliance. 

Compliance wi th  the Dutch Corporate Governance Code 

The Company applies the major part o f  the principles and provisions o f  the DCGC, in so far as they are applicable. with the 
following exceptions: 

Best practice provision I. 1 k+ 

The corporate governance structure of the Company is not explained in a separate chapter o f  the Dutch annual report. Pursuani to 
the R u k  303A.09 of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE), the Company has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines. which 
are described in the Company's Proxy Statement. In addition. a copy o f  the Corporate Governance Guidelines are available on the 

W ' 
C? 

Company's website at http:/lwww.corelab.comicorporatelcgg.asp. co 

Best pracfice provision /l. 1.1 P.,' 
C? 
U? 
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The sok managing director o f  the Company i s  Core Laboratories International B.V. The composition o f  the management board o f  
the latter company changes fmm time to time. Certain members of the management board o f  Core Laboratories International B.V. 
have been in office fora longer period than four years in order to have a continuing overview with respect to the ongoing corporate 
formalities. References to managing directors in this chapter are references to Core Laboratories International B.V. as managing 
director of the Company andlor the managing directors of Core Laboratones International B.V. 

Best practice provision /I. 1.2 
Since the s o k  managing director of the Company i s  a legal entity, the decisions mentioned in this best practice provision are 

submined to the supervisory board by officers of the Company. 

Best practice pcOVision 11.2.1 and 11.2.2 
The Company has not historically complied with the requirement of the DCGC that requires options to acquire shares to become 

vested only when the management board members have fulfilled predetermined performance objectives for a period of at least three 
years from the grant date or that options that do not have such performance objectives shall not be exercisable for three years from the 
grant date. The Company's supervisory directors have been granted options that vest one year from the date of grant. The Company 
employee options granted Ón September 26, 2001 vested ratably over a two-year period; a11 others vest over four years. AI1 options are 
granted with an exercise price that i s  equal to the closing price on the day on which the option is  granted. The Company does not have 
any future plans to modify the exercise price of any option during its term except for recapitalization events such as stock splits and 
stock dividends. The Company feels that it must offer similar arrangements to compete in the global marketplace where similar 
benefits are offered in order to be able to attract and retain high calibre management personnel. The Company als0 believes that this 
type o f  arrangement closely aligns the interests of management and the Company's shareholders. Currently the company i s  oot 
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planning to grant options bui instead has issued stock-based awards as remuneration. As of this date, al1 options have vested and the 
senior executives and nonemployee directors have exercised al1 oftheir options. 

Best practice provision 11. 2.3 
New York Stock Exchange rules do not prescnbe to retain shares granted to management board memben without financial 

consideration for a period o f  at least five yean or until at least the end of ihe employment, if this period is shorter. Therefore the grant 
o f  shares to managing directors has not been made subject to such resirictions. 

Best practice provision K2.6 
The Company's supervisory board has not drawn up policies concerning ownership o f  and transactions in securities by 

management board members, other than securities issued by the Company. To the extent that investments do consiiiute a conflict of 
interest both the New York Stock Exchange rules and campany policy provide that the director should disclose ihe conflict and should 
not take any actions that are inconsistent with iheir fiduciary duties. 

Best practice irovision I / .  2.7 
I n  respect o f  the dismissal of a senior executive officer, as i s  customary in our industry, each o f  the Company's senior executive 

officers has an employment contract that regulates the termination o f  the officer's employmeni and the termination compensation due 
to that officer. Those employment agreements are filed wiih the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and made publicly 
available. In addition, the Company describes the material terms of those employmeni agreements in its annual proxy statement. 
which is provided to al1 shareholden as wel1 as being descnbed later in this annual report. 

Best practice piuvision 11. 2.10 
The sok member of the management board of the Company i s  Core Laboratories International E.V., an entity to which no 

remuneration i s  paid. With regards to remuneration paid to the supervisory directors o f  Core Laboratories N.V., a description of the 
types and arnount o f  cash and non-cash remuneration paid to those directors i s  contained in the Company's proxy statement as 
required by Item 402(g) of Regulation S-K of the U.S. secunties laws as wel1 as later in this annual report. In addition, with regard the 
executive offcers of the Company, the Compensation Comminee Report, which i s  coniained in the Proxy Statement, describes the 
objective o f  the Company's remuneration program, as wel1 as the principle components o f  the Company's remuneration for those 
individuals. The Company also discloses in its proxy statement, as required by U.S. securities Iaws. the types and amount of cash and 
non-cash remuneration ayarded 10 its executive offtcen. 

Besf practice provision 11.3.7 
The Company does ca,mply with this provision except where gifìs are cancerned, <he Company's policy requires the disclosure to 

the Company's compliance officer and to the General Counsel of any substantial gift. The gift is then reviewed to see i f  it 
compromises the decision making o f  the executive and if deemed to do so, the gift must be refused. 

Best practice provision 11.3.4 
The Company does have a general policy with regard to conflicts of interest. The Company's policy i s  described in i ts  code o f  

business conduct and ethics directors, officers and employees pursuant 10 New York Stock Exchange Rule 303A( 10). 

Best practice provision 111.1.2 
Reference is  made to the remarks in relation to best practice provision 1. I 

Best practice pr0vision 111.1.3 
The information mentioned in this provision i s  or wil1 be provided in the Corporate Governance Guidelines. 

Best pracfice provision 111 1.5 
In respect of the administration concerning the attendance o f  the supervisory board members, under the Company's Corporate 

Governance Guidelines, Supervisory Directon are expected to diligently fulfill their fiduciary duties to shareholders, including 
preparing for, attending and participating in meetings of the supervisory board and the committees of which the supervisory director i s  
a member. The Company does not require i t s  supervisory directors to attend annual meetings of shareholders. As required by Item 
7(h)(3) of Schedule 14A ofthe Securities Exchange Act, the Company discloses i ts  policy with regard to supervisory board members' 
attendance at annual meetings in its proxy statement. 

Best practice provision 111.23 
The Company publishes a statement on the independence (using the SEC'S definition thereof) o f  its supervisory directors in the 

proxy materials mailed out,annually to its shareholden. Therefore, the Company does not include a statement in relation thereto in the 
Dutch annual report. 



Best practice provision 111.3.5 and 111.3.6 
The Company does nol have a retirement schedule for the supervisory board. The wmposition o f  the supervisory board changes 

from time to time. However, certain supervisory board memben have been in office since the incorporation of the Company and wil1 
remain to be supervisory board members in order to make sure that the Company's senior management and supervisory board retain 
the benefit o f  their experience. 

Best practice provision 111.4.1 
As described in the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines and Articles of Association, the Company does comply with this 

provision except for the duty o f  the supervisory board to elect a vice-chairman. 

Best practice provision 111.4.2 
i n  respect o f  this corporate structure requirement, the Company's C E 0  acts as chairman o f  the supervisory board. The C E 0  has 

been a supervisory director of the Company since 1994 and was subsequently appointed as chairman for his importance to the 
Company, and for his expenence and knowledge o f  the business of the Company. 

Best practice provision 111.5.2 
The Company publishes a report of each of the supervisory board committeer in the proxy materials mailed out annually to its 

shareholden. Therefore, the Company does not include such a reference in its Dutch annual report. 

Best practice pyis ion 111.5.10 
The Company's compensation committee does review, evaluate and approve the agreements, plans, policies and programs o f  the 

Company to compensate the Company's C E 0  and non-employee supervisory board memben. Also, the Company's compensation 
committee reviews and evaluates the policy on the remuneration o f  the Company's senior executives. The remuneration report o f  the 
compensation committee is  subject to approval by the supervisory board. Additionally, the Company complies with New York Stock 
Exchange Rule 303A(S)(bXi) which governs the composition of the Company's compensation committee and requires the committee 
have a charter that addresses certain topics. 

Best practice provision 111.6.5 
With regard to the policy o f  the supervisory board concerning conflicts of interest between board members and the Company, the 

Company's policy i s  described in i t s  code of business conduct and ethics directors, ofticen and employees pursuant to New York 
Stock Exchange R u k  303A(IO). +A 

<,,d 

03 
Co 
, , 
k,-, 

<:? 
".,I 

Best practice provision 111. 7.1 I 

As i s  customary in the industry in which we compete, the Company does grant annual equity compensation to supervisory board 
members. The Company believes that widespread common share ownership by i ts  directors is  an effective way to align the interests o f  
supervisory directors with those of the Company and its shareholden. The Company also believes that directors with substantial 
equity positions are more proprietary in their approach to ovenight than those with l inie or no stake in the Company. As required by 
the rules o f  the NYSE, the Company has obtained shareholder approval o f  i ts equity compensation plans. i n  addition, al1 grants of 
equity compensation are disclosed in the Company's proxy statement as required by Item 402 o f  Regulation S-K. 

Best practice provision 111.7.2 
U.S. secunties laws do not require directors to retain shares for a particular length o f  time. While the Company had historicaiiy 

granted options to supervisory board members that have a one year vesting requirement it has moved to granting performance-based 
restricted stock that require the Company to meet or exceed certain targets over a three-year performance period before any of ihe 
awarded shares wil1 vest. 

Best practice provision IV. 1 . 1  
Punuant to that statutory obligations, current dismissals require a majority vote by ihe shareholden. 

Best practice provision IV. 1.4 
The Company does not have a policy with regard to additions on reserves and dividends. i t  decides what reserves are appropnate 

on a case by case basis in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). Evaluation of dividends i s  done by 
the senior executive management of the Company, in consultation with the audit committee ofthe supervisory board. 

Best practice provision IV.3.4. 
The Company does convene meetings with analysts and investon periodically throughout the year and conducts these meetings in 

compliance with Regulation FD of the U.S. securities law, which prohibits the selective disclosure o f  any material non-public 
information. 
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Best pracfice provision IV.3.7 
A pmxy which contains al1 the facts and circumstances relevant for approvals to be granted by the general meeting of the 

shareholders is annually mailed out to the Company’s shareholders. I f  under U.S. law additional information should be provided, such 
information wil1 be provided by additional mailing and/or on the website as the case may be. 

Best practice provision /V.3.8 
The Company does not publish a copy of the minutes of the shareholder meetings. However, it does include on the first quarterly 

report on Form 10-Q following the date o f  such meeting a summary of the actions taken at the shareholder meeting. 

Eest practice provjsion iV.3.9 
The Company does not have specific existing or potential anti-takeover measures in place 

Besf pracfice pruvision V.2.3 
The audit comminee is responsible for the supervision o f  the independence of the auditors and does conduct an assessment o f  the 

functioning o f  the external auditor. In addition, the Company complies with Section 10A(m)(6) o f  Securities Exchange Act which 
requires the audit comminee, in its capacity as a comminee o f  the supervisoiy board o f  directors. to be directly responsible for the 
appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the work of any registered public accounting firm engaged (including 
resolution of disagreements between management and the auditor regarding financial reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing 
an audit report or performing other audit, review or attest services for the listed issuer. The Company also complies with Rules 
303A.06 and 303A.07 of, the New York Stock Exchange, which requires additional requirements regarding the composition and 
independence of the audit wmmittee. 

Best pracfice pmvision V.4.1 
The external auditor o f  the Company has a separate meeting with the audit comminee shortly after or before the supervisory board 

meeting to discuss the report of the auditor and 10 appmve the financial statements. The Company does comply with Section 
10A(m)(6) o f  Securities Exchange Act. 

Risk Management Approach - Best practice provision 11.1.4 

Our management i s  responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with al1 relevant legislation and regulations. I t  i s  
responsible for proper financing of the Company and the management of the risks that the Company is facing. it reports on and 
accounts for internal risk management and control systems to the Supervisory Board and its Audit Committee. Within the Company, 
risk management forms an integral pan of business management. The Company’s risk and control policy i s  designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that straiegic objectives are met by creating focus, by integrating management control over the Company’s 
operations, by ensuring compliance with legal requirements and by safeguarding rhe reliability of the financial reporting and its 
disclosures. The Company’s risk management approach is embedded in the periodic business planning and review cycle. With respect 
to financial reporting a stmctured self-assessment and monitoring process is used company-wide to assess, document, review and 
monitor compliance with internal control over financial reporting. On the basis o f  risk assessments, operating division and business 
management determines the risks related to the achievement of business objectives and appmpriate risk responses in relation to 
business processes and objectives. 
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Our management is responsible for internal control in the Company and has implemented a risk management and control system 
that is designed to ensure that significant risks are identified and to monitor the realization o f  operational and financial objectives o f  
the Company. Furthermore the system is designed to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company has 
designed i ts  internal contml system in acwrdance with the recommendations o f  the Comminee of Sponsoring Organizations o f  the 
Treadway Commission (COSO), which recommendaiions are aimed at pmviding a reasonable level of assurance. 

The Company’s risk management and internal control system is  designed to determine risks in relation to the achievement o f  
operational and financial business objectives and appmpriate risk responses. The most important risks identified, as wel1 as the 
siructure of the aforesaid risk management and internal control system, are discussed in the Risk Factors section below. Significant 
changes and improvements in the Company’s risk management and internal control system are disclosed below and have been 
discussed with the Supervisory Board’s Audit Comminee and the external auditor. 

Internal representations received h.om management, regular management reviews, reviews o f  the design and implementation o f  the 
Company’s risk management approach and reviews in business and functional audit comminees are integral parts of the Company’s 
risk management approach. On the basis thereof, the Management confirms that internal controls over financial reporting provide a 
reasonable level o f  assurance that the financial reporting does not contain any material inaccuracies. and confirms that these controls 
have properly functioned in 2006 and that there are no indications that they wil1 not continue to do so. The financial statements fairly 
represent the financial condition and result of operations o f  the Company and provide the required disclosures. 
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I t  should be noted that the above does not imply that there systems and procedures provide certainty as to the realization of 
operational and financial business objectives, nor can they prevent al1 misstatemenis, inaccuracies, errors, fraud and non-compiiances 
with rules and regulations. 

In view of al1 o f  the above the Board o f  Management believes that it i s  in compliance with the requirements o f  recommendation 
11.1.4. of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, taking info account the recommendation o f  the Corporate Governance Code 
Monitoring Comminee on the application thereof. 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Our management, under the supervision o f  and with the participation o f  our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
has evaluated the effectiveness o f  ihe Company's disclosure controk and procedures. as such term is  defined in Rules 13a-IS(e) and 
ISd-IS(e) under the Securities Exchange Act o f  1934, as arnended (the "Exchange Act"), as o f  the end o f  the period covered by this 
report. Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Ofticer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as o f  the end of such 
period, our disclosure controk and procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be 
disclosed by the Company i n  its reports filed or submined under the Exchange Act i s  recorded, processed, summarized and reported 
within the time periods specified in the rules and forrns of the Securities and Exchange Commission and such information i s  
accumulated and wmmunicated to management as appropriate to aliow timeiy decisions regarding required disclosure. Our 
management does not expect that our disclosure controk and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting wil1 prevent 
al1 errors and al1 fraud. Flirther, the design ofdisclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting must retiect the fact that 
there are resource constraints, and the benefits o f  controk must be considered relative to their costs. Because o f  the inherent 
limitations in al1 control systems, no evaluation o f  controls can provide absolute assurance that al1 control issues and instances o f  
fraud, if any, within a company have been detected. 

Managemeni's Report on Inlernal Conirol over Financial Reporting 
The management of the Company i s  responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 

reporting, as that term i s  defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-I5(f). Our intemal controi over financial reporting is  
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability o f  financial reponing and ihe preparation o f  financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Because of i ts  inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also. 
projections of any evaluation o f  effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controk may become inadequate because of 
changes in condiiions, or that the degree o f  wmpliance with the poiicies or procedures may deterionte. 

Our management conducted an evaluation o f  our internal control over financial reporting as o f  December 31,2006. In making this 
assessment, management used the criteria set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee o f  Sponsoring 
Organizaiions o f  the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment using these criteria, our management determined that our 
internal control over financial reporting was effeciive as o f  December 31, 2006. 

Changes in lniernal Cunirol over Financial Reporiing 

There have not been any changes in our intemal control over financial reporting, as such term is  defined in Rules 13a-I5(f) and 
15d-I5(í) under the Exchange Act, during our fiscal quarter ended December 31,2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably 
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

Risk Factors 

Our forward-looking siaiemenis are based on assumprions ihai ive believe 10 be reasonable bui /hal may nor prove / o  he acctrraie. Al1 
of our forward-luoking information is, iherefore, suhjeci io risk and imceriainiies ihai could cause aclual resulis 10 differ malerially 
from the resulis expeeled. Alihough i1 is nol possible 10 idenrify al1 faciors, ihese risk and unceriainlies include the riskjaciors 
discussed below. Accordingly, ihe Industry, Rusiness and Internalional risk factors idenlijed in prior year did nol have a maierial 
negalive impacl on ihe Company's resulis of operarlons. 

Furure downiurns in :he uil and gas industry. or in ihe niljield services business, may have a material adverse effect on uur 
jinancial condiiiun ar resulis of operaliuns. 

The oi l  and gas industry is  highly cyclical and demand for the majonty o f  our oilfield products and services is subsiantially 
dependent on the level o f  expenditures by the oil and gas industry for the exploration, development and production o f  criide oi l  and 

i0 



natural gas reserves, which are sensitive to oil and natura1 gas pnces and generally dependent on the industry's view o f  future oi l  and 
gas prices. There are numerous factors affecting the supply o f  and demand for our products and services, which include: 

market prices o fo i l  and gas and expectations about future prices; 

- cost of producing oi l  and natural gas; 

the level of drilling and production activity; 

mergers, consolidations and downsizing among our clients; 

- 

- 

- coordination by OPEC; 

- the impact of commodity prices on the expenditure levels o f  our clients; 

financial condition of our client base and their ability to fund capital expenditures; ~ 

- adverse weather conditions; 

- civi l  unrest in oi l  producing countries; 

level of consumption of oil, gas and petrochemicals by consumers; and 

availability of services and matenals for our clients to grow their capital expenditures. 

- 

- 

The o i l  and gas industry has historically experienced periodic downturns, which have been characterized by diminished demand 
for our oilfield products and services and downward pressure on the prices we charge. A significant downturn in the oi l  and gas 
industry could result in a reduction in demand for oilfield services and could ham our operating resulis. 

We depend on Ihe resuIls of our internolional operoiions, which expose US 10 risks inherent in doing business abroad. 

We conduct our business in over 50 countries, and our operations are subject to the various Iaws and regulations o f  those 
respective countries as wel1 as various risks peculiar to each country, which may include: 

- global economic conditions: 

- political actions and requirements of national governments including trade restnctions, embargoes 
and expropriations o f  assets; 

potential adjustments 10 fax liabilities in multiple junsdictions; ~ 

- civi l  unrest; 

- acts of terrorism; 

. 

. 
fluctuations and changes in currency exchange rates; 

the impact o f  inflation; and 

current conditions in Venezuela, Nigeria, Iran and Iraq. - 

Historically, economic downturn and political events have resulted in lower demand for our products and services in certain 
markets. The ongoing conflict in Iraq and the potential for activity from terrorist groups that the U.S. government has cautioned 
against have furiher heightened our exposure to international risks. The global economy i s  highly influenced by public confidence in 
the geopolitical environment and the situation in the Middle East continues to be highly fluid; therefore, we expect to experience 
heightened international risks. 

As a result o f  the political and financial instability in Venezuela, the Bolivar ("VEB") declined in value relative to other currencies. 
In February 2004, the government devalued the VEB by 20% to 1,915 VEB per USD. Effective March 2, 2005, the Venezuelan 
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government devalued the VEB by an additional 12% 10 2,147 VEB per USD. At December 31. 2006, our net monetary asseis 
denominated in VEB in Venezuela were $3.3 million. We continue to monitor our operations and financial position in this region. 

lf we are nol nble 10 deweiop or ncquire new products or our producls become technolugicnlly obsofete, our results of opernlions 
may be ndversely affecled. 

The market for our products and services i s  characterized by changing technology and frequent product introduction. As a result, 
our success i s  dependent upon our ability to develop or acquire new products and services on a cost-effective basis and to introduce 
them info the marketplace in a timely manner. While we intend to continue commirting substantial financial resources and effort to the 
development o f  new products and services, we may nol be able to successfully differentiate our products and services from those of 
our competiton. Our clients may not consider our proposed products and services to be o f  value to them; or if the proposed products 
and services are of a competitive nature, our clients may not view (hem as superior to our competitors' products and services. In 
addition, we may not be able to adapt to evolving markets and technologies, develop new products, or achieve and maintain 
technological advantages. 

If we are unable to continue developing competitive products in a timely manner in response to changes in technology, our 
businesses and operating results may be materially and adversely affected. In addition, continuing development of new products 
inherently carries the risk of inventory obsolescence with respect to our older products. 

ïf we nre unnble to oblnin palenis, lirenser and oiher inielleclunl proper@ righfs covering our produds and services, our upernfing 
resuifs mny be adversely affecled. 

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain patents, licenses and other intellectual property rights covering our products 
and services. To that end. we have obtained certain patents and intend to continue to seek patents on some o f  our inventions and 
services. While we have patented some o f  our key technologies, we do not patent al1 of our pmprietary technology, even when 
regarded as patentable. The process o f  seeking patent protection can be long and expensive. There can be no assurance that patents 
wil1 be issued from currently pending or future applications or that, if patents are issued, they wil1 be o f  suffcient scope or strength to 
provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage (o US. In addition, effective copyright and trade secret protection may be 
unavailable or limited in certain countries. Litigation, which could demand financial and management resources, may be necessary to 
enforce our patents o r  other iniellectual properïy rights. Also, there can be no assurance that we can obtain licenses or other rights to 
necessary intellectual propeny on acceptable terms. 

There nre r i s h  reinled lu our acquisifion slrategv. I/ we nre unable 10 successfuliy inlegrnle nnd mnnnge businesses fhnl we hnwe 
acquired nnd nny businesses ncquired in thefufure, our resuils of npernlions nndpnnncial condilion could be ndversely nffected 

One o f  our key business strategies is to acquire technologies, operations and assets that are complementary to our existing 
businesses. There are financial, operational and legal risks inherent in any acquisition straIegy, including: 

- increased financial leverage; 

- increased interest expense; and 

- difficulties involved in combining disparate company cultures and facilities 

The success of any completed acquisition wil1 depend on our ability to integrate effectively the acquired business info our existing 
operations. The process of integrating acquired businesses may involve unforeseen difficulties and may require a disproportionate 
amount of our managerial and financial resources. In addition, possible future acquisitions may be larger and for purchase pnces 
significantly higher than those paid for recent and pending acquisitions. No assurance can be given that we wil1 be able to continue to 
identify additional suitable acquisition opponunities, negotiate acceptable tenns, obtain financing for acquisitions on acceptable t e r m  
or successfully acquire ideniified targets. Our failure to achieve consolidation savings, to incoiporate the acquired businesses and 
assets info our existing operations successfully or to minimize any unforeseen operational difficulties could have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition and results ofoperation. 

We are subjecl 10 a warie@ of environmentnl lnws nnd regulnfions, which mny result in increased cosls to our business. 

We are subject to a variety of govemmental regulations relating to the use, storage, discharge and disposal of chemicals and gases 
used in our analytica1 Bnd manufacturing processes. Environmental claims or the failure to comply with present or future 
environmental laws and regulations could result in the assessment o f  damnges or imposition o f  fines against US or the suspension or 
cessation o f  operations. New regulations could require US to acquire costly equipment or to incur other significant expenses. If we fail 
to control the use, or adequately restrict the discharge of, hazardous substances, we could be subject to future material liab 
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addition, public interest in the protection ofthe environment has increased dramatically in recent years. We anticipate thai the trend of 
more expansive and stricter environmental laws and regulations wil1 continue, the occurrence of which may require US to increase our 
capital expenditures or couid result in increased operaiing expenses. 

Because our operalions are international in nalure, i1 may be dilficulljoryou 10 sue our supervisory direciors or US and if may not 
be possible 10 obtain or enforce judgmenis againsl US. 

Although we are a Netherlands company, our assets are located in a variely of countnes. In addition, not al1 members of our 
supervisory board of directors are residents of the same countnes as oiher supervisory directon. As a result, it may not be possibie for 
you to effect service of process within certain countries upon our supervisory directon, or 10 enforce againsi our supervisory directors 
or  US judgments of courts of certain countnes predicated upon civil liabilities under a country's federal secunties Iaws. Because there 
is no treaty between certain countries and The Neiherlands providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments, 
some countries'judgments are nol automatically enforceable in The Neiherlands or in ihe United States, where the principal market for 
our shares is locaied. In addition, there is doubi as 10 whether a court in one country wouid impose civil liability on US or on the 
members o f  our supervisory board of directon in an onginai action broughi against US or our supervisory directon in a court of 
competent junsdiction in anoiher country and predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of ihat other countiy. 
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Amsterdam, The Netherlands, 
June 22,2007 

/s/ David M. Demshur 
David M. Demshur 
President, Chief Executive Offcer and 
Supervisory Director (Principal Executive 
Offcer) 

/si Richard L. Bergrnark 
Richard L. Bergmark 
Executive Vice President. Chief Financial 
Officer, Treasurer and Supervisory Director 

/sí Jacobus Schouten 
Jacobus Schouten 
Supervisory Director 

/s/ Michael C. Kearney 
Michael C. Kearney 
Supervisory Director 

Isí Alexander Vriesendorp 
Alexander Vriesendorp 
Supervisory Director 

/s/ Jan Willem Sodderland 
Jan Willern Sodderland, on behalf of 
Core Laboratories international B.V. 
sole managing director of Core Laboratories N.V. 

is/ Joseph R. Perna 
Joseoh R. Perna 
Sup&visory Director 

/s/ Rene R. Joyce 
Rene R. Joyce 
Supervisory Director 

/si D. lohn Ogren 
D. John Ogren 
Supervisory Director 
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ASSFTS 

C O R E  LABORATORIES N.V. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

December 31,2006 and 2005 
(In thousands of USD, except share and per share  data) 

Ref. 2006 2005 
. - . - 

NON-CURENT ASSETS 
Property. plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Investment in associates 
Deferred income tax asset 
Derivative financial instrument 
Other financial assets 
Other asscts 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Iiiventories 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Incomc tax receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

Non-current asset held Tor sak  

TOTAL ASSETS 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Preference shares. EUR 0.04 OBI value in 2006 and EUR 0.01 par value in 2005; 

3,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding 

100,000,000 shares authorized. 25.608.5 I I issued and 23,225.12 I outstanding at 2006 
and 26.797.354 issued and 25.774.339 outstanding at 2005 

. 

Cornmon shares, EUR 0.04 par value in 2006 and EUR 0.01 par vdue in 2005; 

Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Other reserves 
Treasury shares (at cost), 2,383,390 at 2006 md 1,023,015 at 2005 

Minority interest 
TOTAL EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Borrowings 
Conversion option 
Derivative financial instrument 
Incorne tax payable 
Deferreù income tax liabiljties 
Provisions 

TOTAL NON-CURENT LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Borrowings 
Other taxes paydbie 
Payroll and social wcurity contributions 
Other accmed expenses 
Discontinued operations 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITV 

5 6 87.734 S 81.342 
6 184.415 184.617 
7 890 1.141 
17 28,895 25.901 
8 96.620 
9 6,730 4.773 

955 860 
406,239 298.634 

10 30.199 29,104 
II 11,671 10,739 
I I  5,897 94 
I 2  112.055 99,129 

54.223 13,743 
214.045 152.809 

13 3.224 

5 623.508 $ 451,443 

1.450 474 
66.571 144.690 

223.472 15 1.091 
(393) (2.439) 

(174,834) (30,557) 
116,266 263,259 

1.446 1,065 
14 117.712 264.324 

15 
8 
8 68.210 

206,755 85.580 
96,620 

16 12:882 7.036 
17 4,233 5,204 
18 26,129 18.653 

414.829 116,473 

20 
I 5  

37.460 32.557 
2,762 2,544 

10.761 6.750 
19 24.707 17.371 

15.277 10,624 
800 

90.967 70.646 

505.796 187.119 

S 623,508 $ 451.443 

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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CORE LABORATORIES N.V. 
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended December 31,2006 and 2005 
(in thousands of USD, except per share data) 

Ref. 2006 2005 

REVENUES: 
Services 
Saks  

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of services 
Cost of sales 

CROSS PROFIT 

General and administrative expenses 
Other expense (income), net 

OPERATING PROFIT 
Finance costs 
Vanance in fair value of derivative instruments 
Share of pmfit/(loss) of associates 
Profit before income tax expense 
Income tax expense 
Income from continuing operations 
Loss fmm discontinued operations (net of tax beneRt of $285) 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 

Attributable to: 

Equity holden ofthe parent 
Minority interest , 

EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION: 

Basic earnings per share from continuinp operations 
Basic earnings per share kom discontinued operations 
Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 
Diluted earnings per share 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING 
Basic 
Diluted 

$ 430.1 18 $ 3G7.401 
145;57 1 I lui066 
575,689 483,467 

21.23 305.266 279.0 18 
21123 1 181818 102;084 

I5 1,605 102,365 

21.23 37,115 38,110 
24 11) 685 

I19.601 63,570 
26 9.993 13.887 
8 7,170 
7 ( 123) 36 

102,315 49,719 
27 29.814 13,453 

72.501 36,266 
(506) 

S 72,501 $ 35,760 

$ 72,381 $ 35,817 
I20 (571  

$ 72,501 5 35,760 

1 
S 2.88 $ 1.39 

0.02 co 
28 $ 2.88 $ 1.37 , 

i I \_>  
5 2.70 $ 1.30 

$ 2.70 $ 1.28 c2 
%I 

o,o2 c9 
28 

28 25.157 26,038 
28 26,888 28,008 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidaied Financial Statements. 



CORE LABORATORIES N.V. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOCNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSE 

For the Years Ended December 31,2006 snd  2005 
(In thousando of USD) 

Ref. 2006 2005 

Pens i o n 
Net income recopnized directly in eqUitY 
Profit for the year 
Total recognized income for the year 

Attributable to: 
Equity holders of the parent 
Minority interest 

2,357 (2.643) 
2.357 (2,643) 

72,501 35,760 
$ 74,858 $ 33,117 

19 

I 

$ 74,738 $ 33,174 
120 (57) 

$ 74,858 $ 33.117 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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CORE LABORATORIES N.V. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F  CASH FLOWS 

For the Years Ended December31,2006 and 2005 
(In thousands of USD) 

Ref. 2006 2005 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: ~~~ ~ 

Profit before income fax expense 
Loss from discontinued operations, net oftax 
Profit from continuing operations 
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Equity in (earnings) Ioss of associates 
Stock-based compensation 
Finance casts 
Gain on s a k  of assets 
Fair value (gains)/losses on other financial assets 
Fair vahe  (gains)/losses on derivative instrumenfs 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
&her assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Other long-term liabilities 

Cash provided by operating activities 
Interest paid 
Income tax paid 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM W'VESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital expenditures 
Patents and other intangibles 
Proceeds from sak  of assets 
Minority interest - business combination 
Interest received 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM FMANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Repayment of debt borrowings 
Proceeds from debt borrowings 
Stock options exercised 
Repurchase of common shares 
Proceeds from sak  of warrants 
Purchase of exchangeable note hedge 
Debt refinancing costs 

Net cash used in financing activities 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 

5 
6 
7 
23 
26 
5 
9 
8 

I 2  
10 

20 

5 
6 
5 

15 
15 
14 
14 
8 
8 
15 

S 102,315 $ 49.719 
506 

I02,3 I5 49,213 

16,891 15,938 
468 694 
I24 (36) 

5,943 9,240 
9,993 13.887 

(14,180) (4,596) 
(2,643) 267 
( I  ,137) 6.324 . .  
6,254 3,926 

10,234 (4,427) 
14,297 12,270 

154.578 99.052 

(24,415) (I 9,095) 
(266) (103) 

2,714 3,930 
261 53 
457 402 

(21,249) (14,8 13) 

( I 3  1,504) (108,982) 

14.853 8,215 
(251,088) (41,446) 

56.500 

342,000 82,000 

(86,'250) 

(6 2,4 8 5 ) 
(6,996) (488) 

(60,70 i) 
40.480 (2.2871 
I3;743 I6103Ó 

S 54,223 S 13,743 

The accompanying notes are an integral pari ofthese Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CORE LABORATORIES N.V. 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2006 

I .  DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Core Laboratories N.V. ("Core Laboratones", "we", "our" or  *'US'') is a Netherlands limited liability company incorporated and 
domiciled in Tbe Netherlands. The address of the registered office is Herengracht 424. 1017 BZ Amsterdam, The Netherlands. We 
were established in 1936 and are one of the world's leading providers of pmpnetary and patented reservoir description, production 
enhancement and reservoir management services to the oil and gas industry. These services are directed toward enabling our clients 10 
improve reservoir performance and increase oil and gas recovery from their producing fields. We have over 70 offices in more than 50 
countries and have approximately 4,600 and 4,500 employees in 2006 and 2005, respectively. We are listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange, These consolidated financial statements were authonzed for issuance by the board of directors on June 27,2007. 

Our business units have been aggregated info three complementary segments which provide products and services for improving 
reservoir performance and increasing oil and gas recovery from new and existing fields: ( I )  Reservoir Description, (2) Production 
Enhancement and (3) Reservoir Management. These business segments provide different services and utilize different technologies. 

- Reservoir Descripiion: Encompasses the characterization of petroleum reservoir rock, fluid and gas samples. We provide 
analytica1 and field services to characterize pmperties of crude oil and petroleum pmducts to the oil and gas industry. 

Production Enhancement: Includes products and services relating 10 reservoir wel1 completions, perforations, stimulations 
and production. We pmvide integrated services to evaluate the effectiveness of wel1 completions and to develop solulions 
aimed at increasing the effectiveness of enhanced oil recovery projects. 

Reservoir Management: Combines and integrates information fmm reservoir descnption and pmduction enhancement 
services to increase production and improve recovery of oil and gas from our clients' reservoirs. 

- 

- 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting poiicies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied 10 al1 the years presented, unless othenvise stated. b.' 

Basis af Preparaiion 
i: 9 

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
endorsed by the European Union ("IFRS") and with Pari 9 Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. The consolidated financial , 
statements have been prepared under the historica1 cosi convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial 

~,~ 
liabilities at fair value through profit or 10%. Our consolidated financial statements had been prepared under Dutch GAAP in previous & periods. See Note Consequences of Firsi Time Adoption of IFRS regarding transition to IFRS. In accordance with article 402 Book 2 $3 

"..I of the Netherlands Civil Code the income statement in the Company Financial Statements is presented in abbreviated form 

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. If also 
requires management 10 exercise its judgment in the process of applying our accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexily, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are 
disclosed in N o k  4. 

Standards and Interprelations Io En'siing Standards thai are nolyel effeciive and have nol been Eurly Adopied 

The following interpretations to existing standards have been published thai are mandatory for our accounting periods beginning 

IFRS 1. Financial Instniments: Disclosures, and the complementary Amendment to IAS I ,  Presentation of Financial 
Statements - Capital Disclosures. IFRS 7 introduces new disclosures relating 10 financial instruments. This standard does 
not have any impact on the classification and valuation of our financial instruments. 
IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2 (effective for annual periods beginning on or  aRer May I .  2006). IFRIC 8 requires 
consideration of transactions involving the issuance of equity insirumenis - where the identifiable consideration received 
is less than the fair value of the equity instruments issued - to establish whether or nol they fall within the scope of IFRS 
2. We wilt apply IFRIC 8 from January 1,2007, bui i1 is nol expected to have any impact on our accounts; 

on or aRer May I ,  2006 or later penods that we have not early adopted 
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IFRIC 9, Reassessment o f  embedded derivatives (effective for annual periods beginning on or after June I, 2006). IFRIC 
9 requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative is  required to be separated from the host contract and 
accounted for,as a derivative when the entity first becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is pmhibited 
unless there i s  a change in the l e n s  of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that othenvise would be 
required under the contract, in  which case reassessment i s  required. As none o f  the group entities have changed the terms 
of their contracts. IFRIC 9 i s  not relevant to our operations, and 
IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impainnent (effective for annual periods beginning on or aller November I ,  
2006). IFRIC 10 pmhibiu the impainnent losses recognized in an interim period on goodwill, inveshnents in equity 
instruments and investments in  financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. We wil1 
apply IFRIC 10 from January 1,2007, bui i1 is nol expected to have any impact on our accounts. 
IFRIC I I ,  IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or aRer March I. 
2007). IFRIC I I  provides additional guidance on whether transactions should be accounted for as equity-settled or as 
cash-settled under the requirements o f  IFRS 2 and share-based payment arrangements that involve two or more entities 
within the Same group. We wil1 apply IFRIC 10 from January I ,  2007, but it i s  not expected 10 have any impact on our 
accounts. 
IFRIC 12, Sekice Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January I .  2008). This 
Interpretation gives guidance on the accounting by operators for public-to-private service concession arrangements. This 
guidance wil1 nol have any impact on our accounts. 

Inferprefofions 10 Exisring Sfondords fhof are nol yef Effecffve ond nor Relevonf for  Our Operalions 
The following interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory for our accounting periods beginning 

IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 
(effective from March 1, 2006). IFRIC 7 provides guidance on how 10 apply requirements of IAS 29 in a repodng period 
in  which an entity identifies the existence o f  hyperinflation in the economy of its functional Currency, when the economy 
was not hyperinflationary in the prior period. As none o f  the group entities have a Currency o f  a hyperinflationary 
economy as its functional Currency, IFRIC 7 i s  not relevant to our operations. 

on or aiïer May I ,  2006 or later penods bui are not relevant for our operations: 

Principlples of Consolidofion 

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements inciude the accounts of Core Laboratones N.V. and i t s  subsidiaries. 
Subsidianes are al1 entities (including special purpose entities) over which we have the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies generally accompanying a shareholder o f  more than one half o f  the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether we control another entity. Subsidiaries are 
fully consolidated from the date on which control i s  transferred to US. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between consolidated companies are eliminated. Unrealized 
losses are also eliminated but considered an impainnent indicator o f  the asset transferred. Accounting policies o f  subsidianes have 
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by US. The equity method of accounting is  used to 
record our interest in investments in which we have less than a majority interest and do not exercise significant control. We use the 
cos1 method 10 record certain other investments in which we own less than 20% of the outstanding equity and do not exercise 
significant control. We record minority interest associated with consolidated subsidiaries that are less than 100% owned. 

Tronsocfions ond Minoriry Inferests 

We apply a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with parties external to US. Disposals to minority 
interests result in  gains and losses for US that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from minority interests result in 
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired o f  the carrying value o f  net assets of the 
subsidiary 

Business Combinofions 

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition o f  subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is measured as 
the fair value o f  the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date o f  exchange, plus C O S ~ S  

directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective o f  the extent o f  any minority interest. The 
excess of the cost o f  acquisition over the fair value o f  our share o f  the identifiable net asseis acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the 
cos1 o f  acquisition i s  less than the fair value of the net assets o f  the subsidiary acquired, the difference is  recognized directly in the 
income statement. 



Foreign Currencies 

Our functional and presentation currency i s  the U.S. Dollar ("USD") which i s  the currency of the pnmary economic environment 
in which we operate. Al1 inter-company tinancing, transactions and cash flows o f  our subsidiaries are transacted in USD. 
Additionally, certain significant operations transact contractual business denominated in the USD. Accordingly, our foreign entities 
remeasure monetary assets and liabilities to USD at year-end exchange rates, while non-monetaiy items are measured at historical 
rates. Revenues and expenses are remeasured at the applicable month-end rate, except for depreciation and amortization and ceriain 
components of cost o f  sales, which are measured at historical rates. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated info the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates o f  the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end 
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated income 
statement. 

Segmenf Reporfing 

A business segment i s  a group o f  assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject 10 risks and 
returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services 
within a panicular economic environment that i s  subject 10 risks and returns that are different fmm those o f  segments operating in 
other economic environments. 

Properfy, Planf and Equipmenf 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less subsequent depreciation and impainnent. except for land which i s  
shown at historical cost less impairment. Historical wst includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items. Depreciation i s  caldtlated on al1 assets, excluding land, using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful h e s  o f  the 
related assets as follows: 

Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Machinery and equipment 

3 - 40 years 
3 - 10 years 

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred and major renewals and improvernents are capitalized 
and depreciated over their useful life. Historical cost and accumulated depreciation applicable to assets retired or sold are removed 
from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss i s  included in operations. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each baiance sheet date. We review our 
assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net book value o f  propeny, plant and equipment may 
not be recovered over its remaining service life. We evaluate our property, plant and equipment for impairment if a triggering event 
occurs which may indicate that an impainnent is pmbable. A n  impainnent loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying amount is higher than an asset's fair value less COSIS to sell and value in use. For the purpose ofassessing impairment, assets 
are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). The determination of fair 
value requires the estimation of future cash flows, and such estimates can change based on market conditions, technological advances 
in the industry or changes in regulations goveming the industry. Assets that previously may have suffered an impairment are reviewed 
for possible reversal of the impainnent. 

Infangible Assets 

Intangibles include patents, trademarks, and trade names and are measured at cost. Intangibles with finite lives are amortized using 
the straight-line method based on the estimated useful l i fe o f  the intangible. Intangibles with indefinite hes ,  which consist pnmarily 
of corporale trade names, are evaluated for impairment annually. The useful lives o f  intangible assets range from three to thirty years. 

We record goodwill as the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in acquisitions accountcd for 
under the purchase method of accounting and i s  carried at historica1 cast less accumulated impaiment losses. Gains and losses on the 
disposal o f  an entity include the carrying amount o f  goodwill relating to the entity sold. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries i s  
included in intangible asseis. Goodwill on acquisitions o f  associates i s  included in investments in associaies and is tested for 
impairment as part o f  the overall balance. We test goodwill for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate that 
a potential impaiment has occurred. Goodwill i s  recorded in the. cash-generating units expected to benefit from the business 
combination in which the goodwill arose. Groups o f  cash-generating units equivalent to the segment level reporting are used for the 
purpose of goodwill impairment testing. An impainnent loss i s  recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount i s  the higher o f  an asset's fair value less COSS to sell and value in use. 



Research and development expenditures are recognized in the profit and loss account as incurred. Expenses incurred for 
development projects are capitalized as a component of manufacturing pnce if the projects in question are likely to be commercially 
and technically viable (i.e. i t  i s  likely that economic benefits wil1 be realized and the expenses can be reliably estimated). Capitalized 
development expenses are amortized as soon as the commercial production process has commenced, with amortization being based on 
the estimated useful life o f  the asset. 

Asoriales 

Associates are al1 entities over which we have significant influence bui nol control, generally accompanying a shareholding o f  
between 20% and 50% o f  the voting nghts. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are 
initially recognized at cost. Our share o f  i ts  associates' post-acquisition profits or Iosses i s  recognized in the consolidated income 
statement. When our share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds OUT interest in the associate, including any other unsecured 
receivables. we do not recognize funher losses, unless we have incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
Accounting policies o f  associates have been changed where necessary to ensure wnsistency with our policies. 

Derivarive Financial InsrrumenIs 

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at 
their fair value. The method o f  recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative i s  designated as a hedging 
instrument. Our derivative insirumenis do nol qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value o f  the denvative instruments are 
recognized immediately in the income statement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets consisis of cash surrender value of l i fe insurance which i s  held at fair v a k  

Inventoria 

Inventories consist o f  manufactured goods, materials and supplies used for sales or services to clients. Inventones are stated at the 
lower o f  cost or net realiyble value, and are reflected net of valuation reserves. The COSI o f  manufacfured goods and work in progress 
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labor, other direct cosis and related production overheads (based on normal operating 
capacity). It excludes borrowing COS~S. Net realizable value is the estimaied selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
applicable variable selling expenses. Inventory costs are recorded at standard wst  which approximates the first-in. first-out method. 

Accounls Receivable 

Trade accnunts receivable are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost. which generally equals their 
invoiced amountr. Significant financial difficulties o f  the debtor, probability that the debtor wil1 enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganization. and defauli or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is  impaired. A provision for 
impainment o f  trade receivables is established based on our review o f  this information along with our cument aging o f  client receivables 
outstanding. The amount o f  the provision i s  the difference between the asset's canying amount and the present value o f  estimated future 
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The canying amount of the asset i s  reduced through the use o f  an 
allowance account, and the amount o f  the loss is recognized in the income statement in Cost o f  Sales or Services. When a trade 
receivable i s  uncollectible, it i s  written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries o f  amounts 
previously written off are Credited against bad debt expense in the consolidated income statement in Cosi of Sales or Services. 

Cash and Cash Equivalenis 

Cash and cash equivalents include al1 short-tem, highly liquid instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or 
less and time deposits and money market investment accounts. These items are camed at cost, which approximates market value. 

Non CurrenI Assets HeId for  Sale 

Non-current assets held for sak are classified as held for sak if their carrying amount wil1 be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets held for sale are canied on the consolidated balmce sheet at the 
lower o f  the net canying value o f  the asset or its fair value leis cosi to sell. Depreciation i s  ceased for non current assets classified as 
held forsale. 



Share Copital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental COS~S directly anributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in 
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. When we repurchase our own equity share capital (treasury shares), the 
consideration paid, including any directly aitnbutable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity aitributable to 
our equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received 
(net of any directly attnbutable incremental transaction costs and the related income fax effects) is  included in equity attributable to our 
equity holders. We revalue our common stock at the year end rate for changes in the exchange rate from the Euro par value to the 
reportable currency. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net o f  transaction COSIS incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized 
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value i s  recognized in the income statement 
over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

The fair value o f  the liability portion o f  the convertible notes i s  determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non- 
convertible note. This amount i s  recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis until extinguished on convenion or maturity o f  the 
notei. The remainder o f  the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless we have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months aAer the balance sheet date. 

Operotional ond Financial Leoses 

Lease contracts for which a large pari o f  the risks and rewards incidental to ownenhip of the assets does not l i e  with the Company, 
are recognized as operational leases. Obligations under operational leases are recognized on a straight-line basis in the profit and loss 
account over the term of the contract, taking into account reimbursements received from the lessor. 

The Company leases pari o f  the machinery and has, to a large extent, the risks and rewards incidental to ownership o f  these assets. 
When the lease contract i s  entered into, the assets are capitalized on the balance sheet at their fair value, or the cash value o f  the 
minimum lease terms, if lower. The lease amounts payable are split on an annuity basis between a redemption and interest pan. based 
on a fixed interest rate. The relating lease obligations, excluding the interest element, are taken up under long-term liabilities. The 
interest component o f  the lease term is recognized in the profit and 10% account. The relating assets are depreciated over the remaining 

b+ 

i,,o 
economic l i f e  or lease te&, ifshorter. The balance in capital lease at December 31,2006 was $10,000. I 

Oeferred Income Toxes c3 
co 

I 
We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected hiture tax consequences of events that have been included in the b..! 

C? 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and the tax basis of assets ‘Ii 

and liabilities using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and laws in effect for the year in which the asset is  recovered or the ‘‘-1 
liability i s  settled. We include interest and penalties from tax judgments in income tax expense. 

consolidated financial statements or tax returns. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to !he extent that i t  i s  probable that future taxable profit wil1 be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there i s  a legally enforceable right 
to offset current fax assets against cument tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the Same fiscal authority. 

However. deferred income tax is nol accounted for if i t  arises from initia1 recognition o f  an asset or liability in a transaction other 
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit ar loss. 

Deferred income tax i s  provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the 
timing of the reversal ofthe temporary difference is  controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference wil1 nor 
reverse in the foreseeable fumre 

Pensions ond &her Poslretirement Benejits 

We operate various pension rchemes. One scheme i s  a defined benetit plan which is funded through payments to insurance 
companies or trustee-administered funds, detenined by periodic actuarial calculations. We have both a defined benefit plan and 



defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which we pay fixed contributions into a separate entity. 
We have no legal or constructive obligations 10 pay funher contributions. A defined benefit plan defines an amount o f  pension benefit 
that an employee wil1 receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. 

We maintain a defined benefit pension plan for substantially al1 of our Dutch employees. We recognize net periodic pension costs 
associated with this plan in income from current operations and the liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet i s  the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. together with adjustments for 
recognized actuarial gains or losses and past service cosis. We recognize actuarial gains and losses outside o f  profit or 10% in the 
period in which they occur. Past-service COSIS are recognized immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are 
conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service 
COSIS are amonized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The pmjected benefit obligation and fair value o f  plan assets 
requires the use o f  actuarial assumptions and estimates which are calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. The present value o f  the defined benefit obligation i s  determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows 
using interest rates o f  high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the Currency in which the benefits wil1 be paid and that 
have terms to maturity appmximating 10 the term8 of the related pension liability. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Furlhermore, we sponsor several defined contribution plans for the benefit o f  our employees. For defined contribution plans, we 
pay contributions to trusts that invest the employer's and parlicipants' contributions as directed by the participants in the plan. We have 
no funher payment obligations during the period in which the contribution was made. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset 
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when there i s  a present legal or wnstructive obligation as a result of a past event, i t  i s  probable that an 
outflow o f  resources wil1 be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Pmvisions are nol recognized 
for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax rate which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation, i f  the 
amount or time is reasonably determinable. 

Revenue Rerognition 

Revenues are recognized as services are completed or as product title i s  transferred and are measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates. Al1 advance client 
payments are classified as unearned revenues until services are provided or product title i s  transferred. We recognize revenue when we 
determine that the following criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurred or services have 
been rendered; (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from long-term contracts 
are recorded as services are rendered in proporlion to the work performed. Al1 known or anticipated losses on contracts are provided 
for currently. Revenues are recorded exclusive of taxes. Training and consulting service revenues are recognized as the services are 
perfomed. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

We issue stock-based compensation as a form o f  compensation for certain employees. This i s  accounted for under IFRS 2, "Share- 
Based Payment". This statement requires compensation COSIS related to share-based payments, including stock options, to be 
recognized in the consolidated income statement based on their fair values. The expense is recognized over the requisite service period 
of the award. 

We operate a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans. The fair value o f  the employee services received in 
exchange for the grant of the options is  recognized as an expense. The total amount 10 be expensed over the vesting period is  
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact o f  any non-market vesting conditions (for 
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of 
options that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, we revise our estimates of the number o f  options that are expected to 
vest. We recognize the impact o f  the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to 
equity. The proceeds received net of any directly anributable transaction COS~S are credited to common stock and paid-in capital when 
the options are exercised 

Earnings Per Share 

We compute basic eamings per common share by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamings per common and potential common share include 
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additional shares in the weighted average share calculations associated with the incremental effect o f  dilutive employee stock options, 
restricted stock awards and contingently issuable shares. 

Leases 

Leases in which a significant portion o f  the risks and rewards ofownenhip are retained by the lessor are classified as operating 
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net ofany incentives received from the iessor) are charged 10 the income statement on 
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

Dividend Dislribution 

We have not distnbuted dividends on our common shares and management does nol intend to distribute dividends in the 
foreseeable future. 

TRANSISTION ro IFRSI CHANGE I N  ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

These are the first consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of IFRS in 
which the comparative figures for 2005 have been adjusted. Prior to this, we reported in accordance with the requirements of Dutch 
GAAP. Our transition date i s  January I, 2005. In the transition to IFRS, the transition rules of IFRS No. 1 First-Time Adoption of 
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS I") were applied, which are applicable to the first time adoption of IFRS by 
companies in their financial statements for the financial year beginning on or afier lanuary I, 2004. The underlying assumption is that 
IFRS has to be applied retrospectively. As a retrospective approach in nol possible in al1 cases, IFRS 1 includes a number o f  
compulsory exceptions and a number ofoptional exemptions. We reviewed and considered each optional exemption provided by IFRS 
I and have listed and explained the exemptions applicable to US below and al1 other exemptions provided by IFRS I are nol relevant 
and have not been applied. For a reconciliation of the comparative figures for 2005 with Dutch GAAP, see Note Consequences o/ 
Firsi Time Adoplion oJlFRS. 

Had we continued using Dutch GAAP to prepare our 2006 financial statements, the total equity that we may have reported could 
possibly have been negative. Due to the IFRS accounting treatment for mergers and acquisitions, we are able to add back the 
previously amortized goodwill which had the effect o f  increasing our shareholden equity kom what may have been reported if we had 
used Dutch GAAP causing that equity under IFRS treatment to be positive in al1 of the reported periods. The increased shareholders 
equity wil1 enable US to continue to repurchase shares, including the shares referred 10 in Note 14 Equity and Note 22 Commitments 
and Contingencies. 

Business Combinalions before Ihe Opening Consolidated Balance SheeI under IFRS 
IFRS 1 permits application of IFRS No 3 Business Combinations ("IFRS 3") to business combinations that look place before the 

IFRS transition date, inchding the possibility to capitalize goodwill that has already been charged to equity. In line with the full 
adoption of IFRS, we have retrospectively applied IFRS 3 to al1 business combinations which have taken place since Apnl 1997. As a 
consequence, al1 goodwill that was amortized since 1997 under Dutch GAAP ($169.2 million) has been reinstated to the intangible 
asset balance out ofequity at January I. 2005. In addition, the requirements o f l A S  36 and IAS 38 have been applied retrospectively 
from 1997. Within the context of the transition to IFRS, the book value of goodwill on the transition date was reviewed for 
impairment at year end and each of the years from the date ofthe fint application of lFRS 3. 

Defned BenefI Pension Plans 
For the valuation ofdefined benefit pension plans, the value of  the net pension liability on the IFRS transition date can be used. 

We have employed this provision. Al1 actuarial gains and losses nol yet recognized as ofJanuary I, 2005 under Dutch GAAP ($0.5 
million) wil1 be charged nét oftax to equity (impact o f  $0.3 million). 

Slock-Bmed Compensalion 
IFRS I permits application oflFRS No 2 Share-based Payment ("IFRS 2") to the options assigned before, on or aíîer November 7. 

2002 or solely to the share option plans grarited after November 7,2002 which have nol yet been exercised or implemented on January 
I, 2005. We have opted forthe latter. 

3. FINANCIAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

We are exposed to a number of financial risks inherent in our day to day operations. These nsks are connected with the effects o f  
movements in exchange rates, interest rates. credits and liquid assets. Management does not believe we are exposed to risks to sufice 
entering into hedging or derivative contracts for recurring business operations. To  hedge our economic risk associated with the 
convertible notes we issued. we entered into a denvative contract on our own stock. 
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Markd Risk 

We are exposed to market risk, which i s  the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market prices and rates. We have not 
entered, or intend 10 enter, into derivative financial instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. We do not believe that our 
exposure to market risks, which are primarily related to interest rate changes, i s  material. In order to hedge the economic risk 
associated with the convertible notes, we purchased an option on our stock that matches the conversion feature that i s  part o f  the 
convertible notes. 

Currency Risks 

We operate in a number o f  international areas which exposes US to foreign currency exchange rate risk. We do nol currentiy hold 
or issue forward exchange contracis or other derivative instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. Foreign exchange gains and 
losses are the result of fluctuations i n  the U.S. dollar against other currencies and are included in  other expense (income) in  the 
consolidated income statement. We recognized foreign exchange losses in countries where the USD weakened against the local 
currency and we had net monetary liab es denominated in the local currency and in countries where the USD strengthened against 
the local currency and we had net monetary assets denominated in the local currency. We recognized foreign exchange gains in  
countries where the USD strengthened against the local currency and we had net monetary liabilities denominated in the local 
currency and in  countries where the USD weakened against the local currency and we had net monetary assets denominated in the 
local currency. 

Interes1 Rale Risks 

Our policy on interest rate risk is aimed to manage the net financing charges due to fluctuations in market rates of interest. We 
analyze our interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Vanous scenarios are simulated taking into consideration refinancing. renewal 
of existing positions and alternative financing. We are exposed to interest rate risk on our Credit Facility debt, which carries a 
variable interest rate. A t  December 31, 2006, we had no variable rate debt outstanding. The current interest bearing debt at December 
3 I ,  2006 consisu pnmariiy o f  convertible debt with a fixed rate of interest. 

Credit Risk 

Our financial instruments that potentially subject US to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable and a purchased cal1 option on our own common shares. Al1 cash and cash equivalents are on deposit at 
commercial banks or investment firms with significant financial resources. Our trade receivables are with a variety of independent, 
international and national o i l  and gas companies, and the cal1 option i s  with a global investment firn. We consider ourcredit risk to be 
limited due to the creditworthiness and financial resources of these financial institutions and companies and the fair value o f  the 
derivatives assets in the consolidated balance sheet. We limit this risk by only concluding transactions with companies that have a 
high credit rating. The aim is to maintain a customer base where no one customer wil1 account for a significant portion of OUT 

business. We evaluate our estimate o f  the allowance for doubtful accounts on an on-going basis throughout the year. We had no 
clients who provided more than 10% ofour revenues for the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005. 
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Liquidiiy Risks 

Our financing policy is directed at establishing and maintaining an optimal financing structure that takes info account our current 
asset base and our investment program. From time to time, we seek access to the capital markets when external funding is  required. 
Our Treasury Department acts as an in-house bank that internally allocates funds that are raised centrally. Operating companies are 
thus funded thmugh inter-company transactions. To the extent we need outside funding beyond our internally generated free cash flow 
in order to finance investmenis, potential acquisitions and repayment of debt, we have a revolving credit facility that matures in 
December 2010. This may be drawn in  US Dollars up 10 the amount o f  $100 million. At December 31, 2006, no amounts had been 
drawn under this facility. 

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

Use of Eslimafes 

The preparation o f  financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis and utilize our historica1 



experience, as wel1 as various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable in a given circumstance, in order to make these 
estimater. Actual results could differ from our estimates, as assumptions and conditions change. 

The following accounts, among others, require US to use critical estimates and assumptions: 

allowance for doubtful accounts; 

inventory reserves; 

~ depreciation and amortization: 

assumptions used i n  determining obligations for pensions and other postretirement benefits, see footnote 19; 

determining the fair value o f  stock-based compensation. see footnote 23; 

income taxes; and 

impairment testing of long-lived assets, intangibles and gwdwi l l  

- 

- 

Accounting policies relating to these accounts and the nature o f  these estimates are further discussed under the applicable caption. 
For each of these critical estimates it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimater wil1 occur in the short term which 
may impact our financial position or results o f  operations. 

Income T a x a  

We are subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide provision 
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncettain dunng the 
ordinary course of business. We recognize liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates o f  whether additional taxes 
wil1 be due. Where the final fax outcome o f  these maners i s  different k o m  the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences 
wil1 impact the income lar and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 

Fair Value Eslimalion v 
Li l  

The fair value o f  financial instruments that are not traded, in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. We use ' I  

a variety of methods and make assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Information and ~3 
input from dealers are used for long-term debt and the conversion feature and related derivative instruments. Other techniques, such as iQ 

p._> 
The canying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The c3 

fair value o f  financial liabilities for disclosure purposes i s  estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current c3 
L..! 

market interest rate that i s  available to US for similar financial instruments. 

estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. I 

Esiimated Impairmeni of Goodwill 

We annually test whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in N o k  2. The 
recoverable amounts o f  cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the 
use o f  estimates (Note 6): 

I f the estimated gross margin at December 31,2007 had been 10% (for example, 22.5% instead o f  25%) lower than management's 
estimates at December 31,2006, we would nol have recognized any impairment o f  goodwill. 

i f t h e  estimated pre-fax discount rate applied to the discounted cash flows had been 10% (for example, 14.9% instead of 13.5%) 
higher than management's estimates, we would have nol recognized any irnpairment against goodwill, 

5. PROPERTY, PLANT A N D  EQUIPMENT 

The components o f  pmperty, plant and equipment were as follows at December 3 I, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands): 



At January I, 2005 
Historica1 cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book amount 

Year ended Decernber31,2005 
Opening net book amount 
Additions 
Disposals 
Transfers 
Depreciation charge 
Closing net book arnount 

At December31,2005 
Historical cos1 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book amount 

Year ended December 31,2006 
Opening net book amount 
Additions 
Disposals 
Transfers 
Asset held for sale 
Depreciation charge 
Closing net book amount 

At Decernber31,2006 
Historical C O S ~  

Accumulated depreciation 
Net book amount 

Land 

6,002 

6,002 

6,002 
5 

(102) 

5,905 

5.905 

5,905 

5,905 

5,905 

5,905 

5,905 

Machinery and Construction 
Buildings Equipment I n  Progress 

54.429 106.719 2.660 
( I  5,322) (74;866) 
39,107 3 1,853 2,660 

39,107 31,853 2,660 
388 5,954 12,766 

(2:124) ( 13:s 14) 
37,333 33,860 4,244 

54.779 115.576 4.244 
( I  7;446) (8 I ;7 16) 
37,333 33,860 4,244 

37,333 33,860 4,244 
226 8,821 17,718 

2,348 11,949 (14,297) 
(64) ( 194) 

(3,224) 

34,779 39,385 7.665 
( I  ,840) (is,asi) 

Total 

169.810 
(90,188) 

79,622 

79.622 
19.113 
(1.455) 

(15.938) 
8 1,342 

180,504 
(99,162) 
81.342 

81.342 
26,765 

(258) 

(3.224) 
(16.891) 
87,734 

54.066 131,431 7,665 199.067 
(19,287) (92,046) (111,333) t-& 

34.779 39,385 7,665 87,734 ''' 
I 

c-< 
Our propeny, plant and equipment amounts include assets held under capital lease arrangemenu which totaled $0.1 million at cQ 

December 3 I ,  2005. Amortization of these capital l e s e  amounts was $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 3 I, 
2006 and 2005. respectively, and has been included in depreciation expense on the accompanying consolidated income statement. W 
Machinery and equipment included asseis under construction of$6.9 million and $2.5 million forihe years ended December 31,2006 c? 
and 2005, respectively and buildings and improvements included assets under construction of $0.8 million and $1.7 million for the G' 
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In December 2006, we reclassified $3.2 million out of propeny. plant and ',-! 
equipment for a building ihaí is being held for sale. We recorded no impairment charges related to propeny. plant and equipment held 
for use in continuing operations during the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005. 

I 

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, depreciation expense recognized in the income statement is as follows (in 
thousands): 

2006 2005 

Cost of sales and services 
General and administrative 

Total depreciation expense 

$ 14,753 $ 13.834 
2,138 2,104 

$ 16,891 $ 15,938 
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6. I N T A N G I B L E  ASSETS 

The components of intangibles as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are BS follows (in thousands): 

Other 

A t  .lanuary I, 2005 
Cost 
Accumulated amortization 
Net book amount 

Year ended Deeember31,2005 
Opening net book amount 
Additions 
Amortization charge 
Closing net book amount 

Goodwill intangibles Trade Names Total 

$ 179,196 $ 5,855 $ 3,892 $ 188.943 

179.196 2,120 3,892 185,208 
(3,735) (3,735) 

179,196 2, I20 3,892 185,208 
3 I O0 i 03 

(694) (694) 
179,199 1,526 3,892 l84,6 17 

At December31,2005 
Cost 179,199 5,053 3,892 188.144 
Accumulated amortization (3,527) (3,527) 
Net book amount . 179,199 1,526 3,892 184.617 

Year ended December31.2006 
Opening net book &nount 
Additions 
Amortization charge 
Closing net book amount 

A t  December 31,2006 
Cost 
Accumulated amortization 
Net book amount 

179,199 1,526 3,892 184.61 7 
266 266 

(468) (468) 
179,199 1,324 3,892 184.415 

179.199 5.319 3.892 188.410 
(3.995) (3,995) 

$ 179,199 $ 1,324 $ 3,892 $ 184,415 

C? 
c P 

?.J 

2006 200s 
Cross Original Cross 

1 
life in Carry ing Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
years Value Amortization Value Amortization 

Acquired trade secrets 3-20 $ 1,514 $ 1,295 $ 1,514 $ 1.142 13 
Acquired patents and trademarks 5-10 2,603 1,918 2,337 I ,74 I c3 
Agreements not to compete 3-7 810 433 810 317 '...I 
Acquired trade names 5-30 392 349 392 327 
Acquired trade names Indefinite 3,892 3,892 

Total other intangibles and trade names $ 9,211 $ 3,995 $ 8,945 $ 3,527 

For the yean ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, $0.5 mill ion and $0.7 mill ion of amortiration expcnsc was rccognized in 
general and administmtive costs in the income statement, respectively. 

Impoirment 

Certain intangibles. primarily related to trade names, are deemed to have an indefinite life and are not amortized. These assets are 
specific trade names which have been determined wil1 be used and provide future cash flows indefinitely. These intangibles are held 
by the Core Laboratones N.V and are included in an impairment analysis performed at least annually. We performed this impairment 
testing at December 3 I ,  2006 assuming a gross margin of 16%. a growth rate of 5% and a discount rate o f  13.5%. N o  impairment was 
indicated, and therefore, no impainnent has been recorded in 2006. 

We test goodwill for impaimenf af least annually or more îreguently if drcumsrances indicate a porential jmpairment. For 
purposes of this test, we group our cash-generating units ("CGU") 10 a level equivalent to our reportable segments. and compare the 
recoverable amount o f  CGU groupings to their net canying value. Fair value less cos1 to sell i s  determined by estimating the present 



value of pmjected future cash flows discounted using our weighted average cos1 o f  capital. We performed this impaiment testing at 
December 31, 2006. No,impairment was indicated, and therefore, no impaiment has been recorded in 2006. No impaiment losses 
have been reversed in 2006. 

Goodwill is  recorded in our reponabie segments as follows (in thousands): 

2006 2005 

Reservoir Descnption 
Production Enhancement 
Reservoir Management 

Total goodwill 

$ 82,852 $ 82.852 
77,325 77,325 
19,022 19,022 

$ 179,199 $ 179,199 

The key assumptions used for the impaiment calculation are as follows: 

Gmss margin ( I )  
Growth rate(2) 
Discount rate (3) 

Reservoir Production Reservoir 
Description Enhancement Management 

19% 25% 12% 
8% 15% 10% 

13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 

(I) Budgeled @ma rnargin 
(2) Weigincd average grauzh rate u s d  10 s x ~ a p l a t e  cash flows beyand the budget period 
(3) Weighted average COB afcapilal is ussd as he d i m u n i  ratc applicd 10 the cash tlaw projecfions 

These assumptions have been used for the analysis for each CGU grouping. Management detemined the budgeted gross margin 
based on past performance and its expectations OS market development. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with 
the forecasts inciuded in industry reports. The discount rate used is pre-tax. We used cash flow projections based on financial budgets 
approved by management covering a one year period. Cash îlows beyond the first year are extrapolated using the estimated growth 
rates staied above. 

C.' 

$i) 

! 
c3 
,; P 

Ownership p.-) 

Name Legal Seat Percentage cg 
Saybolt Tunisie Tunis, Tunisia 49% i;' 
Saybolt Saudi Arabia Co., Lrd Saudi Arabia 45% .,..I 
Saybolt MED Tunis, Tunisia 49% 
Shanghai SIC - Saybolt Commodities Surveying Co Ltd. China 50% 

7. ASSOCIATES 

The investments in associates comprise the financial infomation o f  the Sollowing companies: 

I 

These subsidianes are not consolidated since we do not exercise decisive control over their operations. For Saybolt Saudi Arabia 
Co., L T D  we share in the profit at 45% however, we are responsible for 100% o f  the losses. At December 31, 2006 we had total 
receivables from these subsidiaries o f  $0.3 mill ion and total payabies to these subsidianes of $0.2 million. 
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Associates consisted of the following (in thousands): 

Asseis 
2005 
Sayboli Tunisie 549 
Saybolt Afrique SARL 429 
Saybolt Saudi Arabia Co., L td  1,097 
Sayboli M E D  664 
Shanghai SIC - Saybolt Commodities 
Surveying Co Ltd. 558 

2006 
Saybolt Tunisie 74 1 

Saybolt MED 422 
Shanghai SIC 1 Saybolt Commodities 
Surveying Co Lid. 476 

Saybolt Saudi Arabia Co., L td  988 

Liabilities 

147 
30 

43 1 
368 

70 

187 
414 
126 

32 

Revenues Prol i t  I (Loss) 

396 17 
3 

1,971 (39) 
782 91 

277 12 

702 203 

747 30 

34 (56) 

1,567 (92) 

2006 2005 

Beginning o f  the year s 1,141 $ 1,107 

Share o f  (loss) income (123) 36 
Disposal o f  investment (128) (2) 

I End o f  the year $ a90 $ 1,141 

During 2006, we sold Saybolt Afrique SARL in which we held a 49% ownership in for $0.1 mill ion and wrote-off the remaining 
equity which resulted in a loss of $0.1 million 

8. DERIVATIVE F I N A N C I A L  INSTRUMENTS 

F.* Derivative financial instruments consisted o f  the following (in thousands): 

i i) 

I 

C? 

2006 2005 
Asseis Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

Warrant $ $ 68,210 s -  $ -  i n  

Cal1 option 96,620 p..) 
Total S 96,620 b 164,830 $ -  $ -  i> 

q> 
‘.-I 

I Convertible notes-equity option 96,620 

In  November 2006, we issued convertible notes ihat are convertible into our common shares if certain conditions are met. 
Additionally, we purchased a cal1 option on our own common shares to hedge ihe conversion feature o f  the convertible notes and 
recorded this as an asset. We also sold a warrant on our common shares as part o f  this transaction. Al1 o f  these instwments are camed 
on the balance sheet at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded directly through the income statement. See Note 15 
Borrowings for further discussions. The full fair value o f  our derivative instruments are classified as a non-current asset or liabiiity 
since ihe remaining maturity of the hedged item is  more than 12 months. The fair value o f  these instruments was calculated using a 
Black-Scholes model. The significant assumptions used in determining the fair value at December 3 I, 2006 for the warrant, cal1 option 
and convertible notes equity option are as follows: 

Convertible N o t a  
Warrant  Cal1 Option Equity Option 

Expiration date January, 25,2012 October, 31,201 I October, 31, 201 I 
Stock orice at vaiuation date s ai.00- $ ai.00 ~a a I .oo- 
Instrument’s strike price CE 127.56 $ 94.76- $ 94.76- 
Stock volatility 38.2% 4 I .5% 41.5%- 
Interest rate 5.15% 5.15% 5.15% 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value o f  the dcrivatives assets in the consolidated balance 
sheet. 
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9. O T H E R  F I N A N C I A L  ASSETS 

Financial assets consisied ofthe following (in thousands): 

2006 Additions Usage/Disposal 2005 

Cash surrender vahe o f  l i fe insurance $ 6,730 1,957 $ 4,773 

Life insurance policies with cash surrender value have been purchased by US to assist in funding deferred compensation 
arrangements with certain employees. These policies are carried at market value. 

10. INVENTORIES 

Inventones consisted ofthe following at December 31,2006 and 2005 (in thousands): 

Finished goods 
Parts and materials 
Work in progress 

Total inventories 

Inventories, net 
Less ~ valuation reserves 

2006 2005 

$ 24,747 $ 22,896 
6,749 7,381 
1,238 1,183 

32,734 3 I .460 
2,535 2,356 

Ia 10,199 $ 29.104 

The cost o f  inventones recognized as expense and included in Cost o f  Saks was $69.3 mill ion and $59.2 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respeclively. We include freight costs incurred for shipping inventory to our clients in the C.ost of 
Sales caption i n  the accompanying consolidaied income statement. 

LI. PREPAID AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS A N D  INCOME T A X  RECEIVABLE 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are compnsed primarily o f  prepaid insurance, value added taxes and rents. 

Income tax receivable relates to estimated tax pre-payments made in excess o f  actual tax liabilities. These receivables are due back 
as refunds from the respective taxing authorities. 

12. TRADE A N D  OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Traded and other receivables consisted o f  the following at December 31,2006 and 2005 (in thousands): 

Trade receivables 
Other receivables 

Total receivables 

Receivables, net 
Less - valuation reserves 

2006 2005 

104.91 5 94.384 
11,481 9,271 

116.396 103.655 
4.341 4,526 

112,055 99,129 

The carrying value o f  kade and other receivables approximates their fair values al December 31,2006 and 2005. 

We had approximately $1.0 mill ion and $2.5 mill ion of receivables wrilten-off as uncollectible in 2006 and 2005. respectively. 



13. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

A t  December 31, 2006 we held a building for sak with a net carrying value o f  approximately $3.2 million. The net carrying value 
is  less than the current fair value and is expected to be recovered through a sak transaction. I 

14. EQUITY 

Treasury Shares 

On October 10, 2002, we began 10 repurchase our shares under a share repurchase program approved by shareholders in 
connection with our initia1 public offering in September 1995. The program has continued to be extended fo ra  penod of 18 months at 
each of our annual shareholder meetings authorizing the purchase of up to 10% o f  our issued shares. The cancellation of shares has 
also been approved by shareholders a1 prior shareholder meetings. The repurchase o f  shares i n  the open market i s  at the discretion of 
management pursuant to shareholder authorization. From ihe activation of the share repurchase program through December 3 I, 2006, 
we have repurchased 13,231,837 shares for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $410.8 million. or an average price of 
$31.05 per share and have cancelled 10,848,447 shares at a cos1 o f  $236.0 million. We are incorporated in The Netherlands and under 
the Dutch Commercial Code, a corporalion can hold a maximum of 10% o f  their issued shares in treasury. Under the program, we 
were authorized to repurchase up to the lesser of 10% o f  our issued common shares or freely distributable reserves. At  December 31. 
2006, we had the authority 10 repurchase 158,736 additional shares under our stock repurchase program. Subsequent to year end, we 
have repurchased the remaining shares at a total C O S ~  o f  approximately $16.8 million. On April 2, 2007 at our annual shareholders 
meeting, our shareholden gave US the authonty to repurchase a funher 10% of our issued shares fo ra  period of 18 months ending on 
October 2, 2008. 

The number of treasuw shares reported in our balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 include shares i n  our capital held by our 
subsidiaries Core Labomtories LP and Core Laboralories Holding Inc. Reference is made to fwmote Note 22 Commitments and 
Contingencies in respect of a contingent asset and a contingent liability relating to such shares, each for an amount equal to ihe 
acquisition pnce of such share o f  $ 167.5 million, increased with statutory interest as from the date o f  acquisition of such shares. 

I n  lune 2006, our shareholders approved a change to the par value per share fmm EUR 0.01 to EUR 0.04. As the result of the 
change in par valuc an increase in common shares occurred for S I  .O million which was charged 10 OUT paid-in capital account. 

t+ 
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Additional ï o t a l  I 

ca 
Numbrr of Common Paid-In Retained Othrr Tres~ury Minorily Shareholdrrs' CD 

Shares Shares Capilal Earnings ReseNes Stock Inlcrest Eqdhl 
BALANCE, January I, 2005 

under Dutch GAAP 26.201.846 $ 497 S 136.176 $ (27,072) S . $ (41.271) $ 1.069 $ 69.399 ' . .  
ENect of adoplion of IFRS 
BALANCE. January I, 2005 26,201,846 

i42.346 
115.274 

. .  . 

(41,271) 
168.396 PL) 

1.069 237,795 C 3  
8,215 i:, 
9.240 
8,819 '" 
8,327 

(4 1,446) 

Stock options exercised 
Stock-based awards issued 

655,255 
385.753 

Si819 
8,327 

Stock-bmd compensalion 
TU benefil of stock options exercised 
Repurchases of common shares 
Cancellation ofcommon shares 
Pension adjustment 
Currency translation adjustment- pension 
Minority interest. business combinalion 
Net income 
RALANCE. December 31.2005 25,774.339 
Stock options exercised 1,023,754 
Stock-based awards issued 264,400 
Tax benefit of stock options exercised 
Repurchases of common shares (3,837.372) 
Change in par value 
Cancellation ofcommon shares 
Pension adjustment 
Currency translation adjustment- pension 
Minority interest. business combinalion 

(1,468.51 5)  (4 1,446) 
52.160 (23) (52,137) 

(2,643) 
204 

12.643) 
m d  

- 
(2.439) 

35.8 I7 
15 1,091 474 144.690 

2n 14,833 
(30.557) 

3 5,940 
8,872 

5.943 
8.872 

( 2 5  i . o w  

2,357 

26 I 261 
(311) 

(25 1.088) 
977 (977) 
(24) (106,787) 106,811 

Net income 72.381 120 72,501 
BALANCE. December 31,2006 23,225,121 $1.450 S 66,571 $223.472 26 (393) S(174.834) I 1.446 6 117,712 



Other Reserves i s  compnsed of adjustments directly to equity 

Pension - 
Restricied Translation Total 

Balance at January I ,  2005 $ -  $ -  $ 
Pension adiustment (2.643) í2.643ì . . ~, , ~ . ~  ., 
Currency translation adjustment 204 204 
Balance at December 3 I, 2005 (2,643) 204 (2,439) 

Pension adjustment 2,357 2,357 
Currency translation adjustment (31 I) (311) 
Balance at December 3 1,2006 (286) - 

15. BORROWINGS 

Debt at December 3 I, 2006 and 2005 i s  summarized in the following table (in thousands): 
2006 

$ 206,753 Senior Exchangeable Notes 
Credit Facility 

Other indebtedness 2,754 
209,517 

Less - short-tem debt included in other indebtedness 2,654 
108 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net $ 206,755 

Finance lease obligations 10 

Total debt and capital lease obligations 

Less - current maturities o f  long-term debt and finance lease obligations 

2005 

$ 
85.476 

36 
2,612 

88,124 
2.412 

132 
$ 85,580 

On November 6,2006 Core Laboratories LP, a wholly owned subsidiary, issued $250 million aggregate principal amount o f  Senior 
Exchangeable N o t a  due 201 I (“Notes”) to qualified institutional buyen. The Notes bear interest at a rate o f  0.25% per year and are 
guaranteed by Core Laboratories N.V. These notes are exchangeable into shares of Core Laboratories N.V. under certain 
circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 10.5533 per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which is equal to a conversion price o f  
approximately $94.76 per share. Upon exchange, holden wil1 receive cash up to the pnncipal amount, and any excess exchange value 
wi l l  be delivered in Core Laboratories N.V. common shares. On November 17, 2006, the initial purchasers exercised their option to 
purchase an additional $50 mill ion of the 0.25% senior exchangeable notes due 201 I, increasing the aggregate issuance of such notes 
to $300 million. We sold the Notes to the initial purchasers and subsequently filed a registration statement, which became effective 
immediately, with respect to resak of the notes and shares received in exchange for the notes on December 22, 2006. The Notes bear 
interest at a rate o f  0.25% per year payable semiannually on May 6 and November 6 of each year, beginning on May 6, 2007. Debt 
issuance costs of $6.7 mill ion were capitalized in connection with the issuance of the Notes in other long-term assets on our 
consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized thmugh November 201 I. 

In November 2006 in connection with the offering o f  the Notes, Core Laboratories LP used proceeds from the offering to enter into 
exchangeable note hedge transactions with a financial institution which i s  an aftiliate o f  one o f  the initial purchasen. The 
exchangeable note hedge transactions are designed to cover, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments, the net number of our 
common shares that would be deliverable to exchanging note holden in the event of an exchange o f  the notes. We paid an aggregate 
amount o f  approximately $86.3 million o f  the proceeds from the sale o f  the Notes to acquire the cal1 options. 

Core Laboratories N.V. als0 entered info separate warrant transactions at the time of the sak o f  the Notes whereby we sold 
warrants which gave ihe holders the right to acquire approximately 3.2 mill ion of our common shares at a strike pnce o f  $127.56 per 
share. Upon exercise of the warrants, we have the option 10 deliver cash or our common shares equal to the difference between the 
then market price and strike price. Al1 o f  the warrants wil l  expire on January 25. 2012. We received aggregate proceeds of $56.5 
mill ion from the sale o f  the warrants which was used to repay debt under our Credit Facility. 

î ñ e  purchased cal1 options and sold warrants are separate contracts entered info by US with one financial institution. and are not 
part of the tems o f  the Notes and wil1 not affect the holders’ rights under the Notes. The purchased cal1 options are expected to offset 
the potential dilution upon exchange of the Notes in the event that the market value per share of our common shares at the time of 
exercise i s  greater than the strike price of the purchased cal1 options, which corresponds to the initial exchange price ofthe Notes and 
is  simultaneously subject to cettain customary adjustments. The warrants wil1 effectiveiy increase the exchange price of the Notes to 
$127.56 per share of our common shares, from our perspective, representing a 75% premium based on the last reported bid price of 
$72.89 per share on October 31.2006. In  accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39). we 
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recorded the exchangeable note hedge and warrants in the consolidated balance sheet as o f  the transaction date, and wil1 recognize 
subsequent changes in fair value in the consolidated income statement. 

The fair value o f  the underlying debt instrument. included in non-current borrowings, was calculated using a market interest rate 
for an equivalent non-convertible note. 

The Notes recognized in the consolidated balance sheet i s  calculated as follows: 

2006 

Face value ofthe convertible notes 
Discount on convertible notes 
Net fair vahe o f  convertible notes 
Deferred debt acquisition costs 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net 

$ 300,000 
(88,26 I) 
211.739 

(4,986) 
$ 206,753 

We maintain a revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"). In November, 2006, we amended this facility to decrease the 
aggregate borrowing commitment from $125.0 mill ion to $100.0 million, and added an option to increase the commitment under the 
credit facility to $150.0 million, if certain conditions are met. The Credit Facility bears interest at variable rates from LIBOR plus 
0.5% t o a  maximum of LIBOR plus 1.125%. The Credit Facility matures in December 2010 and requires interest payments only until 
maturity. These interest payments are based on the interest period selected. Our available borrowing capacity under the Credit Facility 
at December 31, 2006 was $93.1 million. Our available capacity is reduced by outstanding unsecured letters of credit and 
performance guarantees and bonds totaling $6.9 million ai December 31,2006 related to certain projects i n  progress. 

The terms of the Credit Facility require US to meet certain Rnancial covenants, including, but nol limited to, certain operational and 
cash flow ratios. We believe that we are in compliance wiih al1 such covenants contained in our credit agreement. Al1 of our material 
wholly owned subsidiaries are guarantors or co-borrowers under the Credit Facility. 

In l u l y  1999, we issued $75.0 mill ion in senior notes ("Senior Notes"), which bore interest at an average fixed rate o f  8.16%. On 
December 29, 2005, we repurchased al1 o f  our outstanding Senior Notes, i n  accordance with the Note and Guarantee Agreement, for 
face value plus accrued and unpaid interest and a make-whole premium as prescribed in the Senior Note agreement. Such redemption 
was completed on December 29, 2005 and was funded utilizing a combination o f  excess cash and borrowings under the Credit 
Facility. The total cash paid in connection with the repurchase was $76.4 mill ion of which $68.0 mill ion related to the principal 
amount o f  the Senior Notes, $2.4 mill ion related to the accrued interest and $6.0 million fo ra  make-whole premium which i s  included 
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in "Finance Costs" in the accompanying consolidated income statement. I 

Other indebtedness includes appruximately $2.6 mill ion of debt incurred relating to the financing o f  our corporate insurance. 

In addition to our repayment commitments under our credit facilities and the Notes, we have capital lease obligations related to the 
purchase o f  equipment, and non-cancelable operating lease arrangements under which we lease property including land, buildings, 
office equipment and vehicles. <>> 

The following table summarizes our future contractual obligations under these arrangements: 

Less than More than 
Total 1 year 1-5 Years 5 Years 

Contractual Obligations (in thousands): 

Long-term debt ' $ 302,754 $ 2,754 $ 300,000 $ 
Finance leases 10 8 2 
Operating leases 38,010 8,240 17,639 12,131 

Total contractual obligations $ 340,774 11,002 $ 317,641 $ 12.131 

We have no significant purchase commitments or similar obligations outstanding at December 31,2006. 
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16. INCOME T A X  PAYABLE 

Long-tem income tax payable relates to tax exposures for tax obligations including potential interest and penalties in various 
taxing jurisdictions. 

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities result from various temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amount and 
their tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities as o f  December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Deferred tax assets: 
Deferred inwme tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 
Deferred income tax asset to be recovered afler more than 12 months 

Net deferred tax asset 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Deferred income tax liability to be recovered within 12 months 
Deferred income tax liability to be recovered afler more than 12 months 

Total deferred iax liabilities 
Net deferred income tax assets, net 

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account i s  as follows: 
Beginning of year 
Income statement charge 
Timing differences 
End o f  year 

2006 2005 

$ 1,898 $ 436 
26,997 25,465 
28.895 25,901 

(4,233) (5.204) 
(4,233) (5,204) 

$ 24.662 S 20,697 

S 20,697 $ 9,965 
1,070 5,286 
2,895 5,446 

$ 24,662 $ 20,697 

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities dunng the year, without taking int0 consideration ihe offsetting of 
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, i s  as follows: 

Deferred Tax Assets 

A t  January 1,2005 
Charged/(credited) to the 
income statement 
Charged directly to equity 
A t  December 31,2005 
Chargedl(credited) to the 

income statement 
Charged directly to equity 
A t  December 31,2006 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

A t  January I ,  2005 
Charged/(credited) to the 
income statement 
A t  December 31,2005 
Charged/(credited) to the 

income statement 
A t  December31.2006 

p 
Tax Tax Stock . .  i v 

Losses Credits Compensation Reserves Other Total ', 
$ 12,718 $ 367 $ 1,745 $ 2,299 $ 146 $ 17,275 c- 

1,704 (29) 1,448 33 24 3.180 
I 

4,433 1,013 5.446 
14.422 338 7,626 2.332 1,183 25,901 ''-' 

E 3 
( I  0,995) 6.140 2,145 1,657 1,152 g9 c3 

2,616 279 2.895 "-1 
$ 3,427 6 6,478 $ 12,387 S 3,989 $ 2,614 $ 28.895 

Accelerated Stock 
Intangibles Depreeiation Compensation Reserves Other Tota l  

$ (1,334) $ (2,485) S S - S(3.491) S(7.310) 

i 106) 752 1,460 2, I06 
( I  ,440) (1,733) (2.03 I ) (5.204) 

(95) 
$ (1,535) 

534 
S (1,199) 

532 
S ( 1,499) 

97 1 
$ (4,233) 

A t  December 31. 2006, we had net operating loss carry-forwards for income tax purposes in various tax jurisdictions of 
approximately $39.4 million. Of those carry-forwards that are subject to expimtion, they wil1 expire, if unused, $2.1 mill ion in 2009, 
$2.1 mill ion in 201 I ,  $1.0 million in 2013, $12.7 mill ion in 2015, $14.0 mill ion in 2016 and $7.5 million in 2025. We anticipate that 
taxable income in future years wil1 allow US to fully utilize our cany-fonvards. We recorded $8.9 million and $8.3 mill ion of tax 



benefit directly to equity relating to the iax benefit on stock-based compensation. Other deferred fax asset and liabilities are provided 
for revenues and expenses that may be recognized by the various tax jurisdictions in periods that differ from when recognized for 
financial reporting purposes. 

18. PROVISIONS FOR OTHER L I A B I L I T I E S  A N D  CHARGES 

The components o f  provisions for 2006 are as follows (in thousands): 
Termination Deferred Claims from 

Benefits Compensation Clients Other Total 

A t  January 1,2006 $ 2,582 $ 7,585 $ 665 $ 7,821 $ 18,653 
Charged / (credited) to the income 
statement: 

Additional pmvisions 3,049 3,216 983 6,495 13,743 
Reversed unused 
Used dunng the year (2  I 4) (388) (604) (5,061) (6,267) 

A t  December 31,2006 S 5,417 $ 10,413 $ 1,044 S 9,255 $ 26,129 

Terminaiion ReneJils 
Termination benefits represent an accrual for future payouts guaranteed to employees upon departure from the Company. in 1998. 

we entered into employment agreements with our four senior executive o f f c e n  that provided for severance benefits. The value of the 
long-term liability for the benefits due upon severing the employment of these employees i s  approximately $2.2 mill ion at December 
31, 2006. The remaining $3.2 mill ion balance is for the non-executive employees of the Company. See Note 19 Pension and Other 
Postretirement Benefit Plans for further discussion o f  employee benefits. 

Deferred Compensalion 
Deferred Compensation relates to additional retirement liabilities for cenain employees o f  the Company. These are not payable 

until the employee retires. The balance reflects the current market condition of the investmenu held for the participants. See Note 19 
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans for further discussion o f  employee benefits. 

Claims from Clients 
Claims from clients occur fmm disputes ihat may arke from the providing of services. These are investigated and resolved once a V'' 

(.,i determination is made. The timing o f  any potential settlement vanes for each claim. 

Olher 13 
Other provisions wnsist of amounts accrued related to long-term unearned revenue and amounts due under certain service Co 

agreements and contractual commitments. I 

19. PENSION AND O T H E R  POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 
c. 

Defined Benrfil Plnn %I 
We provide a noncontnbutoty defined benefit pension plan covering substantially al1 of our Dutch employees ("Dutch Plan") 

based on yean of service and final pay or career average pay. depending on when the employee began participating. Employees are 
immediately vested in the benefits earned. We fund the future obligations of the Dutch Plan by purchasing investment contracts from 
a large multi-national insurance company. We make annual premium payments, based upon each employee's age and current salary. 
10 the insurance company. The COSIS related to the Dutch Plan are included in Cost o f  Services on the consolidated income statement. 

The underfunded status o f  the Dutch Plan is recorded as a liability. In 2006 the plan was amended which increased the projected 
benefit oblipation of ihe plan by approximaiely $1.7 mill ion for past service costs. These past service cosls associaied wiih ihe 
amendment were fully vested by the participant ofthe plan and have been recognized through pension costs for 2006. 

The following table summanzes the change in the projected benefit obligation and the fair value o f  plan assets for the years ended 
December 3 I, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands): 

2006 2005 
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Defined Benefit Obligation: 
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Service cosi 
Interest mst 
Benefits paid 
Amendments 
Actuanal (gain)/ loss, net 
Unrealized (gain)/ Ioss on foreign exchange 

Defined benefit obligation at end o f  year 

Fa i r  Value of Plan Assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Expected return on plan assets 
ActuaI gain on plan assets 
Employer contnbutions 
Benefits paid 
Unrealized (loss) gain on foreign exchange 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Under-funded status of the plan a t  end of the year 

Aeeumulated Benefit Obligation 

$ 21,185 
1,206 

903 
(484) 
1,702 

(3,150) 
2,622 

$ 23,984 

$ 19,183 

92 I 
1,307 
(484) 

2.448 
$ 23,375 

$ (609) 

$ 19,224 

$ 19,456 
684 
803 

(444) 

3,283 

$ 20,195 

660 
1.506 
(444) 

(2,734) 
$ 19,183 

$ (2,002) 

$ 18.010 

The following actuanal assumptions were nsed to determine the achiaria1 present value of our defined benefit obligation at 
December 31.2006 and 2005: 

2006 2005 
Weighted average assumed discount rate 4.50% 4.00% L, 

Weighted average rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 
Future pension increase 4.00% 4.00% 

The discount rate used to determine our defined benefit obligation at December 31,2006 was increased from 4.00% 10 4.50%. The 
increase in the discount rate was consistent with a general increase in long-term interest rates in The Netherlands during 2006. This 
change in discount rates contnbuted to adecrease in unrecognized actuarial loss as o f  December 31, 2006. 

The compnnents of net penodic pension cost under this plan for the years ended December 3 I, 2006 and 2005 included: 

2006 2005 
Service cost $ 1,206 $ 684 
Interest cost 903 803 
Expected reNrn on plan assets (875) (909) 
Past service costs 1,702 

Net penodic pension cost $ 2,936 $ 578 

The net periodic pension cost of $2.9 million and $0.6 mill ion for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively was 
recognized in Cost o f  Services in the consolidated Income statement. 

T h i s  net periodic pension cost was calculated using the following assumptions: 

- 
Weighted average assumed discount rate 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 
Weighted average rate of compensation increase 

2006 2005 
4.50% 4.50% 
4.00% 4.50% 
3.00% 3.00% 

Plan assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of insurance contracts with returns comparable with governmental debt 
secunties. Our expected long-term rate of return assumptions are based on the expected returns on these contracts. Dutch law dictates 
the minimum requirements for pension funding. Our goal i s  to meet these minimum funding requirements, while our insurance carrier 
invests to minimize risks associated with future benefit payments. 
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Our 2007 minimum funding requirements are expected to be appmximately $1.5 million. Our estimate o f  future annual 
contributions is  based on current funding requirements, and we believe these contributions wil1 be sufficient 10 fund the plan. 

Defined benefit obligation 
Plan assets 
Surplus/(deficit) 

2006 2005 
23.984 21.185 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 69 (239) 
Experience adjustments on plan assets 46 (249) 

Expected benefit payments under this plan for the next five years are as follows (in thousands): 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
Succeeding five years 

S 372 
424 
477 
5 22 
614 

5,402 

Morialily raie 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice, published statistics and experience in each territory 

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the balance sheet date is as follows: 

Male 
Female 

2006 200s 
17.0 17.0 
20.0 20.0 

The average life expectancy in yean of a pensioner retiring at age 65.20 years after the balance sheet date. i s  as follows: 
?J 

- 
Male 

2006 2005 
17.0 17.0 

$Li 

! 
Female 20.0 20.0 c 3 

(: D 
Dejined Coniribuflon Plans I 

r..) 

(:$i 
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We maintain three defined contribution plans (the "Defined Contnbution Plans") for the benefit ofeligible employees in Canada, 
the United Kingdom and the United States. In accordance with the t e r m  ofeach plan, we match the required portion o f  employee 
contnbutions up to specified limits and under cettain plans, we may make discretionary contributions annually in accordance with the 
Defined Contribution Plans. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we expensed approximately $3.2 mill ion and $2.5 
mill ion respectively, for our matching and discretionary contributions to the Defined Contribution Plans. 

Deferred Compensaiion Arrangemenis 

We have entered into deferred compensation contracts for certain key officers and an outside director. The benefits under these 
contracts are fully vested and benefits are paid when the patticipants attain 65 years of age. The charge to expense for onicer deferred 
compensation in 2006 and 2005 was appmximately $0.6 mill ion and $0.6 million, respectively. Life insurance policies with cash 
surrender values have been purchased for the purpose of funding the deferred compensation contracts. 

We have adopted a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that allows certain highly compensated employees to defer a portion 
of their salary, commission and bonus, as wel1 as the amount ofany reductions in their deferrals under the deferred compensation plan 
for employees in the United States (the "Deferred Comp Plan"), due 10 certain limitations imposed by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended. "he Deferred Comp Plan als0 provides for employer contributions 10 be made on behalf o f  participants equal in 
amount 10 certain forfeitures of, andlor reductions in, employer contributions that participants could have received under the 401(k) 
Plan in the absence of ceiain limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions to the deferred compensation 
Deferred Comp Plan were $0.1 mill ion and $0.1 million of the years ended December 31. 2006 and 2005, respectively. These 
employer contributions vest ratably over a period of five years. 
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Vesting in al1 employer contnbutions is accelerated upon the death of the participant or a change in control. Employer 
contnbutions under the plans are forfeited upon a participantP termination of employment 10 the extent they are not vested at that time. 

Termination Befleflts 

We have provided termination benefits to cenain executives that pmvide salary and medical benefits for their post employment 
penod. This liability is recorded in Provisions. See Note 30 on Directon' Compensation for further discussion. 

20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Accounts payable represents short term liabilities arising out of normal business activities which wil1 be settled within twelve 
months. The stated value recorded on the wnsolidated balance sheet represents the fair value. 

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 

Employee benefit expenses are compnsed of salaries. bonuses and other compensation. For the years ended December 31, 2006 
and 2005, employee expense recognized in the income statement is  as follows (in thousands): 

2006 2005 

Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Stock based compensation 

Total employee expense 

$ 172.535 $ 150.275 
33.535 27.003 

5,943 11,657 
$ 212,013 $ 188.935 

For the yean ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, employee expense recognized in the income statement i s  as follows (in 
thousands): 

2006 2005 
P+ 

Cost o f  sales and services 
General and administrative 

Total employee expense 

i.t) $ 188.277 S 165.704 
23,736 23,231 

Ia 212,013 $ 188,935 c3 
CO 

I We had appmximately 4,600 and 4,500 employees in 2006 and 2005, respectiveiy ".-' 
$9 

22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Cj 
%J 

From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise i n  the ordinary wurse of business in which we 
have established liabilities 10 wver. It i s  nol anticipated that any material liabilities wil1 arise from these contingent liabilities. 

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet debt or other similar financing arrangemenis nor have we formed any special purpose 
entities for the purpose of maintaining off-balance sheet debt. 

Scheduled minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases at December.3 I, 2006, consist of the ïollowing (in 
thousands): 

2007 $ 8,240 
2008 6,538 
2009 4.772 
2010 
201 I 
Thereafier 
Total commitments 

3,409 
2,920 

12.131 
$ 38,010 

Operating lease commitments relate pnmanly to rental of equipment and office space. Rental expense for operating leases, 
including amounts for shoh-term leases with nomina1 future rental commitments, was approximately $8.8 mill ion and $7.6 mill ion for 
the years ended December 3 I, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
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B y  operation o f  the laws of the Netherlands, our subsidiaries Core Laboratories LP and Core Laboratories Holding Inc have a 
contingent liability consisting of an obligation to transfer the shares currently held by them in our capital to our (indirect) managing 
directon and a correspnding contingent asset consisting of a claim against such managing directors for an amount equal to the 
purchase price paid by Core Laboratories LP and Core Laboratories Holding Inc for such shares. 

Upon adoption of our annual accounts for the financial year 2006, the shares in our capital currently held by our subsidiaries Core 
Laboratories L P  and Core Laboratories Holding Inc shall be transferred to US and the contingent asset and contingent liability referred 
to above in respect of such shares shall be set-off. 

23. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

We have granted stock options and restricted stock awards under hvo stock incentive plans: the 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(the "Plan") and the 2006 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan (ihe "Director Plan "). In addition to stock options, awards 
under the following three compensation programs have been granted punuant to the Plan: ( I )  the Executive Restricted Share 
Matching Program ("ESMP"), (2) the Performance Share Award Program ("PSAP") and (3) the Restricted Share Award Prognm 
("RSAP). 

i995 Long-term Incentive Plan 

The Plan, as amended, provides fora maximum of 5,400,000 common shares to be granted to eligible employees. Specifically, we 
encourage share ownership by awarding various long-term equity incentive awards underthe Plan, consisting of the ESMP, PSAP and 
RSAP. We believe that,widespread common share ownership by key employees i s  an important means o f  encouraging superior 
performance and employee retention. Additionally, our equity-based compensation programs encourage performance and retention by 
providing additional incentives for executives to further our growth, development and financial success over a longer time horizon by 
personally benefiting through the ownership o f  our common shares andlor rights. 

From our inception in 1995 to 2001, we awarded stock options as the primary form o f  equity compensation. In 2001, we 
reassessed the form o f  award and elected to begin the use o f  restricted share grants which we believe are a stronger motivational 1001 
far our employees, Restricted share awards provide some value to an employee during periods o f  stock market volatiliiy. whercas 
stock options may have limited perceived value and may not be as affective in retaining and motivating employees when the current 
value o f  the company's stock Is less than the option price. Currently, our long-term equity incentive compensation is  exclusively in 
the form o f  restricted shares and performance restricted shares as no stock options were granted during 2006 under the Plan. At  
December 3 I, 2006, approximately 40,288 shares were available for the grant o f  new awards under the Plan. 

2006 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan 
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The Director Plan provides common shares for grant to our eligible Supervisory Directon. The maximum number o f  shares 
available for award under'this plan i s  700,000 common shares. On June 28,2006, the 1995 Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan 
was amended, restated and renamed as the 2006 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan. The primary change effected by the 
2006 amendment was to eliminate the automatic, formula grant o f  stock options under the prior plan and to replace that formula 
approach with the discretionary right o f  the Supervisory Board to grant stock options, restncted shares, or any combination thereof. 
Under the Director Plan, each nonemployee Supervisoiy Director i s  generally granted 2,000 performance restricted shares (4.000 
shares if such nonemployee Supervisory Director is  the Chairman) that wil1 vest at the end o f  a three-year measurement period subject 
to our performance as meiisured against certain predetermined metrics. Only nonemployee Supervisoiy Directors are eligible for these 
equity-based awards under the Director Plan. As of December 31, 2006, appmximately 312,555 shares were available for issuance 
under the Director Plan. Although restricted shares have been granted in 2006 pursuant to the Director Plan, no stock options were 
granted during 2006. 

Executive Restricted Share Matching Program 

The ESMP was implemented in June 2002 to encourage personal investment in our common stock by our executive officen. 
Under the program, we matched on a one-forane basis each share that an executive purchased on the open market or held in his 
deferred compensation, 401(k) or other retirement account as of June I ,  2002, up to a maximum o f  50,000 shares per participant. We 
have recorded compensation expense totaling $(0.1) mill ion and $2.2 mill ion for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. 

On June I, 2005, 132,853 shares previously issued to the participants became vested. We recorded common stock and additional 
paid-in-capital totaling $3.4 mill ion and in conjunction with the vesting. 48,425 shares of common stock were surrendered by the 
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participants 10 senle any personal fax liabilities which may result from the award. The surrendered shares were valued at $I .2 million, 
or $25.54 per share, and have been included as treasury shares. 

Pursuant to the ESMP, on June I, 2005, we issued an additional 76,200 restricted shares (the "Restricted Gross-up Shares") in the 
aggregate to reimburse the participants for tax liabilities resulting from the vesting o f  the original grant o f  132,853 restricted shares 
under the ESMP and their eventual vesting in the Restricted Gross-up Shares. We accounted for the Restricted Gross-up Shares as an 
equity award resulting in the fair value being fixed at the original grant-date fair value. Compensation expense i s  being recorded over 
the vesting period based on the estimated number o f  shares that management believes wil1 ultimately vest. During the year ended 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, we recorded $1.0 million and $0.6 million, respectively, of compensation expense for the Restricted 
Gross-up Shares. As of December 31, 2006, approximately 1.5% ofthe Restricted Cross-up Shares remain unvested. assuming that al1 
the awards wil1 ultimately vest, resulting in approximately $0.4 mill ion of compensation expense to be recognized through the 
ultimate vesting date of June I, 2007. 

Performance Share Award Program 

Awards Onder rhe Plan 

Under the PSAP, certain executives were awarded rights to receive a pre-detemined number of common shares i f  certain 
performance targets are met, as defined in the applicable agreements for the respective three-year performance penod. Unless there i s  
a change in contml as defined in the PSAP. none o f  these awards wil1 vest if the specified performance targets are not met as o f  the 
last day o f  the respective performance periods. Under this arrangement we have granted rights relating to an aggregate of 120,000 
shares in 2005 and 120,000 shares in 2004. 

To meet the performance target for the granted rights relating to 60,000 o f  the shares. our common shares must perform as wel1 as 
or bener than the 50th percentile o f the return earned by the wmmon stock of the companies comprising the Philadelphia O i l  Service 
Sector Index ("OSX") foi the applicable performance period. If our common shares performed at or above the 75th percentile o f  the 
companies comprising the OSX, then al1 of the rights to such shares would vest. If our common shares perform at or above the 50th 
percentile but below the 75th percentile of the companies comprising the OSX, then an interpolated percentage o f  between 20% and 
100% ofthe rights to such shares would vest at the end ofthe three-year period. 

The performance targets for the granted nghts relating to t80.000 of the shares wil1 be eligible to vest if our calculated return on 
equity ("ROE"), as defined in the PSAP, equals or exceeds a pre-determined target ROE on the measurement date, which i s  the last i.i- 

day o f  the applicable three year performance period. Punuant to the agreement, ROE is calculated by dividing earnings before interest i-9 
and income tax from continuing operations for the performance penod by ending shareholders' equity for the performance period. For I 

rights relating to 60,000 shares, the pre-determined target ROE i s  18% which wil1 be measured on December 31 ,  2006, the end o f  the 
three-year performance period. n i e  pre-determined target ROE for the remaining rights relating to 120,000 shares i s  24% and wil1 be 
measured on December 31, 2007, the end of the three-year performance period. If our ROE for the performance period does not meet 
the target ROE, then the number of shares to be issued would be interpolated based on the terms of the agreement. PLl  
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Al1 of the PSAP awards are classified as equity awards where the fair value of the awards are fixed at the original grant-date fair 
value with compensation recorded over the vesting period based on the estimated number o f  awards that management believes wil1 
ultimately vest. As of December 31, 2006, there was $0.9 mill ion o f  unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to 
nonvested PSAP awards. Thai cos1 i s  expected to be recognized over an estimated weighted-average amortization period o f  12 
months. We recognized compensation expense o f  $1.8 mill ion and $2.7 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. We have recognized a 
tax benefit from the vesting ofthe PSAP of$1.9 mill ion in 2006. 

In January 2007, the Equity Awards Subcomminee o f  our Compensation Comminee of OUT Board o f  Supervisory Directors 
determined that the performance target criteria had been met relating to rights to an aggregate o f  120,000 shares. We issued these 
120,000 common shares on January 31, 2007 and. simultaneously, the participants surrendered 38,024 common shares to settle any 
personal tax liabilities which may result from the award, as permined by the agreement. We recorded these surrendered shares as 
treasury stock with an aggregate cost o f  $3.1 million, at $82.40 per share. 

Awurds Under ihe Direcior Plan 

On September 15, 2006, we awarded rights relating to an aggregate of 12,000 PSAP shares under the Director Plan to our 
nonemployee Supervisory Directors for which the performance period began on September 15,2006 and ends on September 15,2009. 
The performance target for this award is  based on a calculated ROE, as defined in the agreement, with full vesting occurring if our 
ROE equals or exceeds the pre-determined target ROE o f  3.5% at the end o f  the three-year performance period. If our ROE for the 
perfomance period does not meet the target ROE but equals or exceeds 28%, then the number o f  shares to be issued would be 
interpolated based on the terms o f  the agreement. This arrangement i s  recorded as an equity award that requires US to recognize 



compensation expense totaling $0.8 mill ion over a three-year penod that began on September 15, 2006, o f  which, $0.1 mill ion has 
been recognized in 2006. The unrecognized compensation expense i s  expected to be recognized over an estimated amortization period 
o f  33 months. 

Restrieted Share Award Program 

in 2004, the Equity Awards Subcommittee of our Compensation Comminee o f o u r  Board o f  Supervisory Directors approved the 
RSAP to continue to attract and retain the best employees, and to better align employee interests with those o four  shareholders. Under 
this arrangement we have granted 218,100 shares and 142,600 shares in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The shares issued in 2005 would 
cliffvest at the end of a seven year period bui also contained Wo performance accelerators either o f  which, if satisfied, or if certain 
other events occurred, as specified in the related agreements, would accelerate ihe vesting. The grant issued in 2005 achieved the 
performance accelerator and became fully vested in 2006. The shares issued in 2006 have a six year ratable vesting schedule where 
116th of the grant vests on each following anniversary date. No performance accelerators for early vesting exist for there awards. The 
RSAP i s  classified as an equity award. As of December 31, 2006, there was $I 1.6 mill ion o f  unrecognized total stock-based 
compensation related to nonvested RSAP awards. nie  unrecognized compensation expense i s  expected to be recognized over an 
estimated weighted-average amortization period of 66 months. We recognized compensation expense of$3. I mill ion and $5.3 mill ion 
in 2006 and 2005, respectively. We have recognized a tax ben& fmm the vesting of the RSAP of $1.4 mill ion and $0.2 mill ion in 
2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Nonvested restricted stock awards as of December 31,2006 and changes duringthe year were as follows: 
Wcighted 

Nurnkr of AvirigeGrsnI 
Share, Date Fair Valur 

Nonvested at December 3 I. 2004 630.153 $ 16.44 
Granted 
Vested 

3361800 25.12 
(385.753) 16.09 

Forfeited (2;600) 22.66 
Nonvested at December 31.2005 578.600 21.67 
Granted 
Vested 

230;lOO 64.90 
(264.400) 19.58 . .  

Forfeited (9.600j 59.34 
Nonvested at December 31,2006 534.700 $ 40.63 

ir 
The fair value of the nonvested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2006 was $43.3 million. We issue shares from authorized ~ i ,  

i 

;3 

shares upon the exercise o f  options or lapsing of vesting restnctions on restricted stock. We have not issued shares out of treasury 
stock. We do not use cash to settle equity instruments issued under stock-based compensation awards. 

Stock Options CO 
i 

T h e  following table presents the change in outstanding stock options issued under the Plan and the Director Plan for the years f"-' 

i 3 
c,? 

Wiichled '..I 

ended December 31,2006 and 2005. Al1 options outstanding at December 31, 2006 are fully vested. 

Range of Aversgr 
S h i r n  Exiicirc Prirra Excrrirr Priec 

BalanceasofDecember31.2004 3.325.164 0.01 -61.19 $ 12.94 
Options granted 71;OOO 25.00 25.00 

' Options exercised (655,255) 1.50 - 19.52 12.83 
Options forfeited (5,750) 8.84 - 23.00 15.63 

BalanceasofDecernber31, 2005 2,735,159 0.01 -61.19 13.48 
Options granted 

' Options exercised ( I  ,023,754) 8.38 .6 I .  I 9  14.51 
Options forfeited (70,746) 8.38 - 23.00 15.67 

BalanceasofDecember31,2006 1,640,659 $0.01 -25.00 S 12.74 

The fair value ofthe outstanding stock options at December 31, 2006 was $132.9 million. The weighted average exercise pnce for 
2006 was $60.93 and for 2005 was $29.80. Al1 stock options expire 10 years from date o f  grant. The weighted average l i fe  remaining 
for the stock options outstanding at December 31,2006 was 5.1 years. The following table presents the amount of stock options set to 
expire in the respective years. 
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Year Number of Options 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

18,000 
137,979 
247,251 
181,932 
684,371 

2,385 
361,741 

3,000 
4,000 

The total intrinsic value o f  options exercised during 2006 and 2005 were $47.8 mill ion and $1 1.1 million. respectively. We have 
rewgnized a tax benefit from the exercise ofthe stock options o f  $2.9 mill ion and $3.7 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The determination of the fair value o f  stock options was estimated using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model and required the 
use of highly subjective ,assumptions related to the volatility o f  our common stock, the expected term that the options would be 
outstanding and a risk-free rate. We do not include an estimated dividend yield in our calculations, since we have nol paid dividends 
on our common stock historically and do not foresee paying dividends in the future. The following assumptions were used to calculate 
compensation expense for purposes o f  new option grants: 

2005 

Risk free interest rate 4.6% 
Expected volatility 55.2% 
Expected lives (in years) 9.18 

In 2005, the Equity Awards Subcommittee o f  our Compensation Commitlee o f  our Board of Supervisory Directors approved a 
modification o f  al1 unvested options, whereby, al1 unvested options then outstanding became fully vested. Prior 10 the modification, 
there were stock options covering 322,072 wmmon shares that were unvested. which represented less than 12% of the total number o f  
commons shares subject to stock options that were outstanding. As a result ofthe modification, we detemined that the increase in the 
intfinsic value o f  lhe unvested options over the original grant price was approximately $7.9 million. In 2005, we recorded $0.1 
mill ion of expense, which represents managemeds estimate o f  those employees that would receive a benefit by leaving the Company 
with fully vested options prior to the original vesting date o f  the option grant. Should the actual rate o f  employees leaving the I'* 
Company with such a benefit differ fmm management's initial estimate at December 31, 2005, an adjusiment 10 expense wil1 be 
recorded as the difference between the actual benefit rate and the initial benefit estimate. I 

<: 9 
$0 

follows (in thousands): I 
For the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005, stock-based compensation expense recognized in the income statement is as 

2006 2005 
Cost o f  sales and services $ 1,896 $ 3,129 
General and administrative 4,047 8,528 

Total stock-based compensation expense $ 5,943 S 11,657 

24. O T H E R  EXPENSE (INCOME), NET 

The components ofother expense (income), net, are as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
2006 2005 

(Gain) Ioss on sale of assets 
Foreign exchange (gain) Ioss 
Gain on involuntary sale of asset 
Gain on insurance recovery 
Other 

Total other expense (income). net 

44 

CE (755) $ (293) 
(1,443) 1.619 

(375) (875) 
(492) (334) 

( 2. O 4 6 ) 568 
$ (5,111) $ 685 



In 2003, the British govemment notified US that i t  would exercise its nght of eminent domain thereby involuntarily acquiring the 
property o f  one o f  our opefating facilities. Prior to December 31, 2003, we received an initia1 payment from the British government 
for $0.6 mill ion as compensation for this property. In the second quarter of 2005, we negotiated and received an additional settiement 
which resulted in a $0.9 mill ion gain. In the fourth quarter o f  2006, we received a final senlement which resulted in a $0.4 mill ion 
gain in excess ofthe gain recorded in 2005. 

During the first quarterof 2005, a building at our manufacturing plant in Godley, Texas, was damaged by fire, resuliing in the loss 
of the building, some inventory. as wel1 as other business equipment and supplies. In June 2005, we filed claims with our insurance 
carrier for reimbunement of these costs resulting in a net gain o f  $0.3 million. In addition, we filed a claim for business interruption 
COSIS and the final senlement was reached in the fint quarter o f  2006, which resulted in a gain o f  $0.5 mill ion in excess o f  the gain 
recorded in 2005. 

Foreign Currency Risk ' 

We operate in a number o f  international areas which exposes US to foreign currency exchange rate risk. We do not currently hold 
or issue forward exchange contracts or other derivative instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. Foreign exchange gains and 
losses are the result of fluctuations in the USD against other currencies and are included in other expense (income) in the consolidated 
income statement. We recognized foreign exchange losses in counhies where the USD weakened against the local currency and we 
had net monetary liabilities denominated in the local currency; as wel1 as countries where the USD strengthened against the local 
currency and we had net monetary assets denominated in the local currency. W e  recognized foreign exchange gains in countries 
where the USD strengthened against the local currency and we had net monetary liabilities denominated in the local currency and in 
countries where the USD weakened against the local currency and we had net monetary assets denominated in the local currency. 
Foreign exchange gains and Iosses are summarized in the following table (in thousands): 

Losses (gains) by currency 

British Pound 
Canadian Dollar 
Euro 
Russian Ruble 
Venezuelan Bolivar 
Other currencies 

Total Iosses (gains) 

Year Ended 
2006 200s 

In February 2004, the Venezuelan govemment devalued the VEB by 20% 10 1,915 VEB per USD. Effective March 2, 2005, the 
Venezuelan govemment devalued the VEB by an additional 12% to 2,147 VEB per USD. At December 31, 2006, our net monetary 
assets denominated in VEB in Venezuela were $3.3 million. We continue to monitor our operations and financial position in this 

(:3 

' 
region. E..r 

C? 
25. SEGMENT REPORTING %I 

Pr imary Reporting Format 

We operate our business in three reportable segments: (i) Reservoir Description, (2) Production Enhancement and (3) Reservoir 
Management. These business segmenis provide different services and utilize different technologies. 

- Reservoir Descripiion: Encompasses the characterization of petroleum reservoir rock, fluid and gas samples. We provide 
analytica1 and field services to characterize properties ofcrude o i l  and petroleum products to the oi l  and gas industry. 

- Produdion Enhancerneni: lncludes pmducts and services relating to reservoir wel1 completions. perforations. stimulations 
and production. We provide integraled services to evaluate the effectiveness o f  weli completions and to develop solufions 
aimed at increasing the effectiveness o f  enhanced o i l  recovery projects. 

Reservoir ,ihanagerneni: Combines and integrates information from reservoir description and production enhancement 
services to increase production and improve recovery o f  oi l  and gas from our clients' reservoirs. 

- 

Results for these business segments are presented below. We use the same accounting policies to prepare our business segment 
results as are used to prepare our Consolidaled Financial Statements. We evaluate performance based on income or loss from 



continuing operations before income tax, interest and other non-aperating income (expense). Summarized financial information 
concerning our segments is  shown in ihe following table (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,2006 
Revenues from unafiliated customcrs 
lnter-segment revenues 
Segment income (10s) 
Finance COSIS 
Variance in fair value o f  derivative 
instruments 
Share o f  profiü(loss) of associates 
Profit before income t ix  expense 
Income tax expense 
Profit for the year 
Total ass& 
Total liabilities 
Capital expenditures 
Intangible asset expendinires 
Depreciatian and amortization 

DECEMBER 31,2005 
Revenues iiom unafiliated customers 
Inter-segment revenues 
Segment income (10s) 
Finance costs 
Share o f  profiti(loss) of associates 
Profit before income tax expense 
Income tax expense 
Income from continuing 
operations 
Loss fmm discontinued operations 
Profit for the year , 
Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Cupital expenditures 
Intangible asset expenditures 
Depreciation and amortiration 

Reservoir 
Description 

S 315.068 
670 

56,263 

(123) 

228,440 
43.391 
15,729 

I 2  
9,143 

S 280,979 
1.946 

37,478 

36 

Produetion 
Enhancement 

S 223,056 
798 

57.191 

173,828 
23,966 

6,495 
240 

4,837 

S 175,894 
308 

30,560 

Reservoir 
Management 

S 37.565 
454 

8,158 

33,980 
9.9 I O 

549 
I 0  

464 

S 26,594 
95 

4.347 

Corporate & 
Other ' 
s 

(1.922) 
(2.011) 

187.260 
428,529 

3.992 
4 

2.918 

Consolidatcd 

S 575,689 

119,601 
9.993 

(7,170) 
(123) 

l02,3 I 5  
29.814 
72.501 

623.508 
505,796 

26.765 
266 

17.362 

S 483,467 

63,570 
13,887 

36 
49,719 
13,453 

36.266 
(506) (506) I 

35.760 
220.349 163.223 29.323 38.548 451,443 !+ 

39,918 18,639 7,188 121.374 187,119 i.;l I 

i 19.113 ' I  9,667 7,559 472 1,415 
I 0 3  103 ~3 

9,606 4.360 474 2.192 16,632 in 

/)"Corporare ond oiher" reprexnls Ihosc i lms  ihar are nol direclly relaled I(> <I porliculor regmenl, elimimolions ond Ihe aseu and Iiabililier of disconlinucd 
opbialions. !.J 

C;i 

available to unrelated third parties. ...I 
Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be 

Segment assets consist primarily o f  cash and cash equivalents, trade and olher receivables, inventorics, property. plant and 
equipment and intangible asseis. Unallocated assets comprise deferred taxation and miscellaneour assets relaied to the corporaie 
function. 

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise items ruch as taxation, borrowings and liabilities 
related to the corporate function. 

Capital expenditures comprise additions to property, plant and equipment. 

Our general and administrative cosis are allocated to the segments on a proportional basis relative to each segment's costs o f  sales. 

Sccondary Reporting Format - Geographical Scgments 

We are a Netherlands company and we derive our revenues from services and product sales to customers primarily in the oi l  and 
gas industry. No single cli.ent accounted for 10% or more of revenues in any af the periods presented. The following is  a summary of 
our operations by major Iocation for 2 0 0 6  and 2005 ( in thousands): 
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Unitrd Other 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION Strtes Canada Europe Cnuntrier Consolidatcd 
DECEMBER31,2006 

Revenues S 271.498 Ia 74.910 S 92.360 $ 136.921 $ 575.689 
Operating income 
ïotal assets 
Capitil expendihm 

DECEMBER31,ZOOS 
Revenues 
Operating income 
Total assets 
Capital expenditures 

63,142 27,694 14,968 13,797 119.601 
341,081 61,796 135,397 79.234 623.508 

11,623 2,489 4,409 8,244 26,765 

S 214.843 S 64.607 5 88.527 S 115.490 S 483,467 
33;075 15,825 131901 769 63,570 

195.868 64,837 128,583 62.155 451.443 
8,528 2,873 3,316 4,396 19.1 13 

Operating income and total assets associated with our corporate operations have been included in the results for the United Stater. 

26. FINANCE COSTS 

The components of finance costs for 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands): 

Bank borrowings 
Convertible notes 
Debt prepayment charge 
Finance costs 
Finance income 

Net finance costs 

2006 2005 

$ 5,805 $ 8,277 
4,645 

Finance costs consist o f  interest expense on borrowings on bank debt and convertible notes, financial leases, amortization o f  
discount on convertible notes and amortization of debt issuance costs. included in the convertible notes balance for 2006 i s  $2.1 
mill ion for expense o f  debt issuance costs related to the conversion option in the notes. Included in 2005 i s  $6.0 mill ion for a make- 
whole premium related to the early extinguishment o f  our senior notes. 

27. INCOME TAXES 

The components of income tax expense for 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands): 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Income tax expense from continuing operations 

2006 2005 

28.744 8.167 
li070 5,286 

$ 29,814 $ 13,453 

The differences in income fax expense computed using The Netherlands statutory income tax rate o f  29.6% in 2006 and 3 I .5% in 
2005 and our income tax expense as reported in the accompanying consolidated income statement for 2006 and 2005 are as follows 
(in thousands): 

2006 2005 

Profit before tax $ 102,315 $ 49,719 

Tax at The Netherlands income tax rate 
International earnings taxed at rates other than 

Extratemtorial income exclusion benefit 
Non-deductible expenses 
Tax attributes realized 
State and provincial taxes 

The Netherlands statutory rate 

Income tax expense from continuing operations 

$ 30,285 $ 15,661 

(527) (6.841) 



In 2006, income fax expense increased due 10 an increase in fax profits which was primanly offset by an increase in our provision 
for fax controversies in various jurisdictions. ?Ie income tax rate changed in The Netherlands due to a law change enacted by The 
Netherlands government. The change i n  The Netherlands income fax rate for 2007 to 25.5% wil1 result in a decrease o f  $ I .2 million of 
the net deferred tax liability. 

28. EARNINCS PER SHARE 

The following table summanzes the calculation of weighted average common shares outstanding used in the computation of 
diluted eamings per share (in thousands): 

For  the Year Ended 
December 31, 

2006 2005 
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 25,157 26,038 
Effect o f  dilutive securities: 
Stock options 1,477 1.573 
Continsent shares 151  353 
Restricied stock and other 103 44 

Weighfed average diluted common and potential 
common shares outstanding 26,888 28,008 

We exclude the effect o f  anti-dilutive shares associated with these securities from the calculation o f  the diluted weighted average 
shares. Ifthese shares had been included, the impact would have been a decrease in diluted weighted average shares outstanding o f  94 
shares and 4.315 shares for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In 2006, we sold warrants that give the 
holders the right to acquire approximately 3.2 mill ion o f  our common shares at a strike price of $127.56 per share. These warrants 
could have a dilutive impact on our earnings per share if the share price exceeds the strike price of the warrants. 

29. CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

We have prepared the cash flow statement using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents include al1 short-tem, highly 
liquid instruments purchased with an original matunty o f  three months or less and time deposits and money market investment 
accounts. Cenain non-cash transactions have been adjusted from the cash flow statement. In 2006, $2.4 mill ion related 10 financed 
fixed assets has been adjusted from operating activities and $2.7 mill ion related to financed liability insurance has been adjusted from 
operating activities and financing activities and $86.3 mill ion related to the conversion feature on the convertible notes has been 
adjusted from financing activities. In 2005, $2.4 mill ion related to financed liability insurance has been adjusted from operating 
activities and financing activities. 
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other than upon his death or disability, for “cause” or upon a matenal breach of a material provision o f  his employment agreement, 
each as defined in the agreements. 

The employment agreemenis between US and our named executive officers and the related severance provisions are designed to 
meet the following objectives: 

Change in Coniral. As part o f  our normal course o f  business, we engage in discussions with other companies about possible 
collaborations andlor other ways in which the companies may work together to further our respective long-term objectives. In 
addition, many larger, established companies consider companies at similar stages o f  development 10 ours as potential acquisition 
targets. In  certain scenarios, the potential for merger or being acquired may be i n  the best interests o f  our shareholden. We provide 
severance compensation if an execulive’s employment is  terminated following a change in contml transaction to pmmoie the ability of 
our senior executives to act in the best interests o f  our stockhoiden even though their employment could be terminated as a result of 
the transaction. 

Terminaiion without Cause. If we terminate the employment of an executive o f i cer  without cause as defined in the applicable 
agreement, we are obligated to continue to pay him certain amounts as described in greater detail in “Potential Payments Upon 
Termination or Change in Control.” We believe these payments are appropnate because the terminated executive i s  bound by 
confidentiality, nonsolicitation and non-compete provisions covering two years aRer termination and because we and the executive 
have a mutually agreed to severance package that i s  in place prior 10 any temination event. This provides US with more flexibility to 
make a change in senior management if such a change i s  in our and our shareholden’ best interesis. 

Potentiai Payments Upon Termination ar Change in Coniroi We have entered into certain agreements and maintain certain plans 
that wil1 require US to provide compensation andlor benefits to our named executive o f i c e n  in the went of a termination of 
employment or a change in control o f  the Company. The compensation and benefits described below assume that any termination of 
employment was effective as of December 3 I ,  2006, and thus includes amounts earned through that date. The description set forth 
below provides estimates o f  the compensation and benefits that would be provided to the executives upon their termination of 
employment; however, in the event o f  an executive’s separation from the Company, any actual amounts wil1 be determined based on 
the facts and circumstances in existence at that time. 

DuvidM. Demshur. , 

Mr. Demshur serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer punuant to an employment agreement entered into on August I ,  
1998, restated as o f  December 31 ,  2001, and amended as o f  February28, 2003. Unless either party gives notice 10 terminate the 
agreement, the agreement wil1 aufomatically renew each year on the anniversary of the effective date for a successive three-year t e n .  
Mr. Demshur’s employment agreement entitles him to an original base salary of $420,000, subject 10 increase at the discretion o f  the 
Compensation Commillee, and the opportunity to earn a yearly bonus of up to 150% of his then cument annual base sölary dependent 
upon his reaching certain performance objectives established by the Compensation Comminee. The employrnent agreement provides 
that Mr. Demshur i s  entitled to participate in al1 o f  our benefit plans and programs that are available 10 our other executive employees. 

Mr. Demshur’s employment agreement includes provisions goveming the payment o f  severance benefits if his employment i s  
terminated by him for any reason or by the Company for any reason other than ( i )  his death or disability, (2) for cause (i.e., his 
conviction of any felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude), or (3) his material breach o f  a material provision of his 
employment agreement. In such event, Mr. Demshur’s severance benefits wil1 be comprised of: 

(a) the payment of a lump-sum amount equal to the sum of: 
E 200% o f  his base salary as in effect immediately prior to the termination; and 

O Wo times 45% ofthe maximum annual incentive bonus he could have earned pursuant 10 his employment agreement: 

(b) provision of a bencfits package for Mr. Demshur and his rpouse and dependent children consisting o f  medical. hospital. dcntal. disability 
and life insurnnce benefits at least as favorable 8s those benefits provided 10 Mr. Demshur and his spouse and dependent children 
immediately prior 10 his termination, for as long as Mr. Demshur and his spouse or dependent children are living: 

the payment of  a lump-sum amount equal to the non-vested employer contributions allocated to his account under OUT 401(k) Plan that are 
forfeited as a result of the termination; 

the full and immediate vesting and exercisability of al1 of his outstanding stock options. which options shall remain exercisable Tor the 
greater of( i )  three months following such termination. or (2) the period provided in the plan or plans pursuant to which such stock options 
were granted; and 

the provision of 0u)placement services nl a cost not 10 exceed 100% of the his annual base salary as in effect immediately prior to the 
termination. 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 
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As a result, assuming Mr. Demshur’s employment was terrninated effective as o f  December 31,2006. by him for any reason or by 
US for any reason other than upon his death or disability, for cause, or due to his material breach o f  a material provision o f  his 
employment agreement, he would have been entitled to: 

* a lump-sum payment of$1,711,180, which assurnes a base s a l q  of $510,800 and 45% ofthe maximum annual incentive bonus equal to 
$340,584; 

- benefits described in Elause (b) above valued at appmximately $239,000; and 

outplacement services in an amount nol 10 exceed $510,800. 

As of December 3 1,2006, Mr. Demshur was fully vested in the employer contributions allocated 10 his account under our 401 (k) 
Plan as o f  December 3 I ,  2006, and in his stock options outstanding as o f  December 3 I, 2006. 

For purposes o f  calculating the lifetime medical benefits, we assume the following: 

* a discount rare of 6%; 

monality under the 1994 Group Annuity ReseNing Table projected 10 2002; 

a medical trend a f  5% per annum; 

that medical bcnefitsare 10 be coordinated with Medicare such that premiums wilt be reduced by 50% lor ages 65 and older: and 

that the health plan is  ïully insured and community rated and wilt continue to be EO in the fuhirc. 

- 

For purposes of calculating the welfare benefits, we assume the following: 

* the basic life insurance benefit was vatued as a whole l i fe  premium a discount rate of 5 %  

mortality under the 1994 Group Annuity Reserving Table projected to 2002; 

the accidental death and disability coverage was valued BS 11.5% ofthe value afbasic l i i e  insurance benelit. per the current premium ratio 
and this benctit was assumed to continue beyond age 65; and 

the long-term disability premium was escalated al 4% 10 age 65, reflecting the age-related incidence of disability as wel1 as increued 
administralive costs; no value i s  anributed 10 the benefit beyond age 65, as long-term disability covcragc i s  rarely avnilahle once 
employment ends. 

* 

If Mr. Demshur’s employment is terrninated as a result of his death or disability, Mr. Demshur ( i f  living), his spouse. and/or his 
dependent childrcn, as applicable, wil1 be entitled to the benefits described under clauses (b) and (d) above. As a result, assuming 
Mr. Demshur’s employmint was terminated effective as o f  December 31, 2006, as a result o f  his death or disability. we would be 
obligated to provide severance benefits valued at approximately $239,000 (deterrnined as described above). 

If Mr. Demshur’s employment i s  terrninated for any reason within three years following a change in control (as defined in his 
employment agreement), he wil1 be entitled to the same benefits described above except that (a)cenain o f  his outstanding stock 
options shall remain exercisable for the greater o f  (i) one year following such termination, or (i i) the period provided in the plan or 
plans pursuant to which such stock options were granted, and (b) the lump-sum payment described in the first bullet point above shall 
be equal to three times the, sum of: 

* 

* 

his base salary as in effect immediately prior to his termination ofemployment; and 

the greater of@) 45% of the maximum annual incentive bonus he wuld have earned pursuani lo his mployment confract lor the ycar in 
which his employment terminates or (B) the highest annual bonus he receiued in the three fiscal yean ending prior to the fiscal year in 
which occurred the change in control. 

Additionally, if any o f  the payments or benefits described above, or any other payments or benefits that are payable to 
Mr. Demshur by US. would be subject to the excise fax imposed by Section 4999 o f  the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as 
amended (the “Code”) (sÒ-called “parachute payments”), then Mr. Demshur wil1 be entitled to receive a gross-up payment such that, 
aíìer the payment of any jncome, excise or other tax on the gross-up payment, Mr. Demshur retains an amount sufficient to pay al1 
such excise taxes. 



As a result, assuming that a change in control o f  the Company occurred and Mr. Demshur’s employment was terminated effective 
as o f  December 31,2006, in addition to the severance benefits he would have been entitled to receive as described above, he would be 
entitled to receive: (a) a lump-sum payment o f  $1,220,800 ($510,800 + $710,000) (comprised o f  an additional 100% of  his base salary 
as of December 31, 2006 and the additional bonus amount); and (b) a tax gross-up payment o f  $4,466,444, See “-Excise Tax Gross- 
up” for a discussion ofthe assumptions we used in connection with the calculation of ihe tax gross-up payment. 

Mr .  Demshur’s employment agreement contains a standard confidentiality and nonsolicitation provisions and requires that 
Mr. Demshur not compete with the business conducted by the Company at any time during the period that he i s  employed by the 
Company and for the two-year period thereafter unless his employment with the Company is  terminated by him for good reason (as 
defined in his employment agreement), or by the Company for cause. Notwithstanding, the post-einployment noncompetition and 
nonsolicitation restrictions terminate upon a change in control o f  the Company. 

Richard L Bergmark 
Mr. Bergmark serves as our Chief Financial Of icer  and Treasurer pursuant to an employment agreement entered into on August I. 

1998, restated as o f  Deceinber31, 2001, and amended as of February28. 2003. Unless either pany gives notice to terminate the 
agreement, the agreement wil1 automatically renew each year on the anniversary o f  the effective date fora successive three-year term. 
Mr. Bergmark’s employment agreement entitles him 10 an original base salary of $236,250, subject 10 increase at the discretion of the 
Compensation Comminee, and the opportunity to earn a yearly bonus of up to 100% o f  his then current annual base salary dependent 
upon his reaching certain performance objectives established by the Compensation Comminee. The employment agreement provides 
that Mr. Bergmark i s  entitled to participate in al1 o f  our benefit plans and programs that are available to our other executive 
employees. 

The terms of Mr. Bergmark‘s amended and revised employment agreement relating to severance and change in control benefits are 
substantially identical to those contained in Mr. Demshur’s employment agreement described above. 

As a result, assuming Mr. Bergmark’s employment was terminaled effective as o f  December 3 I, 2006, by him for any reason or by 
US for any reason other than u p n  his death or disability, for cause. or by reason o f  his material breach o f  a material provision o f  his 
employment agreement, he would have been entitled 10: 

* B lump-sum payment of $959,320 (assuming a have salary of 6330,800 and 45% of the maximum nnnual incentive bonus equal to 
$148,860); 

* benefits described in clause (h) contained above in the description of Mr. Demshur‘s severance h e f i t s  provided undcr his employment 
agreemeni valued at approximately $236,500 (this figure i s  based on ihe same assumptions used in deiermining ihe corresponding amount i,\’ 

<‘i 

co 

As o f  December31,2006, Mr. Bergmark was fully vested in the employer contributions allocated 10 his account under our 401(k) P._, 

i s  

lf Mr. Bergmark’s employment i s  terminated as a result o f  his death or disability, Mr. Bergmark ( i f  living), his spouse, andior his c9 ?.I 

under Mr. Demshur’s employment agreement above): and 

outplacement services of a value nol 10 exceed opproximdtely $330,800. 

I 

- 
I 

Plan as o f  December 31,2006, and in his stock options outstanding as o f  December 31, 2006. 

dependent children, as applicable, wil1 be entitled to the benefits described under clauses (b) and (d) contained above in the description 
of Mr. Demshur’s severance benefits provided under his employment agreement. Please read “Employment Agreements - 
Mr. Demshur.” As a resulf, assuming Mr. Bergmmk’s employment was terminated effective as of December 31, 2006, as a result o f  
his death or disability, we wil1 be obligated 10 provide severance benefits valued at approximately $1,526,620 (determined as 
described above). 

Assuming that a change in control o f  the Company occurred and Mr. Bergmark’s employment was terminated effective as o f  
December 31, 2006. in addition to the severance benefits he would have been entitled to receive as described above, he would be 
entitled 10 receive: (a) a lump-sum payment o f  $61 1,800 ($330,800 + $281,000) (comprised of an additional 100% of his base salary 
as o f  December 3 I .  2006, and the additional bonus amount); and (b) a tax gross-up payment of $2,390,683. 

Mr. Bergmark’s employment agreement contains a standard confidentiality and nonsolicitation provision and requires that 
Mr. Bergmark not compete with the business conducted by the Company at any time during the period that he i s  employed by the 
Company and for the two-year period thereatler unless his employment with the Company i s  terminated by him for good reason (is 
defined in his employment agreement), or by the Company for cause. Notwithstanding, the post-employment noncompetition and 
nonsolicitation restrictions terminate upon a change in control ofthe Company. 
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Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans 

In  1998. we adopted the Core Laboratories Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, which we refer to as the “Gmup SERP,” for 
the benefit of certain key employees and outside directors. The Group SERP was established to provide additional retirement income 
to the participants and death benefits to the participants’ designated beneficiaries as a reward for the participants’ contributions to our 
success and growth. Richard L. Bergmark, David M. Demshur and Joseph R. Perna participate in the Group SERP. Each participant 
i s  entitled to receive a retirement benefit o f  $250,000 per year, which begins on the later o f  participant’s retirement date or attaining 
the age of 65 years and i s  paid in annual installments until the participant’s death. If a participant dies on or afler his retirement date 
and prior to receiving 15 annual installments of his retirement beneilt, then the participant’s designated beneficiary i s  entitled to 
receive $250,000 each year unti l such payments have been made for an aggregate o f  I5 years to both the participant and such 
designated beneficiary. If the participant dies before his retirement date, the designated beneficiary o f  the deceased participant is 
entitled to receive $225,000 each year for 15 years. Each participant’s benefit under the Group SERP i s  fuily vested and fully 
accrued. Additionally, the participant may make a prior election 10 receive a lump sum payment upon a “change of control” of our 
Company equal to the discounted present value of the retirement benefits that would have been paid upon the participant’s retirement. 
Benefits under the Group SERP may be forfeited only in the event of a participant’s termination for cause. 

We have purchased insurance coverage on the lives of Messrs. Demshur, Bergmark and Perna to assist US in providing benefits 
under the Group SERF’. We are the owner and beneficiary o f  the insurance coverage for which al1 of the Group SERP premiums are 
fully paid. Based on actuarial calculations (including a 12% earnings rate assumption), we expect that the death benefits paid to US 
under the insurance policies wil1 be sufficient to cover the COSIS o f  the Group SERP beneilts. However, to the extent the death benefits 
under the policies are insufficient to cover those costs, we are obligated to pay the remainder out of our other general assets to absorb 
any shortfall. 

Ereculive Compensalion Program 

The following is a discussion of each ofthe pnncipal components o f  the executive total wmpensation program. 

Base Salary 
Base ralary i s  the fixed annual wmpensation we pay to an executive for períorming specific job responsibilities. I t  represents the 

minimum income an executive may receive in any given year. We target base salaries to result i n  annual salaries at approximately the 
market median of our peer group for executives having similar responsib es. The Compensation Comminee may adjust salaries 
based on i ts  annual review of the following factors: 

- the individual’sexperience and background; 

the individual’s performance during the prior year; 

the general movement o f  salaries in the marketplace; and 

OUT finnncinl and operating results * 

As a result of these factors, a particular executive’s base salary may be above or below the targeted rnedian at any point in time. 
Mr , Bergmark received approximately a 9% merit increase in 2006 as a result of our financial performance and the returns 
experienced by our shareholders; despite these factors, Mr. Demshur’s salary did not change as a result of his request to the 
Committee that his sala& nol be increased in 2006. On August 10, 2006. the Supervisory Board also npproved a one-time salary 
adjustment to compensate for the elimination o f  the car allowance perquisite. Each executive officer’s salary increased by 
approximately $4,570. 

Non-EquiS. Incentive Compensalion 

officers. The purpose o f  these awards i s  to: 
The Compensation Committee determines the term under which the annual incentive compensation wil1 be paid to executive 

- Share our success with employees: 

Provide a financial incentive to focus on specific performance targets; 

Reward employees based on individuat and team performance; 

Promote a sense ofshared accomplishment among employees; and 

Encourage employees 10 cominually improve OUT financial and operating perîoormance and thereby create shareholder vdue, 

- 
- 
* 
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Under our annual incentive plan, the Compensation Comminee has the discretion to set goals and objectives that it believes are 
consistent with creating shareholder value, including financial measures, operating objectives, growth goals and other measures. The 
Compensation Committee also considen individual achievement. The Compensation Comminee designs these awards so that cash 
incentive compensation wi i i  approximate the market median when individual and corporate strategic objectives are achieved and wil1 
exceed the markef median when performance plans are exceeded. Annual incentive awards are designed to put a significant portion of 
total compensation at risk. 

For fiscal 2006, the following performance measures were selected and weighted by the Compensation Comminee to give 
emphasis to performance for which participants have the most direct control: 

50% of the annual incentive payout was based on an eamings per share target; 

25% of  the annual incentive payout w a  based on an eamlngs before interest and taxes. or EBIT. target; and 

25% of the annual incentive payout was based on a discretionary component, which allows Tor rempition of outstanding efforl and 
dedication. 

. 
Company performance goals inciude a threshold level below which no award wil1 be payable. Threshold performance i s  generally 

set at 85% of budget and over a normal business cycle, we expect 10 achieve OUT threshold performance level 80% o f  the time. Target 
performance is generally set at the budgeted level for the year and we generally expect to achieve our target performance level 50- 
60% of the time. Maximum performance i s  generally set at 115% of budget and we expect 10 achieve or exceed this level 20% of the 
time. Since this plan began nine years ago, we have achieved performance in excess of the target four times (or 44% of the time) and 
have achieved the maximum level three times (or 33% o f  the time). 

Under the annual incentive plan, a target award opportunity i s  estabiished as a percentage o f  salary for each executive officer 
based upon a review o f  the competitive data for that ofricer’s position. level o f  responsibility and abilify to impact OUT financial 
success. The target award opportunity for each of Messrs. Demshur and Bergmark i s  75% and 50%. respectively. Under their 
employment agreements, each of Messrs Demshur and Bergmark i s  entitled 10 receive amounts o f  up 10 150% and 100%. 
respectively. These percentages result in two times our target amounts, which we believe are consistent with amounts provided by 
companies in our peer group. Each executive officer received a cash incentive payment as reflected in the Summary Compensation 
Table, which amounts represent for Mr. Demshur, 150% of his year-end base salary and Mr. Bergmark, 100% of his year-end base 

salary. r.4 

Equiry Incentive Compensation 
We currently administer long-term incentive compensation awards through OUT 1995 Lang-Term Incentive Plan, as amended, or 

“LTIP.” Specificaliy, we encourage share ownership by awarding long-term equity incentive awards under programs under our LTIP, 
consisting o f  [he Performance Share Award Program, or “PSAP,” Restricted Share Award Program, or “RSAP,” and Executive 
Restricted Share Matching Program, o; “ESMP.” We beiieve that widespread common share ownership by key employees i s  an 
important means o f  encouraging superior perfonnance and employee retention. Our equity-based compensation programs encourage 
performance and retention by providing additional incentives for executives to further our growth. development and financial success 
by personally benefiting through the ownership of OUT common shares andlor rights, which recognize growth, development and 
financiai success over a longer time horizon. 

From our inception in 1995 10 2001, we awarded stock options as the primary form o f  equity compensation. i n  2001, we 
reassessed the form o f  award and elected to begin the use of restncted share grants, which we believe are a stronger motivational 1001 
for our employees. Restricted share awards provide some vaiue to an employee during periods o f  stock market volatility. whereas 
stock options may have limited perceivcd value and may do l inie to retain and motivate employees when the current value of [he 
company’s stock i s  iess than the option price. Currently, OUT long-term equity incentive compensation is exclusively in the form of 
restricted shares and performance restricted shares. 

The Equity Awards Comminee, a subwmmittee of our Compensation Comminee, based on recommendations from our Chief 
Executive Oficer, determines the amount and terms of our long-term incentive awards by periodically reviewing competitive market 
data and each executive’s long-term past performance, abiiity to contribute to our futurc success, and time in the current job. The 
subwmmittee takes int8 account the risk o f  iosing the executive to other employment opportunitiea and the value and potential for 
appreciation in our shares. The number o f  shares previousiy granted or vested pursuant to prior grants is not typically a factor that i s  
used when determining subsequent grants 10 an executive officer. The subcomminee considen the foregoing factors together and 
subjectively determines the appropriate magnitude of the award. In 2006, equity-based compensation comprised approximateiy 48% 
of total executive officer compensation. 



The subcommittee awards restricted shares and performance restricted shares that vest over a period o f  years. Restricted share 
awards vest based on an employee’s continued employment over a period o f  time. The subcommittee determines the appmpriate 
length o f  the vesting period which for most restricted shares i s  at a rate o f  1/6 per year over a period o f  six years. Prior issuances o f  
restricted shares vested 100% at the end of a seven-year period (“cliff vesting”) bui the vesting period was subject to acceleration if 
ceiiain events occurred. n i e  subcommittee selected a slightly shorter vesting period for the 2006 awards and elected to allow a 
percentage of the awards,to vest each year, rather than continue the cliff vesting feature, as a trade-off for the elimination of the 
accelerator feature contained in the prior awards. Performance restricted shares vest if we achieve certain performance goals generally 
over a three-year period, which allow US to compensate our employees as we meet or exceed our business objectives. 

We have no program, plan or practice to time the grant of restricted shares or performance shares to executives in coordination 
with material non-public information. 

Restricted Share Award Program 
In  May 2006, 6,000 restricted shares were granted 10 Mr. Bergmark. At  his request, Mr. Demshur was nol granted an award. 

Subject to continued employment, one-sixth of the shares vest each year for six years on the anniversary o f  the date o f  grant. Full 
vesting wil1 occur if Mr. Bergmark‘s employment is  terminated because of death or disability or upon the occurrence o f  a change in 
control if Mr. Bergmark has been continuously employed by US from the date of the grant until the change in control. No performance 
accelerators for early vesting exist within this award. Compensation expense relating to these awards, which we recognized for 
financial accounting purposes during fiscal 2006, i s  reflected in footnote I to the Summary Compensation Table. 

Compensation expense relating to a restricted share award granted during fiscal 2005 was als0 recognized for financial accounting 
purposes during fiscal 2006, as described in footnote 1 to the Summary Compensation Table. The shares hi l ly vested on May I, 2006. 

Performance Share Award Program 
Under the PSAP, our executive o f i c e n  were awarded rights to receive a pre-determined number of common shares if certain 

performance targets were met, as defined in the applicable agreements for the respective three-year performance period. The following 
discussion relates to a PSAP awards granted in 2003, 2004, and 2005. 

In January 2006, the subcommittee determined that the performance target criteria had been met relating 10 the performance shares 
with a three-year performance period that began on January I, 2003. The awards covered an aggregate of 125,000 performance shares, 
of which awards wirh respect to 60,000 shares were granted to our executive oficers, and we issued the common shares pertaining to 
these awards on January 17,2006. The awards were sttuctured to compensate efforts of our executive of icen that generated a higher ).+ 
return to our shareholders as compared to the companies in our peer group over a three-year performance period that ended on i,,-.) 

December31, 2005. The performance target criteria for full vesting required our common shares to perform at or above the 75th ! 
percentile ofthe companies comprising the Philadelphia Oi l  Service Sector Index (“OSX”) at the end of the period. We recognized al1 c> 
compensation expense relating to these awards during fiscal 2005 and therefore no compensation expense relating 10 the 2003 cq 
performance shares i s  reflected in the summary compensation table. I 

In January 2007, the subcommittee determined that the performance target criteria had been met relating to the 2004 performance r.$ 
shares, which covered 120,000 performance shares, of which awards with respect to 60,000 shares were granted to our executive <;;! 
officers, and we issued the common shares on January 31, 2007. With respect to the performance shares under the f in t  half of this ’., 
award, the performance target criteria for fuli vesting required our common shares to perform at or above the 75th percentile o f  the 
companies comprising the OSX at the end o f  the three-year period. The other half  o f  the performance shares under these awards fully 
vested if we achieved a return on equity o f  18% or more during the performance period. Compensation expense relating to these 
awards, which we recognized for financial accounting purposes during fiscal 2006. is reflected in footnote I to the Summary 
Compensation Table. 

Compensation expense relating to a PSAP award granted during fiscal 2005 was also recognized for financial accounting purposes 
during fiscal 2006. as described in footnote 1 to the Summary Compensation Table, which covers an aggregate o f  120.000 
performance shares, o f  which awards with respect to 60,000 shares were granted to our executive officers. The performance shares 
wil1 vest 100% i f  our return on equity for the three-year performance period that began on January I. 2005 equals or exceeds 24%. 
Partial vesting wil1 occur if our return on equity for the performance period is less than 24% but i s  at least 20% 

Executlve Resiricted Share Matching Program 
The ESMP was implemented in June 2002 to encourage personal investment in our common shares by executive officen. Under 

the program, we matched on a one-for-one basis each share that an executive purchased on the open market or held in his/her deferred 
compensation. 401(k) or other retirement account as o f  June I, 2002, up to a maximum of 50.000 shares per participant. The shares 
purchased or held by the executives for matching purposes were 47,394 and 49,259 for Messrs. Demshur and Bergmark. respectively. 
Pursuant to the ESMP, in June 2005, we issued additional restricted shares (the “Restricted Gross-up Shares”) to reimburse them for 
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tax liabilities resulting from the vesting o f  the original grant in lune2002 of 132,853 restricted shares under the E S M P  and their 
eventual vesting in the Restncted Cross-up Shares. Compensation expense relating to these awards. which we recognized Tor financial 
accounting purposes during fiscal 2006, i s  reflected in  footnote I to the Summary Compensation Table. 

Deferred Compensaiian Plan 
Through our subsidiary, Core Laboratories LP, we have adopted a nonqualified deferred compensation plan that permits certain 

employees, including al1 executive officers, to elect to defer al1 or a pari of their cash compensation (base, annual incentives andlor 
commissions) from US until the termination of their status as an employee. Panicipating employees are eligible to receive a matching 
defeml under the nonqualified deferred compensation plan that compensates them for wntributions they could not receive from US 

under the 401(k) plan due to the various limits imposed on 401(k) plans by the U.S. federal income tax laws. 

The employer matching contributions vest at a rate o f  20% per year over a period o f  5 years. Discretionary employer contributions 
may als0 be made on behalf o f  panicipants in the plan and are subject to discretionary vesting schedules determined at the time o f  
such contributions. Vesting in al1 employer contnbutions is accelerated upon the death o f  the participant or a change in control. 
Employer contnbutions under the plan are forfeited upon a participant's termination o f  employment to the extent they are not vested at 
that time. 

Health and Wevare Eenefiis. 
We offer a standard range of health and welfare benefits to al1 employees, including our executive offcers. These benefits include 

medical, prescription drug, and dental coverages, life insurance, accidental death and dismemberment, long-term disability insurance, 
and flexible spending accounts. Our plans do nol discriminate in favor of  our executive officers. 

A copy o f  the Company's Compensation Committee charter may be found on the Company's website. at 
hrip://ww. carelab. com/governance. 

31. RELATED PARTIES 

In 2006 and 2005, 258,003 shares valued at $15.9 million and 150.915 shares valued at $4.3 million, respectively. were 
surrendered to the Company pursuant to the terms of a stock-based compensation plan, in settlement by the participants of their 
exercise wst in the stock options and their personal tax burdens that may result from the issuance of common shares under this 
arrangement. These shares were surrendered at the then current market price on the date of settlement. See Note 23 on Stock-Based 
Compensation and Note 30 on Directors' Remuneration k-+ 

i,' 

i 9  
$0 

We had no other significant related party transactions for the year ended December 31,2006. 

The following table lists subsidianes o f  the parent company that are included in the connolidated group; 

I 
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co. No. 
21 
23 
25 
27 
35 
48 
49 
50 
52 
53 
55 
56 
62 
63 
64 
65 
66 
70 
73 
74 
75 
76 
I O0 
101 
I02 

I 0 4  
105 
106 
I08  
I09  
111  
I 12  
115 
1 I6 
I I 7  
118 
I20 
122 
123 
130 
132 
133 
134 
137 
138 
139 
I41 
I 42  
I44  
148 
151 
I52  
I53 
I 5 5  
I56 
I57  

I o3 

Investment in Subsidiaries Listing 

Name Legal Seat Ownenhip % 
Core Laboratories Resources N.V. Curacao. Netherlands Antilles 100% 
Core Laboratories International Licensing N.V. 
Core Laboratories International Trading N.V. 
Core Laboratories I.P. Inc. 
Core Laboratories Holding Inc. 
Core Laboratories Middle East Services B.V. 
Core Export Sales, Inc. 
Core Laboratories L? 
Core Laboratories Canada Limited 
P i  Corelab Indonesia 
Core Laboratories SDN BHD 
Core Laboratories Australia PTY LTD 
Core Laboratories International B.V. 
Core Laboralories Saks N.V. 
Core Laboratories (U.K.) Limited 
Core Laboratories Netherlands B.V. 
Corelab Nigeria Limited 
Core Laboralories Venezuela S.A. 
Core Laboratories Corporate Holding B.V. 
Corelab Brasil Ltda 
Core Laboratorjes (Barbados) Ltd. 
Abdullah Fuad Core Laboratory Company 
Saybolt International B.V. 
Sayholt Holding B.V. 
Saybolt Denmark AIS 
Saybolt van Diyn GmbH 
Saybl t  Espana S.A. 
Saybolt Estonia Ltd. 
Saybolt Finland Oy 
Sayholt Italia S.RL. 
Saybolt Malta Ltd. 
Saybolt Greece, Ltd. 
Saybolt (Ponugal) Inspeccao de Productos Petroliferos, Lda. 
Saybolt South Africa PTY LTD 
Saybolt Sweden AB 
Saybolt Thailand Ltd. 
Saybolt United Kingdom Ltd. 
Saybolt Nederland B.V. 
Saybolt North America B.V. 
Saybolt de Mexico S.A. de C.V. 
Saybolt L? 
Core Laboratories Panama, S.A. 
E.W. Saybolt & Co. (Cayman) Ltd. 
Saybolt Analyt Holding B.V. 
Saybolt Evnu-ia Z A 0  
Saybolt-Ukraine 
Saybolt Rulgaria Ltd. 
Saybolt Baltija Ltd. 
Saybolt Latvia 
E.W. Saybolt Co N.V. 
Saybolt Bahamas Ltd. 
Saybolt de Casta Rica. S.A. 
Saybolt West Indies N.V. 
Saybolt Colombia Ltda. 
Saybolt Aruba N.V. 
Saybolt Bonaire N.V. 
Saybolt Caribbean N.V. 

Curacao, Netherlands Antilles 
Curacao, Netherlands Antilles 
Delaware, United States 
Delaware, United States 
Rolterdam. The Netherlands 
Bridgetown, Barbados 
Delaware, United States 
Alhena, Canada 
Jakarta, Indonesia 
Kuala Lumpur. Malaysia 
Penh, Australia 
Amsterdam. The Netherlands 
Curacao. Netherlands Antillcs 
London, United Kingdom 
Amsterdam, The Netherlands 
Lagos, Nigeria 
Caracas, Venezuela 
Amsterdam, 'ïhe Netherlands 
Rio de Jmeiro, Brazil 
Bridgetown, Barbados 
Saudi Arabia 
Rolterdam. The Netherlands 
Rotterdam. The Netherlands 
Copenhagen, Denmark 
Essen, Gerrnany 
Madrid, Spain 
Tallinn, Estonia 
Hamina, Finland 
Siracusa. Italy 
Kalafran. Malta 
Athens, Greece 
Lisbon, Portugal 
Cape Town. South Africa 
Gathenburg, Sweden 
Bangkok. Thailand 
Purfleet. Uniled Kingdom 
Rotterdam, The Netherlands 
Ronerdam, The Netherlands 
Coaüxoalcos. Mexico 
Delaware, United States 
Panama City. Panama 
Gtand Cayman 
Ronerdam, The Netherlands 
Moscow. Russia Federation 
Odessa, Ukraine 
Bourgas. Buigaria 
Klsipeda, Lithuania 
Ventspils. Latvia 
SI. Eustatius, Netherland Antilles.. 
Freeport, Bahamas 
Snn Jose. Costa Rica 
Kingston. Jamaica 
Barranquilla. Colombia 
Aruba 
Bonaire, Netherlands Antilles 
Aruba 

100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 
ion% 

I 00% 
100% 
I 00% 
70% 
100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 

100% 
I 00% 

51% 
100% 
100% 
I 00% 

I 00% 
100% 
I 00% 
100% 

I oo% 

I oo% 

I nov" 

ino% 

ion% 

100% F A  
100% CL) 

100% , 
73% c> 
100% , ~ *  
100% , 
100% 
100% b-' 
100% c3 
100% c:) 
I nn% *,.I 

I 00% 
I 00% 

100% 
100% 
I 00% 
100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
99% 
100% 
95% 
I 00% 
100% 
100% 

I 

I oonio 
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Co. No. 
I58 
I59  
I 60 
I62 
165 
I66 
I70 
171 
I75 
I77 
I79 
181 
I82 
I83 
I88 
I90 
I92 
I95 
200 
204 
205 
210 
212 
213 
219 
226 
231 
260 
26 I 
262 
270 
273 
277 
278 
290 
292 
293 
294 
291 
298 
325 
350 
370 
375 
3 8 1  
388 
391 
400 
41 i 

Name 
Saybolt Curacao N.V. 
Sayholt Trinidad & Tobago Ltd. 
Saybolt Eastern Hemisphere B.V. 
Saybolt Bahrain: 
Sayholt (M)  SDN BHD 
PT Citra Wosaji Indonesia 
Saybolf Azerbaijan, Lid. 
Sayholt Azerbaijan B.V. 
Core Laboratories EI Salvador S.A. de C.V. 
Saybolt Belgium 
Saybolt (Tianjin) Meteorology & Inspection Company Ltd. 
Saybolt Latin America Holding B.V. 
Saybolt Qatar 
Core Laboratories Angola Ltd. 
Sayblt (Singapore) PTE LTD 
Core Laboratories (H.K.) Limited 
Quantoil Lid. 
E.W. Saybolt & Co. S.A. 
Owen Oi l  Tools LP 
Owen Oil Tools de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 
Owen Oi l  Tools de Venezuela, C.A. 
Owen Compliance Services, Inc. 
Owen de Mexico S.A. de C.V. 
Owen Oil Tools (U.K.) Ltd. 
Owen Oil Tools Argentina, S.A. 
Core Laboratories LLP (Kazakhstan) 
DP Saybolt Turkmenistan 
Petroleum Analysts ZA0 
O 0 0  Lab Technics 
Saybolt Belarus 
Saybolt Test 000 
Sayboli Armenia 
SP TOO Saybolt Kazakhstan 
Saybolt Mongol HHK 
Core Lab de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 
Core Lab Operations S.A. de C.V. 
ProTechnics de Mexico. S.A. de C.V. 
Core Lab Services S.A. de C.V. 
Core Lab Petroleum Services S.A. de C.V. 
Core Lab Executives S.A. de C.V. 
Stim-Lab, Inc. 
Core Laboratories Global N.V. 
Coherencc Technology Company, Inc. 
CTC Pulsonic Nigeria Limited 
Production Enhancement Corporation 
PENCOR de Venezuela, C.A. 
PENCOR Inlernational Lid. 
Coreton Limited 
FE & FEFH Holding. lnc. 
China Corelab Ltd. 
Core Laboratories Malta Holding Limited 
Core Laboratories Malta Limited 

Legal Scat 
Curacao. Netherlands Antilles 
Marabella, Trinidad 
Rotterdam, The Nefherlands 
Manama Bahrain 
Kuala Lumpur. Malaysia 
Jakarta Indonesia 
Baku, Azrrbaijan 
Rotterdam. The Nefherlands 
San Salvador, EI Salvador 
Antwerp, Belgium 
Tianjin. China 
Rotterdam, The Netherlands 
Doha Qatar 
Luanda, Angola 
Singapore 
Hong Kong 
London, United Kingdom 
Panama City, Panama 
Texas, United States 
Tabasco, Mexico 
Anaco. Anzoategui. Venezuela 
Texas, United States 
Mexico City, Mexico 
Croydon, United Kingdom 
Buenos Aires, Argentina 
Aktau. Kazakhstan 
Turkenbashi, Turkmenistan 
Mosww, Russia Federation 
Mosww. Russia Federation 
Minsk. Belarus 
Baqhkortostan, Russian Federation 
Yerevan, Armenia 
Almaty, Kaznkhstan 
Mongolia 
Mexiw City, Mexico 
Mexico City. Mexico 
Mexico City. Mexico 
Mexico City, Mexico 
Mexiw City. Mexico 
Mexico City, Mexico 
Oklahoina. Unitcd Stafes 
Curacao, Netherlands Antilles 
Colorado, United States 
Lagos, Nigeria 
Delaware. United Siates 
Maturin, Venezuela 
Jersey, Channel Islands 
Croydon, United Kingdom 
Alberta. Canada 
China 
Malta 
Malta 

Ownership % 
100% 
I 00% 
100% 
100% 
40% 
h5% 
10056 
50% 
100% 
100% 
I novo 
I novo 
100% 
100% 
100?6 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
I 00% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
I 00% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
90% 
I 00% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
99% 
99% 
I 00% 
I 00% 
100% 
80% 
100% 
I 00% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
50% 
99% 
99% 

I 00% 
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32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On April 2, 2007, our shareholders approved the cancellation of al1 shares held in treasury as of the date of the shareholder 
meeting. This reduced our issued shares by 3.1 million shares. In addition, the shareholders approved the extension of the authority to 
repurchase up to 10% of our issued share capital until October 2,2008. 

In February 2007, the executive management team exercised 1,266,392 stock options and held for investment, rather than sold. the 
underlying shares. 

Consequences of First Time Adoption of IFRS 

Preface 

The 2006 consolidated financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International Financial Reporling Standards 
("IFRS"). The comparative figures for 2005 have been restated accordingly. Prior to this, Core Laboratories N.V. reported in 
accordance with the requirements of Dutch GAAP. The breakdowns below show the reconciliation between Dutch GAAP and IFRS. I 

(in Ihousonds) 

REVENUES: 
Services 
Sales 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of services 
Cost of sales 

CROSS PROFIT 

Genera1 and administrative expenses 
Olher expense (income), net 

OPERATING PROFIT 
Finance costs 
Share of profit/(loss) of  associates 
Profit before inwme tax expense 
Income tax expense 
Income from continuing operations 
Loss from discontinued operations 
Minority interest 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the parent 
Minority interest 

EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION: 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES 
OUTSTANDING: 
Basic 
Diluted 

Dutch GAAP Adjustment IFRS 
Ref. 2005 IFRS 2005 

$ 367,401 
116,066 
483,467 

34.35 278,439 579 279,018 
34 102.3 I 6  (232) 102,084 

102,712 347 102,365 

33,34 47,636 (9.526) 38.1 10 
3,116 (2,431) 685 

5 I .960 11.610 63.570 
131887 13;887 b..+ 

36 36 \.i) 

38.073 I 1,646 49.719 I 
36 14,565 1,112 13.453 <:3 

23,508 12.758 36,266 ca 
(506)  (506) I 

40 (40) P..) 
C? $ 23,042 $ 12,718 $ 35,760 

( 3  
-.I 

$ 23.002 S 12.718 $ 35,720 
40 40 

S 23,042 $ 12,718 $ 35.760 
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- 
$ 0.88 Ia 0.49 $ 1.37 

$ 0.82 $ 0.45 $ 1.28 

26.038 26,038 26,038 
28,008 28,008 28,008 



Notes on the most important effects: 

33. A M O R T I Z A T I O N  OF G O O D W I L L  

Under IFRS goodwill i s  not longer amonized, bui is  tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if circumstances 
indicate a potential impairment. The difference for 2005 compared with Dutch GAAP i s  56.9 million 

34. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

Under IFRS 2 stock-based awards granted to employees are measured at fair value and recognized through profit or loss over the 
vesting period. Dutch GAAP permined the intrinsic value method to be used for stock-based compensation awards. Additionally, 
IFRS requires awards granted which vest in installments over the vesting penod to be recognized as separate awards for each vesting 
period. Dutch GAAP permitted these awards to be recognized ratably over the vesting period. The difference for 2005 compared 
with Dutch GAAP was a decrease o f $  3.5 million to compensation expense. 

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 

Defined benefit schemes (IAS 19): Al1 actuarial gainc and losser not yet recognized as at January I ,  2005 under Dutch GAAP have 
been charged to equity, so there is no allocation to future years. The effect on the gross profil compared with Dutch GAAP is  a 
decrease ofS0.I million. 

36. I N C O M E  T A X  

Owing <o the transition to IFRS, the balance ofdeferred tax assets and liabilities as oflanuary I ,  2005 has been increased by $0.8 
million due to the above mentioned recalculations. 

37. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

As wel1 as the above mentioned items, there are a number of minor reclassifications made to conform to presentation under IFRS 
that have no effect on net profil. 
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet 

(in thousand) 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Propetty, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Investment in associates 
Deferred income fax asset 
Other financial assets 
Other assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Inventones 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Income tax receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY 
Shareholders' equity 
Minority interest 

TOTAL EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Borrowings 
Income tax payable 
Deferred income tax liabilities 
Provisions 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Borrowings 
Other taxes payable 
Payroll and social security contributions 
Other accNed expenses ' 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
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Dutch 
GAAP Adjustment IFRS 

Ref. 01/01/2005 IFRS 01/01/2005 

$ 79,622 $ 79,622 
38 15,980 169.228 185,208 
40 1,107 1.107 
40 17,275 17,275 

39,40 26,895 (22,890) 4,005 
40 3,914 3,914 

122,497 168,634 291,131 

29,426 
40 10,738 

95,449 
16,030 
I5 1,643 

$ 274,140 

38.39 $ 68,330 
1,069 

69,399 

110.224 
40 
40 
39,40 27,106 

137,330 

39 

(1,331) 
907 

(424) 

$ 168,210 

$ 168,396 

168.396 

(720) 
7,036 
7.310 

(14,346) 
(720) 

29.426 
9,407 
907 

95,449 
16,030 
151,219 

$ 442,350 

$ 236,726 
1,069 

237.795 

f* 
i . 1  

7,036ï? 
7.3 I o:n 
12,760 1 

136,610,..) 

109.504 1 

c> 
C:i 

28,633 28.633..~ 
2,976 2,976 
4,l I I 534 4,645 
20,085 20,085 
I 1,606 I i ,606 
67.4 I i 534 67,945 

204,741 (186) 204,555 

$ 274,140 S 168,210 $ 442,350 
I 



(in Ihousonh) 
Dutch 
GAAP Adjustment IFRS 

Ref. l2/3 1/2005 IFRS 12/31/2005 
ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 
Jntangible assets 
Investment in associates 
Deferred income tax asset 
Other financial assets 
Other assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Inventones 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Income tax receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY 
Shareholden’ equity 
Minority interest 

TOTAL EQUITV 

LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Borrowings 
Income tax payable 
Deferred income tax liabilities 
Provisions 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES. 
Accounts payable 
Borrowings 
Other taxes payable 
Payroll and social security contributions 
Other accrued expenses , 
Discontinued operations 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

$ 81.342 $ $ 81,342 
38 8,201 176.416 184.617 
40 1,141 1,141 
40 25,901 25,901 

39,40 26,840 (22.067) ’ 4,773 
40 860 860 

116,383 182,251 298,634 

40 
29, I04 
I 1.269 

99.129 
13;743 

153,245 

$ 269,628 

38.39 $ 84,080 
1,065 

85,145 

86,104 
40 
40 

39.40 28,823 
114,927 

(530) 
94 

$ 181,815 

$ 179,179 

179.179 

(524) 
7,036 
5.204 

( I  O, 170) 
1,546 

29,104 
10,739 

94 
99.1 29 
13,743 

152,809 

$ 451,443 

$ 263,259 
1,065 

264,324 

85,580 ).,i> 

7,036 c ~ ,  
5.204 ’ , 

18.653 .~ 
116.473 ’*’ 

CQ 

32.557 32.S57p7’ 
2,544 2.544î2 

39 5,660 1,090 6,750 $3 
17,371 17.371’-1 
10.624 10.624 

800 800 
69,556 1,090 70,646 

184.483 2.636 187,119 

$ 269.628 $ 181,815 $ 451,443 

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS BEFORE THE OPENING CONSOLDIATED BALANACE SHEET UNDER IFRS 

IFRS I permits application of IFRS No 3 Business Combinations (“IFRS 3”) to business combinations that took place before the 
IFRS transition date, including ihe possibility to capitalize goodwill that has already been charged to equity. In line with the full 
adoption of IFRS. we have retrospectively applied IFRS 3 to al1 business combinations which have taken place since April 1997. As a 
consequence, al1 goodwill that was amortized since 1997 under Dutch GAAP ($169.2 million) has been reinstated to the intangible 
asset balance out of equity at January 1,2005. 



39. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

For the valuation of defined benefit pension plans, the value of the net pension liability on the IFRS transition date can be used. 
We have employed this provision. Al1 actuarial gains and losses not yet recognized as o f  January I, 2005 under Dutch GAAP ($0.5 
million) wil1 be charged net o f  tax 10 equity (impact of $0.3 miliion). 

Obligations for future social benefits associated with employee stock-based compensation have been accrued. 

40. RECLASSIFICATIONS 

Certain accounts previously combined on ihe balance sheet under Dutch GAAP have been presented separately under IFRS. The 
following significant items have been either presented separately or classified differently under IFRS: 

. 
- . 

Investments in Associates - presented separately from other financial assets 
Deferred Income taxes - deferred tax assets are presented separate other financial assets and deferred tax liabilities and 
presented separate from provisions 
Other assets presented separate from other financial assets 
Longterm income taxes payable has been presented separate from provisions 
Debl issuance costs capitalized and amortized over the l ife o f  the associated debt instrument have been reclassified fmm 
intangibie assets and presented net with long-term borrowings 

41. CONSOLIDATED EQUITY 

The consequences of applying IFRS to the consolidated equity as of January I ,  2005 are as follows ( in thousands): 

Dutch GAAP at December 31,2004 $ 69.399 
Business combinations 167,503 
Net actuarial loss on pension nol yet recognized (317) 
Stock-based compensation 1,210 

Total adjustments 168,396 
IFRS at January 1,2005 $ 237,795 

The consequences of applying IFRS to the consolidated equity as of December 3 I ,  2005 are as follows ( in thousands): 

Dutch GAAP al  December 31,2005 $ 85,145 
Adjustments at January I, 2005 (see above) 168,396 
Business combinations 7,956 
Net actuarial loss on pension not yet recognized (2,497) 
Stock-based compensation 5.324 

Total adjustments 
IFRS at December 3 I ,  2005 

179,179 
$ 264,324 

42. CONSOLIDATED 2005 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

The net cash tlow under IFRS i s  not the Same as under Dutch GAAP because of the revised presentation of certain financial 
instruments and fax benefits realized directly into equity. Hence the application of IFRS has no effect on cash flow, only the 
classification of certain items. 
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ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

CORE LABORATORIES N.V. 
BALANCE SHEET 

December 31,2006 and 2005 
( in  thounands, excepi share and per share data) 

Property, plant and equipment 
Investment in affliates 
Deferred income tax asset 
Other assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Receivables from subsidianes 
Accounts receivable 
Cash and cash equivalenis 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

SHAREHOLDE RS' EQUITY 
Preference shares. EUR 0.04 Dar value in 2006 and EUR 0.01 Dar value in 2005: 

3,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding 

100,000,000 shares authorized, 25,608,511 issued and 23,225,121 outstanding at 
2006 and 26,797,354 issued and 25,774,339 outstanding at 2005 

' 

Common shares, EUR 0.04 par value in 2006 and EUR 0.01 par value in 2005; 

Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Other reserves 
Treasuiy shares (at cost), 2,383,390 at 2006 and 1,023,015 at 2005 

TOTAL EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Borrowings 
Deferred income tax liabilities 
Long t e n  payable to subsidiaries 
Dcrivative financial instrument 
Provisions 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Borrowings 
Pavables to subsidiaries 
Other accNed expences 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Ref. 2006 2005 

$ - $  219 
3 360.293 423.330 . 

8,182 5,917 
3 3,410 1,286 

371,885 430,752 

652 
I02,42 I 

I25 
1.572 

104,770 

is 476,655 

s 

1.201 
66,571 

223,472 
(144) 

(174,834) 
4 116,266 

6 
6 1,575 
6 8,319 

68,210 
5 40,345 

I 18,449 

427 
35.703 

707 
1,352 

38.189 

S 468,941 

445 
144,690 
15 1,091 

(30,557) 
263,259 

(2.410) 

17,000 
1,575 
8,473 

40,112 
67, I60 

698 744 
2,654 2.412 

235,646 132,280 
2,942 3,086 

24 1.940 138.522 

360,389 205,682 

$ 476,655 $ 468,941 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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CORE LABORATORIES N.V. 
INCOME STATEMENTS 

For the Vears Ended December 31,2006 and 2005 
(In thousands of USD) 

Ref. 2006 2005 

Stand alone company net Ioss aller taxation 
Profit from subsidiaries after tax 

Result aiìer taxation 

$ (5,093) $ (8.284) 
77,474 44,101 

S 72,381 S 35,817 
I 

~ 

The accompanying notes are an integral pari ofthese Financial Statements. 
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Core Laboratories N.V. 
Notes to the Company Financial Statements 

1. GENERAL 

The description of  the Company's activities and the group structure, as included in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, also apply to the Company-only financial statements. 

In accordance with article 402 Book 2 ofthe Dutch Civil Code the Income Statement is presented in abbreviated form. 

2. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Cencral 

For the principles for Ihe recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities and determination of the result for its corporate 
financial statements, Core Laboratories N.V. applies the option provided in Section 2:362 (8) of the Dutch Civil Code. The accounting 
principles as descrihed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, prepared under IFRS, also apply 10 the Parent Company- 
only financial statements, unless indicated othenvise. 

Change in Accounting PrincipIes 

The effect from the 2006 financial year, Core Laboratories N.V. has prepared the consolidated financial statements i n  accordance 
with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted within the European Union. In the consoiidated financial statements, 
first application of these accounting principles resulted in changes in the applied principles and valuation of assets, provisions and 
equity ("IFRS I Adjustments"). These IFRS 1 Adjustments were mainly implemented retroactively in the comparative figures as o f  
lanuary I ,  2005. 

In 2006, Core Laborgories N.V. har opted to apply the accounting principles used in the consolidated financial statements to the 
Company financial statements according 10 Section 2:362 (8) of Dutch Civil Code. This provides a clearer presentation of the 
Company's financial statements, Shareholders' equity and results of operations in the Company financial statements wil1 remain equal 
to shareholders' equity and results of operations (iess minority interest) in the consolidated financial statements, which is generally 
aicepted according to Dutch practice. 

c 3  , 
CD 
iQ 

I'..! 
(m 

I 
Compared to the 2005 financial statements, this has resulted in: 

A change in shareholdets' equity as of lanuary 1 and December 31,2005 as a result of IFRS I adjustments; 
A change in the results for 2005 as a result of the IFRS 1 adjustments; 

,- 
The effects of the change of accounting principles on equity and recult comespond with the infomation included in the footnote 

Consequences of  Fint Ti.me Adoption of IFRS. -! 

Investmene in Afflliaies 

Investments in affiliates and other companies over which Core Lahoratories N.V. exercises predominant control or over which i1 
has predominant control are valued at net equity value, the basis of the accounting principles as applied by the consolidated financial 
statements. Minonty intererts with an equity deficit are carried at nil. A provision is formed if and when the Company is fully or 
partially liahle for the debts of the affiliate, or has the firm intention to allow the affiiiate 10 pay its debts. 

In determining the net equity value, the transitional rules are taken into account for determining the values and the accounting 
principles of the first application of the IFRS principles applied in the consolidated financial statements. 
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3. FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Investments in Afflliates 

(in rhousands) 2006 

Bookvaiue a t  December 31,2004 
Effect of adoption of IFRS 

Book value a t  January 1: S 423,330 
Capital contributionl (transfers) (136,665) 
(Reduction 00 / Additional negative net asset value stated at nil (2,362) 
Reserves ( 1,484) 
Net income fmm subsidiaries 77,474 

Bookvalueat  December31: S 360,293 

2005 

$ 185,618 
173,434 

$ 359,052 
(329) 

18.038 
2.468 

44,101 

$ 423.330 

For a listing of directly and indirectly held subsidiaries that are included in the financial fixed assets as investments in amliates. 
see Note I of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Other asseis 

Life insurance policies with cash surrender value have been purchased by US to assist in funding deferred compensation 
arrangements with certain employees. These policies are carried at market value. 

4. EQUITV 

Share capital 

The authorized share;capital of the Company as at December 31. 2006 amounts 10 EUR4 million and consists of 100,000,000 b r  

i 0  

Issued and paid in share capital amounts to EUR 1.0 million and consists of 25,608,51 I issued ordinary shares with a par value of î p  

ordinary shares of EUR 0.04 each. 
I 

EUR 0.04 each. Repurchased ordinary shares amounts to $0.1 million and consists of 2,383,390 ordinary shares with a par value of 
EUR 0.04 each. I 

F..) 
1:3 
cp 

The movements in the number of shares in 2006 are as follows: 

Repurchased !.J 
Ordinary ordinary 

shares shares 

Balance as at lanuary I ,  2006 
Issue of ordinary shares 
Repurchased own shares 
Shares cancelled 

Balance as at December 31,2006 

26,797.354 1,023,015 

3,837,3 72 
(2,476,997) (2,476.997) 

1,288,154 

25,608,51 I 2,383,390 

The contribution received in 2006 on 1,023,754 shares of stock options exercised was made in cash. The issue-related costs are 
deducted from paid-in capital. An additional 264,400 shares were issued related to executive compensation plans for no cash. 



During the year ended December 31, 2006, we repurchased 3,837,372 shares of our common stock for an aggregate amount of 
$251 . I  million, or an average price of $65.43 per share, and have cancelled 2,476.997 shares with a historica1 cost ofS106.8 million. 
These repurchased shares represent 15.0% of total share capital at December 3 I ,  2006. 

The movement in shareholden'equity is as follows: 

Addilional Tollil 

Shares Cspital Enrnings Raslrirled Shares Equify 
(in ihousandsl Common Paíd-In Areumulated Other Resemcs- Rrptmhsscd Shereholdem' 

BALANCE.Decembrr31.2005 S 445 $ 118,222 S (4,030) s S (30,557) IE 84.080 

BALANCE. January 1.2006 445 144,690 I5 1.09 I (2,410) (30.557) 263.259 
Stock opiians exercised nel 

af capiial IBXCS 20 14,833 14.853 
Stock-based awardr issued 3 5,940 5,943 

cxercircd 8,872 8,872 
Repurchases of unnmon shares (251.088) (25 I .na) 
Change in par value elfect 977 (977) 

ndjuslment (220) 

Eíïect of adoption of IFRS 26.468 155,121 (2.410) 179.179 

Tax benefit ofslock options 

In6.811 Cancellation of wmmon shares (24) (106.787) 
Cumulative translation 

2.046 2.046 Pension adjustment 
Ne1 income 72,381 72.381 
BALANCE,Decmber3),2006 Ia i.201 6 66,571 S 223,472 s (144) s (174,834) S 116.266 

Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar. However, the par value of our common stock is denominated in Euros. We have 
recorded a cumulative translation adjustment related 10 the value of our common stock of $221.000 related to this re-measurement, as 
índicated in the movemenf schedule above. 

220 

The Company enacted a share repurchase program which was approved by shareholden at our annual meeting in 1995 and at each 
subsequent annual meeting. Under the terms of the most recent approval, the Company is allowed 10 purchase up 10 10% of the 
outstanding shares of the Company until October 2008. ï h e  Company began purchasing shares under this program on October 29. 
2002. +.. 

LL! 

It is the intention ofthe Company 10 hold these repurchased shares as a tempomry investment 10 use fora  future acquisition where ! 
it makes sense to do so or to resell to the public when the stock price increases. However, being incorporated in The Netherlands. CD 
under the Dutch Civil Code ("DCC") a corporation can hold a maximum of 10% of their outstanding shares in treasury. Therefore, i1 CQ 

b..) 
If the repurchased shares are cancelled, the Parent Company treats the repurchased shares as linanced with the recognized share 

capital and paid-in capital for Dutch tax purposes. Should this occur, these shares are amortized against the actual share capital and $3 
'..! 

may be necessary to cancel repurchased shares to remain in compliance with the DCC. I 

paid-in capital as included in the Company's equity. 

The authorized share capital consists of 100,000,000 authorized common shares of which 25,608,511 shares are issued and 
23,225,121 are outstanding at December 31, 2006. The shares have a par value of EUR 0.04. We applied a translation rate of 1.3243 
eums per U.S. dollar as ofDecember 31,2006. 

Stock options exercised in 2006 relate to our long-term incentive plan and were exercised at the request ofcertain employees 

At December 31. 2Ò06, the Company has outstanding stock options of 1,640,659 shares at exercise prices ranging from $0.01 10 
$25.00 awarded to employees with a weighled average contractual life of 5.1 years. 

Treasuy Shares 

Taking into account the capital protection measures of article 207. Book 2 of the Civil Code, 2,383,390 shares with a nomina1 
value of $174.8 million were acquired by the Company as at the end of the financial year (2005: 1,023,015 shares). 
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fln thousandsl 

Balance as at Ianuary I ,  
Repurchase own shares 
Cancelled shares 
Balance as at December 3 I, 

2006 2005 

$ 30,557 $ 41,271 
251,088 4 I .446 

( i06,8l  I )  (52,160) 
$ 174,834 $ 30.557 

The number of treasury shares reported in our balance sheet as o f  December 31. 2006 include shares in our capital held by our 
subsidiaries Core Laboratones LP and Core Laboratories Holding Inc. Reference is made to Note 22 Commitments and Contingencies 
in respect o f  a contingent asset and a contingent liability relating to such shares. each for an amount equnl to the acquisition price of 
such share of $ 167.5 million, increased with statutory interest as fmm the date ofacquisition o f  such shares. 

Conversion Feature on Notes Issued by Subsidiary 

On November 6, 2006 Core Laboratories LP. a wholly owned subsidiary, issued $250 million aggregate principal amount o f  Senior 
Exchangeable Notes due 201 1 ("Notes") to qualified institutional buyers. The Notes bear interest at a raie of0.25% per year and are 
guaranteed by Core Laboratones N.V. The Notes effective interest rate i s  0.25%. These notes are exchangeable info shares of  Core 
Laboratories N.V. under certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate o f  10.5533 per $1,000 principal amount o f  notes, which i s  
equal 10 a conversion pnce ofapproximately $94.76 per share. The exchange is contingent upon the following circumsiances: 

Saiisfaciion of Sale price condition - If in  any calendar quarter beginning after the quarter ending December 31, 2006, the 
closing s a k  price per share of Core Laboratones N V  common shares for at least 20 trading days dunng the period of 30 
consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day o f  the previous calendar quarter i s  greater than approximately 
$123.18 (this is 130.0% of the exchange price per Core Laboratories NV common shares for the notes assuming no events 
have occurred that would require an adjustment <o the exchange rate); 

Sarisfaction of irading price condition - Dunng the five business-day period immediately following any ten consecutive 
trading day period in  which the trading price per $1,000 principal amounts of notes for each day o f  that period was less than 
95% o f  the product o f  the sales price of Core Laboratories N V  common shares and the then applicable exchange rate; 

Speafied corporale lransactions ~ Upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions as described in the Notes 
Agreement (e.g., fundamental changeichange of conîrol, distribution of common share rights to purchase shares at less than ti 
market price; dístnbution of asseis, debt secunties, or  nghts to purchase secutities at  a value exceedhg 20% of common '-li 

c,1 
Upon exchange, holders wil1 receive cash up to the principal amount. and any excess exchange value wil1 be delivered in Core & 

Laboratones N.V. common shares. On November 17,2006, the initial purchasers exercised their option to purchase an additional $50 1 

million of the 0.25% senior exchangeable notes due 201 I ,  increasing the aggregate issuance o f  such notes 10 $300 million. We soldb.' 
the Notes to the initial purchasers in  reliance on Rule 144A of the  Securities Act and subsequently filed a registration statement onC3 
Form S-3, which became effective immediately, pursuant to the Securities Act with respect to resale of the notes and shares received?;) 
in exchange for the notes on December 22, 2006. The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.2$% per year payable semiannually on May 6.4 
and November 6 o f  each year, beginning on May 6, 2007. Total debt issuance costs were $6.7 million o f  which $4.7 miliion were 
capitalized in  connection with the issuance o f  the Notes in other long-tem assets on our consolidated balance sheet and are being 
amortized thmugh November 201 I. 

share market price). I 

Core Laboratones LP used proceeds of the offering 10 enter info exchangeable note hedge transactions with a financial institution 
which i s  an afíiliate of one o f  the initial purchasers. The exchangeable note hedge transactions are designed to cover, subject 10 
customary anti-dilution adjustments, the net number of our common shares that would be deliverable 10 exchangíng note holders in the 
event o fan  exchange o f  the notes. We paid an aggregate amount o f  approximately $86.3 million o f  the proceeds from the sale of the 
Notes to acquire the cal1 options which was recorded as a derivative financial instrument. 

Core Laboratories N.V. also entered info separate warrant transactions at the time o f  the sale of the Notes whereby we sold 
warrants which give the holders the right to acquire approximately 3.2 million of our common shares at a strike price of $127.56 per 
share. Upon exercise of the warrants. we have the option to deliver cash or our common shares equal to the difference between the 
then market price and strike price. Al1 of the warrants wil1 expire on January25, 2012. We received aggregate proceeds of $56.5 
million from the sale of the warrants which was recorded as a derivative financial instrument. 
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5. PROVISIONS 

Al1 of the provisions are of a long-term nature and are specified as follows (in thousands): 

Comolidaied 
Deferred Partieipating Termination 

Compensation Interests Benefits Total 

AI January 1,2006 $ 4,844 s 35,268 $ $ 40,112 
Charged / (credited) to the income 
statement: 

Additional provisions 386 2.209 2.595 
Used during the year 

At December31,2006 
(2.362) (2362) 

$ 5,230 $ 32,906 $ 2,209 $ 40.345 

6. LONG T E R M  LIABILITIES 

Liabilities ofa long-tem nature are due geater  than 5 years are specified as follows (in thousands): 

Long Term 
Credil Inter-company Deferred Tax Total 
Facility Liability Liability 

AI January 1,2006 S 17,000 $ 8,473 $ 1,575 $ 25.473 
Charged / (credited) to the income 
statement: 

Additional próvisions 
Releasdpayments 

At December 31,2006 
( 1  7,000) (154) (17,154) 

$ $ 8,319 $ 1,575 S 8.319 

r ‘ i  
c il 
l 

c3 
i. INCOME TAXES 

Core Laboratories N.V. and its wholly owned Dutch rubsidiaries constitute a tiscal entity. Income t w e s  are allocaled to the 
companies within the fiscal entity on the basis of their taxable income. For a reconciliation of the effective tax rate with the stetutory 
rate see Note 27, Income Taxes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

I 

”<I 
Ci, 

8. RELATED PARTIES 

For related party discussions, see Note 3 1  ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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9. SUPERVISORY DIRECTORS 

For a discussion o f  Supervisory Director remuneration and related party transactions, pee Note 30 and 3 1  to the Notec to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

/s/ David M. Demshur 
David M. Demshur 
President, Chief Executive Offcer and 
Supervisory Director (Principal Executive 
Officer) 

/s/ Richard L. Bergmark 
Richard L. Bergrnark 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial 
Offcer, Treasurer and Supervisory Director 

/si Jacobus Schouten 
Jacobus Schouten 
Supervisory Director 

is/ Michael C. Kearney 
Michael C. Kearney 
Supervisory Director 

'SI Alexander Vriesendorp 
Alexandcr Viesendorp 

SI Jan Willem Soddcrland 
Jan Willcm Soaderland. on behalfof 
Core Laboratories International B.V. 
s o k  managing director of Core Laboratories N.V 

i s /  Joseph R. Pema 
Joseph R. Perna 
Supervisory Director 

Is/ Rene R. Joyce 
Rene R. Joyce 
Supervisory Director 

/s/ D. John Ogen 
D. John Ogren 
Supervisory Director 

Supervisory Director 

Amsterdam, The Nethedands. 
June 22,2007 
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Other information 

Fora discussion of rubsequent events, see Note 32 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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1 Audltofs Report 
The Auditor's report is included on page 75. 

2 Statutov Appropriation of Income 

decided upon at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Income is expected to be fully included in retained earnings. 

Proposed appropriation of reiults 

The Articies of Incorporation of the Company provide that the results for the year are subject to the disposition of the shareholders 

The Company has never paid dividends on its common shares and currently has no plans to pay dividends on its common shares. 
The Board of Supervisory Directors propose to add the result of $72.4 million to the retained earnings. The Company expects to retain 
al1 available earnings generated by our operations for the development and growth of the business along with share repurchases under 
our share repurchase program. Any fuiure determination as to the payment of dividends wil1 be made at the discretion of our 
Supervisory Board and wil1 depend upon our operating results, financial condition. capital requirements, income tax treatment of 
payments, general business conditions and such other factors we may deem relevant. Because Core Laboratories N.V. is a holding 
company that conducts substantially al1 of its operations through subsidiaries, our ability 10 pay cash dividends on the common shares 
is als0 dependent upon the ability of our subsidiaries to pay cash dividends or othenvise distribute or advance funds to US and on the 
t e m s  and conditions of our existing and fuNre credit arrangements. 

3 Branches 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial information for the following branch locarions: 

Name Legal Seat 

Core Laboratories International B.V. - Abu Dhabi Branch 
Core Laboratories International B.V. - Colombia Branch 
Core Laboratories International B.V. ~ Pakistan Branch 
Core Laboratories International E.V. - India Branch 
Core Laboratorier International B.V. - Dubai Branch 
Core Laboralories International B.V. -Oman Branch 
Core Laboratories International B.V. - Ecuador Branch 
Core Laboratories LP - China Rep Office 
Core Laboraiories Sales N.V. - Mexico Branch 
Saybolt LP. Virgin Islands Branch 
Saybolt LP Puerto Rico Branch 
Saybolt International B.V. ~ Qatar Branch 
Saybolt International B.V. - Bahrain Branch 
Saybolt international B.V. - Kuwait Branch 
Saybolt International B.V. - Yemen Branch 
Saybolt Analyt Holding B.V.. Beijing Rep. Office 
Saybolt Analyi Holding B.V. ~ Turkmenistan 
Saybolt Analyt Holding B.V. ~ Georgia Rep. Office 
Saybolt Anaiyt Holding B.V. Rep. Office 
Saybolt West Indies N.V. - Jamaica Branch 
Saybolt Tianjin M&l Company Xiamen Branch 
Saybolt Tianjin M&l ~ Zhuhai Branch 
Saybolt Afrique SARL - Mauritian Branch 
EW Saybolt & Co SA - Abu Dhabi Branch 
EW Saybolt & Co SA - Egypt Branch 
Shanghai SIC ~ Saybolt Commodities Surveying Co Ltd ~ Taiwan Branch 
Owen Oil T v l s  LP ~Thai land Branch 
Production EBhancement Corporation Tnnidad Branch 
Pencor Intemational Ltd. Sakhalinsk Branch 
Pencor Intemational Ltd. Kazakhstan Branch 

Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
ûogota, Colombia 
Karachi, Pakistan 
Mumbai, India 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates 
Muscat. Oman 
Quito, Ecuador 
Beijing, China 
Villahermosa Mexico 
SI. Croix. USVI 
Guayanilla, Puerto Rico 
Doha, Qatar 
Manama, Bahrain 
Mangaf, Kuwait 
Aden, Yemen 
Beijing, China 
Turkenbashi, Turkmenistan 
Batumi, Georgia 
Moscow, Russia 
Jamaica 
Xiamen, China 
Zhuhai. China 
Mauririus 
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
Alexandria, Egypt 
Tawain 
Songkhla, Thailand 
Trinidad 
Sakhalin, Russia Federation 
Atyrau, Kazakhstan 



To the supervisory board of Directors and Shareholders of Core Laboratories N.V. 

Auditor's report 

Report on t h e  f inancial  sbtemenis 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2006 of Core Laboratories N.V. Amsterdam as set out on pages IS to 74. 
The financial statements yonsist of the consolidated financial statements and the company financial statements. The consolidated 
financial statements compnse the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, the profit and loss account, statement of 
changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes. The company financial statements comprise the company balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, the company 
profit and Ioss account for the year then ended and the notes. 

The direcrors' responsibility 
The directors of the  company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands 
Civil Code, and for the preparation of the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of  thc Neiheriands Civil 
Code. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropnate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' responsibiliiy 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in  accordance 

with Dutch law. This law requires that we comply with ethica1 requirements and plan and períorm the audit 10 obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfoming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures seiected depend on the auditor's judgment, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to Fraud or error. In making those risk assessrnents. the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control. An audit CL) 

als0 includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by the ' 
<::, 
ca 

! 
I',-! 
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In our opinion, the wnsolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the  financial position of Core Laboratories N.V as 
at 31 December 2006. and of i ts  result and its cash îlows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting q 
Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of  the Netherlands Civil Code. 

directors, as wel1 as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion wiih respect 10 rhe consolidaiedfinancia/ sfaiemenrs 

Opinion iviih resper/ 10 ihe company/j,,,,iu! siuiemenfs 
In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Core Laboratories N.V as at 

3 I December 2006. and of its result for ihe year then ended in accordance wiih Part 9 of Book 2 ofthe Netherlands Civil Code. 

Report on o i h e r  legal and regulatory requi rements  

Pursuant to the legal requirement under 2:393 sub 5 part e of the Netherlands Civil Code, we report, to the extent of our 
competence, that the Annual Report of the Directors is consistent with the financial statements as required by 2:391 sub 4 of the 
Neiherlands Civil Code. 

Rotterdam. 22 June 2007 
PricewaterhoureCwpers Accountants N.V. 

N.W. Over de Vest RA 
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